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About this Report

Our Approach to Reporting

HomeFirst is publishing its second Integrated Report
for FY 2023 to provide a holistic assessment of its
financial as well as non-financial performance.
Through this report, we strive to provide enhanced
disclosures to meet the requirements of our
stakeholders.

Reporting Principle

*The Companies Act, 2013 (including the rules made
thereunder),

The Indian Accounting Standards,

*The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regu-
lations, 2015.

The report has been prepared in accordance with the
framework prescribed by the International Integrated
Reporting Council (IIRC) and also contains disclosures
with reference to the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
Standards and United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (UN SDGS).

Reporting Period

The Integrated Report FY 2023 is an annual publication
forthe period April 1,2022 to March 31, 2023.

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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Materiality & Scope & Boundary

The Integrated Report FY 2023 includes information
that is material to HomeFirst's stakeholders and
provides an overview of the business processes and
activities that assist in long-term value creation.
HomeFirst also shares insights about the strategic
priorities, business model, risks and mitigants. The
reporting boundary covers the overall environmental,
social and economic performance of HomeFirst across
111 Branches as on Mar'23 and its Head office and
other officesin Mumbai.

Independent Assurance

The quality of information content in the report is
prepared in consultation with and reviewed by internal
stakeholders. This Report covers financial and non-
financial information and activities of Home First
Finance Company India Limited (‘the Company’) for the
period April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023. While the
financial information has been audited by Deloitte
Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, the select
non-financial information as referred to in the
assurance report has been assured by Price
Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (PWCALLP).
The assurance is in accordance with the limited
assurance criteria of the International Standards on
Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000 Revised and ISAE
3410.

The assurance criteria, methodology and conclusion
are presented in the assurance report. The assurance
reportis available on page no.317
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FY 2022-23 in brief

Physical Branches  Touchpoints Assets Under Management

CAGR (FY17-FY23)  Disbursals

Productivity

4 24% Y-0-Y 6% Y-0-Y
Disbursement / Employee Assets Under Management /Branch

L __ |
Raised Including Assignments Diversified Funding
Stable Outlook Raised from IFC to finance affordable
Credit Rating improved housing and green housing
Risk Management fo
" 0.7% Y-0-Y ' 1.0% Y-o0-Y
GNPA Improved* 30+ DPD (Back to pre-covid levels)
Tech
a
Customers Registered Loans Approved
on Customer App within 48 hours
ESG
\
Great Place to Work
ESG Risk Score (Third Time In a Row)

(Categorising under "Low Risk”)

Employees covered AUM is towards Women
Under ESOP Program EWS / LIG customers workforce

*1.6% (0.9% pre RBI circular) compared to 2.3% (1.3% pre-RBI circular) for FY22.



Theme of the Report

‘1,00,000 Homebound'

It's time for HomefFirst to take home the coveted
"Silver Play Button". After all, we have hit the 100k
subscribers mark! And it's not on a digital platform but
in the real world. Yes, we have serviced more than
1,00,000 customers now! The loyalty of all these
customers has been earned through an unrelenting
focus on customer centricity the ability to put the
customer at the center of everything. The mind has
conceived the product, the technology, and the
processes, but our heartis with our customers.

We identified real issues faced by home loan
customers and turned them into business
opportunities. Can we evaluate someone's income
without documented proof? Can we do it quickly, and
consistently without disrupting someone's day-to-day
work? Can we ensure timely repayment without
intruding on a customer's privacy? Understanding
what a customer needs at a deeper level helped us
create customized, hassle-free solutions. Keeping
service at heart, we have used technology to
streamline processes and make them simple.
Customers started appreciating the experience they
received at HomeFirst - faster turnarounds,
transparent counselling sessions, easy-to-use mobile
apps and these became our core USPs or
differentiatorsfromtraditional home loan providers!

Coming back to 100,000, the Karman line is an
imaginary boundary thatdefines the limitbetween the
Earth's atmosphere and outer space that lies at an
altitude of 100,000 metres above sea level. It is an
important milestone for space exploration, as
crossing it requires spacecraft to overcome the forces
of gravity and air resistance, and enter into the realm
of space. Individuals who have flown above this
altitude are considered astronauts.

100,000 customers is a significant milestone for the
Company and our journey so far is probably not
incomparable to the journey of a spacecraft trying to
move out from the Earth's gravitational field into
space. We see this as the first step of many leaps that
we need to take to become a household name in this
country.

Performance
Highlights

21,198 Crs

Asset Under Management

11 lakhs

Average Ticket Size of Housing Loan

1.6%

GNPA
(0.9% pre RBI circular)

3.9%

ROA
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https://youtu.be/zaUxjh_dnDc
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HomeFirst at a Glance

Our Customers

Formal Salaried Informal Salaried Self Employeed

Rahul Trivedi Kalpeshbhai Hadiyel Karma Kanwar

Sales Executive, LG Electronics Senior Technician, Sagar Packaging Nagina Artist, Works From Home
Sales and Services

325,000 Monthly salary 320,000 Monthly income 325,200 Monthly family income

38,42,000 Loan 11,111,000 Loan 38,65,000 Loan

Challenges faced by affordable u u HomekFirst Value
housing customers Proposition
Inability to meet tedious documentation Empathetic loan process via well-educated
process of large banks and trained Relationship Managers
Time consuming sanction process Holistic evaluation of formal and informal
income sources of the customer
Dealing with middle men Doorstep service with a paperless process.
48 Hr TAT for approval
Hidden fees and charges Full-feature mobile apps powered with

a pre-payment module
Zero prepayment charges. No hidden
charges

Properties we finance

Apartment
Kamptee Road, Nagpur

Self-constructed home Row house
Avadi, Chennai Sachin, Surat

Property Cost Property Cost Property Cost
Z18,00,000 ¥13,00,000 %30,00,000



Corporate Overview

Our Journey

CARE Ratin CARE Ratin ICRA Ratin
E = E EEE ®H 8 8 8
e A A e om
ICRA & CARE
Rating upgraded
to AA- Stable

Crossed 100
Physical Branches

Listed on Ind'ia R::\jtings: 1.00,000+
NSE and BSE Aesigne Lor\g Customers served
Term Credit
Warburg Pincus Facilities EE Emm
invests in the Rating 7,198
company® AA- Stable AUM inZCrs

60,000+
sanctions

Scalable operating model HomeFirst HomeFirst;

AUM

now has
True North
1,198 Crs !
acquilres customers 33600 Crs
Assets Under Management majority stake
Q Networth across 1]
truenorth crosses 11 States as 3,618
+1UT ]
GIC %500 crs EEEE B B EE
AUM crosses Co-investment ~ With 15,000+ N N EmE =
%500 Crs with with customers& H H
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 10000+ True North® 10 lenders - - ms
§ : [] ] 1]
~ SeriesB customers CIC m m m .
. with reach ] ] ] 1]
Tata Capital = = = =
across 25+ [ v H a an
(Alpha T¢ c cities : : Eiamaass = meameass
Started Holdings ustomer = = m m EEEEEEE=
e : operations Pte Ltd) HomeFirst base crosses B E Enm H H = = o a8
Series A | in Gujarat & rima t >000 = 5548 © = 5 R e
S i J > p ry urns ] ] ] ] ] SEEEEE
Primary Tamil Nadu in  investment of profitable = = = = =
s ] | | | | ] [ ]
investment the cities %47 Crs - = = = = m .
ofz10crs  of Ahmedabad H = u u u s H
and Chennai H H = s s - N =
| | [ ] [ | | | | | [ | | | [ |
Incorporation H m H H a H a H
f the = = = = = = = =
, - - - SEeSEEER & - -
company I 2 1] (1] H ] ] ] ] ] l am
EEEEEE H EEEEEE =N [ ] [ ] HEEE HEEN [ ] [ ] [ ] HEEE HER EEEEEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Early Days and Proof of Concept Consolidation Scaling Up
Notes:

1) Aether has co-invested with True North. Waverly owns 100% of Aether Class B Shares. Waverly is a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of GIC (Ventures) Pte. Ltd
2) Investment by Orange Clove Investments B.V (an offiliate of Warburg Pincus). Warburg Invested on 1st October 2020

Home First Finance Company India Ltd. | Integrated Annual Report | u EER mEE 09
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Corporate Overview

12 Year Highlights

IGAAP  IGAAP IGAAP IGAAP IGAAP IGAAP IGAAP IGAAP IndAS IndAS IndAS IndAS IndAS

Particulars (X in Crs) FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23
Total Income - 2 7 20 39 62 95 146 271 419 489 596 796
Interest Expense on borrowings - - 3 10 22 36 53 64 125 191 217 215 303
and debt securities

Net Total Income - 2 4 10 17 26 42 82 146 228 273 381 492
Interest Income on loans - 1 5 16 33 55 84 126 229 342 406 477 682
Interest Expense on borrowings - - 3 10 22 36 53 64 125 191 217 215 303
and debt securities

Net Interest Income - 1 2 6 11 19 31 62 104 151 190 262 379
Net Gain on DA - - - - - - - - 21 37 44 68 38
Other Non-interest income - 1 2 4 6 7 11 20 21 40 39 51 75
Net Total Income - 2 4 10 17 26 42 82 146 228 273 381 492
Opex 1 3 5 8 12 16 26 42 74 104 106 130 176
Credit Cost - - - - 1 1 2 2 7 17 32 25 22
Total Expense 1 3 8 18 35 53 81 108 206 312 355 369 500
Tax - - - - 1 3 5 13 19 27 34 52 67
One time adjustment - - - - - - - - - - - (12)"

PAT (1) (1) (1) 2 3 6 9 25 46 80 100 186 228
Funds (Xin Crs)

Debt - 5 44 96 216 365 554 870 1,926 2,494 3,054 3,467 4,813
Equity 15 28 50 99 102 154 308 333 523 933 1,381 1,574 1,817
Total Assets 16 34 102 216 359 597 990 1,372 2,482 3,480 4,510 5,117 6,737
Key Metrics (X in Crs)

AUM 2 20 69 163 337 548 847 1,356 2,444 3,618 4,141 5,380 7,198
Disbursement 2 12 35 90 211 277 424 746 1,573 1,618 1,097 2,031 3,013
Key Ratios

Earnings per share ()

[FY11 to FY18 - FV X 10 per share

FY19 onwards - FV X 2 per share] -2 -5 -4 9 11 18 23 24 8 11 12 21 26
RoA -7.4% -5.5% -1.6% 1.6% 1.2% 1.3% 1.1% 2.1% 2.4% 2.7% 2.5% 3.6%  3.9%
RoE -7.5% -6.2% -2.7% 3.4% 3.4% 4.7% 3.8% 7.9% 10.8%  10.9% 8.7% 11.8% 13.5%
CRAR 167.0%  84.0% 60.2%  73.7% 44.1% 48.4% 66.7%  43.8% 385% 49.0% 56.2% 58.6% 49.4%
CRAR - tier 1 167.0%  84.0% 60.2%  73.7% 43.5% 47.8% 66.0%  42.9% 37.7% 47.7% 55.2% 58.1% 48.9%
No of shares 2,885,457 3,470,914 4,453,643 6125468 6,125468 7,761,721 10,320,531 10,323,331 63,339,490° 78,297,715 87,399,727 87,633,703 88,016,767
Face value per share (X) 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 2 2 2 2 2
BVPS 53 80 113 161 166 198 298 323 83 119 158 180 206
Opex to Assets 12.4% 13.1% 7.5% 5.0% 4.2% 3.4% 3.3% 3.6% 3.8% 3.5% 2.7% 2.7% 3.0%

Notes

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2018 as the transition date. Accordingly, FY19 financials have also been restated as per IndAS for comparison.

The shareholders, vide a special resolution, have approved subdivision of equity shares of the Company in the ratio of five equity shares of 32 each against
one equity share of 10 each respectively. Accordingly, 15,659,543 shares of 10 each, were subdivided to 78,297,715 shares of ¥2 each as at 30 October
2019.

Operating Expenses is the sum of Employee Benefits Expenses, Depreciation and Amortization, Interest on lease liability, Bank charges and other Expenses
for the relevant year or period as per the financial statements.

AAdjusted RoA at 3.6% and Adjusted RoE at 11.8% is computed considering Adjusted PAT for FY22 without the positive impact of one-time deferred tax
liability adjustment

*Adjusted for subdivision

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. 10



Corporate Overview

Our Geographic Presence

Our Branch Network

® Existing branches - 111

® New branch locations - 48

Digital branches - 106

Contribution to
India's GDP FY'22 (%)

0-4 4-7
®7-15

Business commenced in
31 new physical branches during the year

Increased presence in 21
new districts

Branches '. Districts .. States / UT '. Touchpoints

Disclaimer Map not to scale. All data, information and maps are provided “as is” without warranty or any representation of accuracy, timeliness or completeness
Note: Source for Contribution of states to India's GDP: NSO, MOSPI

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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Corporate Overview

Performance Highlights

Business Metrics

Assets Under Management 7,198 Crs Disbursement Z3,013 Crs
in%Crs M 4 Yrs CAGR 31.0% in%Crs M 4 Yrs CAGR 17.6%
M Y-0-Y 33.8% M Y-0-Y 48.4%
7,198
5,380
4,141
3,618 3,013
2,444
2,031
1,618
FY'19 FY20 FY'21 FY'22 FY'23 FY19 FY'20 FY'21 FY'22 FY'23
Number of Loan Accounts 171,927 Number of Branches m

Y19 29,372 FY19 - 60

FY20 43,094 20 (P o3

Y21 50,417 Y21 - 72
FY22 62,055 22 (P =

Fy23 77,927 FY'23

111

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. 12



Corporate Overview

Performance Highlights

Balance Sheet Metrics

Networth %1,817 Crs Profit After Tax %228 Crs

inXCrs in%Crs A 4 Yrs CAGR 49.5%
M Yo0-Y31.1%

1,817
1,574 228
1,381 .
933 174
523
100
80
s . .
FY'19 FY'20 FY'21 FY'22 FY'23 FY'19 FY'20 FY'21 FY'22 FY'23
ROA 3.9% ROE 13.5%
Y19 2.4% Y19 — 10.8%
FY'20 2.7% FY'20 - 10.9%
Fy21 2.5% Fy21 - 8.7%
* *

* Adjusted RoA at 3.6% and Adjusted RoE at 11.8% is computed considering Adjusted PAT for FY22 without the positive impact of one-time deferred
tax liability adjustment

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. 13



Corporate Overview

Performance Highlights

Profit & Loss Metrics

Net Interest Income 2379 Crs Net Total Income %492 Crs
in%Crs M 4 Yrs CAGR 38.2% in%Crs 2 4 Yrs CAGR 35.5%
A Y-0-Y 44.6% M Y-0-Y 29.3%
492
379 381
262 273
190 228
151
104 146
FY'19 FY'20 FY'21 FY'22 FY'23 FY'19 FY'20 FY'21 FY'22 FY'23
Cost to Income 35.7% Opex to Assets 3.0%

FY'19 50.3% FY'19 - 3.8%
FY20 45.8% 20 (P 35+
Y21 39.0% Y21 - 2.7%
FY22 34.0% Y22 - 2.7%
Fy23 35.7% Fy23 - 3.0%

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. 14



Corporate Overview

Performance Highlights

GNPA

1.0%
0.8%

Mar'19 Mar'20

30+ DPD

Mar'19

Mar20

Mar'21

Mar'22

Mar'23

Integrated Annual Report

Asset Quality Metrics
1.6%
2.3%
1.8% § 6%
g

Mar21 Mar'22 Mar'23

2.7%

1.7%

2.0%

4.1%

3.7%

2.7%

NNPA 1.1%

1.8%

1.2%
1.1%

0.9%

0.8%
0.6%

0.9%

Mar'19 Mar20 Mar'21 Mar22 Mar'23

Re-classification due to RBI circular

1+ DPD 4.0%

Mar'19 3.2%

Mar'20 4.4%

Mar'21 6.2%

Mar'22 5.3%

Mar'23 4.0%

Home First Finance Company India Ltd. 15



Corporate Overview

Performance Highlights

Operational Metrics
EPS* %26 BVPS* 3206
206
180
158
119
83
21 26
12
8 11
FY'19 FY'20 FY'21 FY'22 FY'23 FY'19 FY'20 FY'21 FY'22 FY'23
CRAR 49.4% CRAR - Tier | 48.9%
FY19 38.5% 1o @) 37.7%
FY20 49.0% 2o (D 477
Fy21 56.2% 21 (D s
*EPS and BVPS for FY19, FY20, FY21,FY22 and FY23 is computed using Face Value per share of X2 post considering sub-division of shares
Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. 16



Chairman’s Statement

HomefFirst has grown

from strength to strength,
leveraging technology across
various facets and is well
placed to deal with challenges
to become a large new-age
housing finance company

for digital India”

Deepak Satwalekar

Chairman / Independent /
Non-Executive Director

It gives me great pleasure in writing to you again, sharing my thoughts on
the performance of the Company in FY23, the overall environment and the
large sector opportunity in which your Company, HomeFirst, is well placed.

The global economy has been severely impacted in FY23 by the Russia-
Ukraine war. The war crippled the global supply chain, triggered a global
food shortage, spiked commodity prices and consequently led to high
inflation rates across the world. Before the Ukraine conflict started, in
February 2022, the Reserve Bank of India had projected average inflation at
4.5 per cent for FY23 in the backdrop of the receding Covid-19 pandemic.
However, geopolitical tensions overturned the macroeconomic conditions
globally and prices of crude oil, metals, and food increased at an
unprecedented rate. In India, inflation touched a peak of 7.8 per cent in
April 2022. The average inflation during May-November 2022 period
remained at 6.8 per cent. In addition, China’s Covid led disruption in supply
chain weighed heavily on economic growth and consumer confidence. This
led most central bankers to increase rates in response to tackle inflation
and the RBI had to respond to global dynamics even though Inflation in
India was in single digits vis-a-vis double digits in many developed
countries.

The free-money era of negative interest rate funds disappeared, but many
developed countries today have entered into a new era of high inflation &
low growth. However, with China opening up after a long period of strict
Covid restrictions and increasing US Infrastructure spending, in the
medium term, there are triggers for the return of global growth.

With prudent fiscal policy and significant focus on financing capital
investments, India is creating a long-term foundation for growth and is
working on providing an alternative in the global supply chain through
Production Linked Incentive (PLI) schemes.

India’s agile public digital infrastructure is a game changing initiative which
the private players can also tap into. Your Company HomeFirst has been a
big ambassador and beneficiary of this digital revolution. As per IMF, India
will continue to deliver high GDP growth amongst large economies. Credit
growth in India has so far been in the high-teens giving confidence. Many
macro indicators are reaching new highs: GST collections saw an average
monthly collection of more than %1.4 Trn in FY23 and exports at USD 700
bn for the first time ever (including software exports). However, global
conditions may have an adverse impact on this story in the near term.

Housing demand in India is expected to be strong, underpinned by strong
economic activity, increasing middle class population, rapid
industrialization, increasing working-age population, increase in per capita
incomes and nuclearization of families.

In the short term, we expect the demand to continue despite 250bps of
repo rate rise since May 2021 as the rates are still below pre-covid levels.
India’'s housing finance penetration has just crossed double digit a few
years ago and we have a long way to go when compared to peers. Finance
for affordable homes had been one of the missing links in India. Given that
the informal economy is still substantial, income assessment is still a major
challenge for many lenders. Hence, it presents a large untapped
opportunity for companies like HomeFirst that have a specialized
understanding in this area.

Home First Finance Company India Ltd. | Integrated Annual Report

This time around, the industrial and economic growth is not restricted
to just the metro and Tier 1 cities. Increasing competition amongst the
States for attracting investment has led to the creation of a better
business climate and increased ease of doing business. This has also
led to greater dispersal of industry and consequent demand for
housing in Tier 3 and 4 towns. As economic activity picks up there, and
ease of living improves, the housing demand increases, keeping pace
with improvements in social infrastructure. Your Company's
distribution strategy is leveraged on this dispersal.

Onthe business front, FY23 has been a year of inflection after the Covid
impacted years of FY21 & FY22. Your Company has achieved higher
growth in business and profitability with improving asset quality. We
are on a strong growth path which is reflected via new milestones. In
FY22, HomeFirst crossed the milestone of ¥5,000 Crs AUM. In FY23, the
AUM crossed ¥7,000 Crores and Profit After Tax grew by 31.1% to Y228
Crs. The Board of Directors, after due deliberation, keeping in mind the
expectation of shareholders and the improvement in profitability, has
decided on adividend of 32.6 per share.

Our distribution reach is growing strong. During FY23, your Company
added 65 touchpoints to reach a total of 265 touchpoints. 31 physical
branches were added to reach a total of 111 branches. In the next 2
years, HomeFirst is planning to add another 40-50 physical branches to
reach about 150 branches and about 130 touch points to reach 400
touchpoints (including 150 physical branches).

Co-lending has ramped-up well with our 2 partners Central Bank of
India and Union Bank of India. The regulations create a win-win
opportunity for banks and HFCs and these partnerships will enable
HomeFirst to expand its product offerings to customers in the
geographies it operates in, while continuing to leverage its technology
led customer-first approach and enhance our brand presence. Your
Company's asset quality is now at pre-Covid levels. We focus early, on
delays in payments to reduce flowthrough to late buckets.

Credit rating agencies have reaffirmed their belief in your Company’s
stable operation and strong balance sheet by upgrading the rating
from “A+ Positive” to “AA- Stable”. This fortifies HomeFirst's strong
financial profile along with its ability to maintain adequate liquidity and
exhibit efficient capital management. The rating elevation also
reinforces the strong credentials of HomeFirst from both operational
and financial perspectives and should lead to lower cost of funding.

For any lending company, diversifying funding sources is an important
aspect. During the year, HomeFirst has received funding of ¥280 Crs
from International Finance Corporation (IFC), a member of The World
Bank Group. These funds will be utilised to provide financing for retail
buyers of affordable green housing units, encouraging home
ownership for low-income segments, and supporting the development
of green affordable housing. Your Company continues to have strong
relations with leading commercial banks in the country enabling it to
raise funding through term loans, non-convertible debentures and
direct assignment of loans to banks thus maintaining healthy liquidity

Corporate Overview

in these uncertain times. Refinance from NHB continues as an
important source of funding for affordable housing.

India has taken major steps in using technology in deepening of
financial reach through digital medium. UPI continues to drive digital
payments, and is now going international. With e-Rupee, the payments
mechanism in India has received a further boost. HomeFirst has
leveraged technology to drive operational efficiency, deliver faster
turnarounds, increase transparency, build scale and reduce costs. Our
tech stack also helps us to stay true to our core values of being “Swift,
Transparentand Unconventional”.

Your Company received an ESG rating from Morningstar's
Sustainalytics (a leading ESG rating agency) with a risk score of 16.2 in
low-risk category vis-a-vis majority of BFSI Peers in medium to high-risk
category. This industry leading score is a validation of your Company’'s
sustainable and socially responsible practices with strong corporate
governance practices. We will continue to operate responsibly with
best-in-class practices.

In its thirteen-year journey, your Company has provided housing loans
to more than 100,000 customers across 13 States/UT in the country.
Disbursements of ¥3,013 Crs during the year in FY23 were the highest
ever in its journey, reflecting 48.4% growth from FY22. Asset quality
(90+ DPD) has improved from 1.3% in FY22 to 0.9% in FY23 (pre-RBI
circular changes). Your Company's Adjusted Profit After Tax grew by
31.1% in FY23 at 3228 Crs from 174 Crs in FY22. Consequently, ROE
hasimproved from 11.8% in FY22to 13.5%in FY23.

HomefFirst has built a profitable business model which will grow larger
through a calibrated expansion strategy, focus on customer
requirements, quality of the book and a diversified lender base.
HomekFirst has also grown from strength to strength, leveraging
technology across various facets and is well placed to deal with
challenges to become a large new-age housing finance company for
digital India.

We value the support provided by all stakeholders, National Housing
Bank (NHB), Reserve Bank of India (RBI), our customers, lenders, rating
agencies and my colleagues on the Board. The unwavering efforts of
our employees who are our brand ambassadors on ground is deeply
appreciated as we could not have achieved this performance without
them.

Thank You,
Deepak Satwalekar, Chairman & Independent Director

17



From the desk of MD & CEO

This year has been full of challenges,
but our team has persevered and
delivered outstanding results. We have
continued to innovate, evolve, and
adapt to the changing landscape of our
industry, while staying true to our

core values and commitment to
providing affordable housing finance
solutions. Looking ahead, we see
tremendous opportunities for growth
and expansion, fuelled by our
investments in distribution, technology,
talent, and risk management.”

Manoj Viswanathan
Managing Director and CEO

The last financial year (FY22) ended with a sense of relief at
the tapering of the pandemic. The vast majority, overcome
by zoom-fatigue were looking forward to abandoning social
distancing. However, the next set of events that unfolded at
the beginning of FY23 transformed what was supposed to
be a benignyear into an edge of the seat thriller.

The year started with the Russian' invasion of Ukraine. This
was followed by unprecedented high inflation across the
western world driven by covid induced largesse. Central
banks started increasing policy rates to curb inflation led by
the US Fed. Policy rates in USA moved up from near 0 at the
beginning of the year to 5% by year end with an increase of
75bps almost every 2 month. While inflation in India (~6-
7%) was not as high as in many western markets, it was
higher than RBI's upper threshold of 6%. This prompted RBI
toincrease policy rates by 250 bps during the year. However,
inflation remained stubborn, fuelled by supply chain
disruptions due to covid surge in China and further inflamed
by the political stand-off between China and USA.

Itis surprising that an affordable housing finance businessin
India needs the above preamble, but this year global events
have left their mark even on a mid-sized company like
HomekFirst. The sector had just emerged from covid with a
positive reputation of being a resilient sector. It was proven
that first time home owners, who purchase or build homes
priced between ¥ 0.5-2.5 Mn are emotionally attached to
their homes and would go out of their way to ensure EMI
payments to their lenders even in the face of extreme
financial stress. This was true for our customers as well. Our
GNPA that saw a moderate uptick during covid settled down
to pre-covid levels; But the new nemesis for housing loan
customers was the increase in interest rates. Policy rates
were moving up rapidly and this was expected to have a two-
pronged effect on housing loans. Rate increases prima facie
meant that EMIs would increase and this could have an
adverse effect on repayment. Rate increases could also
compel customers to defer their home purchase decisions
leading to weakness in demand and disbursal growth. Let us
see how this played out in the industry in general and
HomekFirst in particular. An indirect impact anticipated was
also a compression in spreads.

Although the policy rates increased by 250 bps during the
course of the year, transmission to our cost of borrowing
was muted and gradual on account of borrowing cost being
linked to MCLR of lender banks. For the first 2 quarters of the
year, our borrowing cost actually dropped below that at the
start of the year. It is only in Q3 (Oct-Dec) that the cost of
borrowing started moving up, going up to 7.9% in Q4FY23.
We offset this by increasing the rates for customers. Three
rate increases were passed on: 25bps (1% July'22), 50 bps (1*
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Dec'22) and 50bps (1% Apr'23). These rate increases did not
impact customer repayment due to the following reasons: a)
For most customers rate increases were passed on through an
increase in the tenure of the loan keeping the EMIs constant.
Thus, the cash flows and household budgets of customers did
not get disturbed. b) 40% of HomeFirst customers have availed
the PMAY-CLSS subsidy that amounted to ~26% of the loan for
those customers. The impact of this subsidy is to reduce the
loan amount to the extent of the subsidy, in turn reducing the
EMI burden for the customer. Since the customer's EMI was
already lower that the original EMI, rate increases did not
stretch the EMI beyond the customer's original repayment
capacity. After 3 rate increases, we have only 2% of our
customers who have an EMI increase in excess of ¥1,000. We
have registered a spread of 5.7% for the year on an average,
netting a PAT of ¥228 Crs - growth of 31.1% on y-o-y basis over
%174 Crs in the previous year. This translates to a Return on
Assets of 3.9%, an increase of 30 bps compared to last year. As
a result, ROE improved sharply by 170 bps to 13.5% in FY23
over 11.8% in FY22. In Q4FY23 the Company delivered an ROE
of 14.4% vs 12.5% for Q4FY22.

Increase in interest rates did not dampen demand as
anticipated. Vibrancy in the Indian economy? and second order
effects of covid such as working from home etc had a positive
effect in driving up housing demand in the country. HomeFirst
capitalized on this growing demand by scaling up distribution
rapidly. We added 31 branches this year taking the total to 111.
We also increased our presence to 119 districts (an addition of
21), giving us access to more than 50% of the affordable
housing industry in the country. Overall, our distribution points
(including branches) increased from 200 to 265. We continue to
focus our expansion in the States of Gujarat, Maharashtra,
Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Karnataka and Tamil Nadu,
supplemented by gradual and contiguous expansion in the
other States where we are present. Expansion will span Tier 1, 2
and 3 levels of towns. We are targeting to reach 400 touch
points by March 2025. We are targeting an AUM growth of
30%-+ for FY24 to enable us to cross the 10,000 Crs AUM mark
in the next 12-18 months. We have a three-pronged approach
to growth - centered on expanding distribution, increasing
market share and expanding the addressable market through
co-lending.

The second half of the year, saw the collapse of Silicon Valley
Bank followed by a few other banks in the US and Europe. This
raised some questions on the strength of the balance sheets of
small and mid-sized banks and financial institutions in India.
HomeFirst is well capitalized with a capital adequacy of 49.4%.
The Company has diversified & cost-effective long-term
financing sources with nil dependence on short term sources

1 Vlad-mir' apparently means 'Prince of Peace' in Russian. Wonder what irony means in Russian.

2 GDP growth in India at 5.90% compared to world average of 2.80%.
3 We are a lean team of 993 employees.

Corporate Overview

like CPs. Our cost of borrowing remained competitive at 7.4% in
FY23.This year we raised a total funding of ¥3,618Crs.

Pre-payment rates are high for home loans in India resulting in
effective loan tenures of 6-7 years against the original
contracted loan tenure of 20 years or more. This ensures that
assets and liabilities are well matched with surpluses in every
time bucket. Portfolio quality continues to be strong. Gross
Stage 3 (GNPA) as per latest RBI guidelines, improved by 20bps
to 1.6% in Q4, from 1.8% in Q3. This includes %42 Crs which is
currently in buckets less than 90DPD but included in NPA due
to asset classification norms as per RBI notification dated 12-
Nov-2021. Prior to such classification it is 0.9% and stands
below Mar'20 levels. Asset quality is at pre-covid levels and we
intend to maintain this with a bias towards gradual
improvement. Our strategy is to achieve this by strengthening
our data driven risk models and filters. The stability in input
parameters post covid will enable us to accomplish this.

HomeFirst continues to invest in technology and we have a
number of projects lined up for the year that will enable us to
widen our moats in origination, underwriting and collections.
The big development in the technology world this year was the
emergence of Large Language Models (LLMs) the most popular
of which was Chat GPT (Generative Pre-trained Transformer)
which is a deep learning language model developed by OpenAl.
Earlier Almodels relied on carefully labelled training data. LLMs
do not require pre-labelling and can hence be trained on vast
amounts of data to learn patterns and relationships within
language and can be used for a variety of applications such as
language translation, chatbots, text summarization, and
language modelling. LLMs in fact can be trained on the entire
internet which explains the excitement and anxiety around its
capabilities. We anticipate that with the passage of time, this
Annual Report may be generated by the next generation of
Chat GPT.

This year has been full of challenges, but our team® has
persevered and delivered outstanding results. We have
continued to innovate, evolve, and adapt to the changing
landscape of our industry, while staying true to our core values
and commitment to providing affordable housing finance
solutions. Looking ahead, we see tremendous opportunities
for growth and expansion, fuelled by our investments in
distribution, technology, talent, and risk management. We
remain steadfast in our dedication to delivering exceptional
value to our customers, shareholders, and all stakeholders.
Our focus on sustainability, responsible lending, and financial
inclusion will continue to guide our decisions and actions, as we
strive to create a better future for all.
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OUR
STRATEGIC
PRIORITIES

TECH IN MIND

HomeFirst is guided by its Vision, Mission
and Values. Keeping these in mind, we
developed our Strategic Priorities in our
FY22 Annual report that will steer the
organization over the next 3-5 years.

We have stayed focused on our defined
priorities and we present an update on
thesame for FY23.
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TECH IN MIND

Building blocks and what
is on our mind

How will we
measure it

B Customer NPS
B Turnaround times
B Opex to Assets

Loans Approved within 48 hrs (in %)

20 9
89 88

0 g9 20

83

FY20 FY21 FY22 FY'23 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
FY23

Use technology to build innovative distribution channels to
originate loans and deepen our footprintin our markets

Use emerging techniques such as digital validations and
account aggregators to evaluate and underwrite loans, to
bring down the risk of the unknown

Automate our internal processes to improve productivity
and accuracy

Process loans on best in class platforms to bring full
visibility and trail in our operations

Provide superior service to our channel partners,
customers and employees via mobile apps, Al driven

interfaces and digital payment methods

Make our collection processes highly analytical, time
bound and efficient.

Customer NPS

84
82 82 82
79 80
50 53
FY'20 FY21 FY22 FY'23 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
FY23
Opex to Asset (in %)
3.5 31
27 27 30 29 o 28 29
FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

FY23

Corporate Overview

1. The Company has commissioned Litmus World Marketing Technologies Pvt. Ltd to determine our net promoter score with effect from January 2020. Litmus World
determines our net promoter scores through its gauging tool known as ‘Litmus World Suite’ by delivering customer experience in form of Software as a Service in which
feedback URL links are generated and sent to those customers whose loans have been sanctioned by the company, through channels like SMS and email.2. The Net
Promoter Score for the months of March, April and May 2020 has not been calculated due to the impact of Covid-19 on the operations and business of the Company.

Integrated Annual Report

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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SCALE AND GROWTH

What we
plan to do

Build a scalable housing
finance business for the
long term and become a
respected player in the
affordable housing
finance market trusted
by customers

How will we
measure it

B AUM growth
B Footprint

Building blocks and what
is on our mind

Expand our business in a contiguous manner into
regions with increasing urbanization, growing
commercial activity and rising household incomes

Use a high-density model that will allow us to scale
our business with lower costs and increase our
profitability

Deepen our presencein our core markets - Gujarat,

Maharashtra, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana,
Karnataka and Tamil Nadu.

AUM Growth (in ¥ Crs)

7,198 7,198
6,275 6,751
5,380 5,832
4141
3,618 |||\
FY20 FY21 FY22 FY'23 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
FY23
Footprint
- = ~ -
® o = - a S = -
FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Q1 Q2 Q3 4
FY23

Physical Branches [l New branch locations and digital branches

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY

Building blocks and what
is on our mind

Empower our employees through training, talent
management and fast track growth for high performers
to build a strong performance culture. Create an
inclusive workplace with a diverse workforce.

Automate manual activities and in turn focus on
improving customer experience, connector
management, business generation and collections.

Optimize productivity at each branch /employee level by

eliminating routine activities with active usage of
technology.

Disbursement / Employee (in X Crs)

How will we

39 35
o 30 30 2
measure It 26
24
B Disbursement / employee 1.6
B AUM/ branch
m Cost to Income
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

AUM / Branch (in ¥ Crs)

75.4
70.8

59.2
56.5

FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

Integrated Annual Report

3.3

FY'20 FY21 FY22 FY23
FY23

Cost to Income (in %)

45.8
39.0

67.4 66.5 ©7-6 37.4

64.7 35.7 35.8
' ' ' ' ! ' ' i i
Q1 Q@ Q3 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Q1 @ Q3 Q4

FY23 FY23

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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What we Building blocks and what
plan to do is on our mind

Diversify Sources of As we increase the scale of our operations, we intend to
Borrowings and optimize diversify the sources of borrowings further across
Borrowing Costs various pools of capital

ALM remains the most important principle to guide our
funding decisions

Our strong performance will improve our credit ratings
and enablereductionin our cost of borrowing

Cost of Borrowing (in %)

How will we
measure it 8.8

8.0 7.9
7.4 7.4
B Credit Rating 72 6.9 7.1
B Cost of Borrowing (COB)
B Asset Liability mismatch
FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
FY23
. Credit Ratings Credit Ratings Credit Ratings
Rating Agenc |
g Agency nstrument FY21 FY22 FY23
CARE Ratings Long-term Bank Facilities A+ (stable) A+ (stable) AA- (stable)
Term Loans and NCD A+ (stable) A+ (positive) AA- (stable)
ICRA Limited Commercial Paper Al+ Al+ AT+
Programme
Commercial Paper Al+ Al+ AT+
India Ratings Programme
& Research
Term Loans and NCD - AA- (stable) AA- (stable)
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Diversified Lender Base

Lender
Bi/Multilateral
Foreign Bank
Insurance

MF

NBFC

NHB

Public Sector Banks
Private Sector Banks
SFB

DFI

Grand Total

FY20

O U1 L

16

ALM Position - Cumulative

0 Inflow  Outflow

Surplus (XCrs)

1,409

631

0-3 months

Integrated Annual Report

FY21

759

1,988

. 1,229

3-6 months

FY22 FY23

21 26

880

2,903
2,023

6-12 months

Q1FY23

1,285

6,175
4,890

1-3 years

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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Q2FY23 Q3FY23 Q4FY23
2 2 3
1 - -
2 2 2
1 1 1
6 6 6
12 13 13
- 1 1
24 25 26
2,431 2,041
11,381
8,987 9,340
6,556
3-5years 5+ years
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RISK MANAGEMENT [ comormeoreren

Building blocks and what
is on our mind

Aswe scale our operations and expand our reach, we will
continue to invest on enhancing our risk management
practices and build robust compliance and monitoring
systems

H OW Wi I I We Bounce rates normalising
m ea s u re it COVID WAVE-1 V\Cl,g\\//llEl»DZ

36.4%

|
28.3%
B Bounce rates u
281%173%  183% ¢ o
® 1+ 30+ DPD R I 1 145% 1400 155% 149% 436,
9.5% 10.0% 10.9% 10.5% | ] ] | | .
m 90+ DPD L
QIFY20 Q2FY20 Q3FY20 Q4FY20 QIFY21 Q2FY21 Q3FY21 Q4FY21 QIFY22 Q2FY22 Q3FY22 Q4FY22 QIFY23 Q2FY23 Q3FY23  Q4FY23
1+ DPD (in %) 30+ DPD (in %)
6.2 4.1
5.3 3.7 3.5
20 4.7 3.3
4.4 - 4.4 . 3.0
4.0 4.0 2.7 2.7
. 2'0 '
Mar20 Mar'21 Mar22 Mar'23 Jun22 Sep22 Dec22 Mar23 Mar20 Mar21 Mar22 Mar23 Jun22 Sep'22 Dec22 Mar23

90+ DPD and Credit Cost / Avg Total Assets (in %)

2.1

1.8 16 a 1.9
1.0 S e ]
™ ~N -
-{'\:os\g s < < 2
B - w8

0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4

-

.6

7}

1.1
1 0.7

Mar20 Mar21 Mar22 Mar23 Jun22  Sep'22 Dec22 Mar'23

- Credit Cost/ Avg Total Assets

@ Re-classification due to RBI circular
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E S G Corporate Overview

What we Building blocks and what
plan to do is on our mind

Strengthen our We have been a socially inclusive organization by design

Environment, Social and - our business model is built on the vision of shaping the

Governance (ESG) future of financing homes and empowering people to
live better - and we do so by lending to the underserved
segments.

Strong governance has been the backbone of our growth
since the start of the journey. We have attracted global
investors from a nascent stage and we have received
continuous validation from regulators and rating
agencies

We are a paperless organization in our processes right
from the beginning and have been focusing on using
tech solutions to reduce paper across all our
stakeholders.

We will track our ESG impact more closely and ensure
increased monitoring and improvement.

H OW Wi I I We We get ESG assurance for our non-financial data. This
. isdisclosedinour Integrated Annual Report.
measure It

We have received ESG Rating from a Global
organization - MorningStar Sustainalytics rated
HomeFirst with ESG Risk Score of 16.2 categorising
under "Low Risk.” This is one of the best across Indian
BFSIcompanies.
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Corporate Overview

Board of Directors

Deepak Satwalekar
Chairman / Independent / Non-Executive Director

Mr. Deepak Satwalekar is the Chairman and Independent Director of our Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
mechanical engineering from Indian Institute of Technology, Bombay and a master's degree in business
administration from The American University, Washington D.C. He was the Managing Director of HDFC Ltd. (India’s
first specialized provider of housing finance and now the largest) till 2000, and thereafter the Managing Director and
CEO of HDFC Life Insurance Company Limited till 2008, the first private sector life insurance company registered in
India after 1956. Mr. Satwalekar has also been a consultant to the World Bank, the Asian Development Bank, the
United States Agency for International Development (USAID) and the United Nations Human Settlements
Programme (HABITAT) He has also been recognized as a distinguished alumnus by the Indian Institute of Technology,
Bombay. Mr. Satwalekar possesses a deep repository of knowledge and experience of approximately four decadesin
the financial services sector.

Geeta Dutta Goel

Independent / Non-Executive Director

Geeta Dutta Goel is a finance professional and Country Director for Michael & Susan Dell Foundation in India at
present. She manages the strategy and implementation of the foundation's work in India in two key areas of
Education and Family Economic Stability. Geeta has served as the Chairperson of India's Impact Investors Council
from 2017-2019, and has been on several taskforces on Responsible Finance with the World Bank's Consultative
Group to Alleviate Poverty. In 2017, She was nominated by Business Today amongst the 30 Most Powerful Women in
Impact and Forbes India nominated her as the 20 Power Women “Changing the Game” in 2020. Geeta holds a
bachelor's degree in economics from Lady Shri Ram College for Women, University of Delhi and a post graduate
diploma in management from the Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad. Geeta has served on distinguished
Boards such as Ujjivan Financial Services, Janalakshmi Financial Services, Micro Housing Finance Corporation,
Swadhaar FinServe, Arohan Financial Services, Sonata Finance etc.

Anuj Srivastava
Independent / Non-Executive Director

Anuj Srivastava is the co-founder and Chief Executive Officer of Livspace - a home interiors and renovation platform.
Livspace has created an industry first design-to-manufacturing cloud platform that integrates the 3 marketplace
participants - consumers, designers, and vendors to deliver homes, offices, co-working spaces and stores. Before
setting up Livspace, Anuj was heading product marketing and growth at Google where he was responsible for
building, launching and scaling products such as Google Wallet, Google Adsense, Google Local and Google Adwords.
Anujwas also alead ontheintegration team for Google's acquisition of DoubleClick. Anuj has completed his BTech at
the Indian Institute of Technology Kanpur and holds an MBA degree from London Business School.

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. 27



Corporate Overview

Board of Directors

Sucharita Mukherjee
Independent / Non-Executive Director

Sucharita Mukherjee is the Co-founder, whole-time director and CEO of Kaleidofin, a neo-bank that provides intuitive
and tailored financial solutions to over a million underbanked customers in India. Prior to this, she co-founded the
IFMR group and most recently was the group CEO of IFMR Holdings. She conceptualized and founded Northern Arc
Capital, building capital markets access for financial inclusion and Northern Arc Investments, an alternatives fund
management platform focused oninformal sector finance. Sucharita was recently chosen as ayoung global leader by
the World Economic Forum. She was chosen as one of the “top 40 under forty” business leaders by Economic Times in
2016 and received the IIM Ahmedabad, Young Alumni Achievers Award in 2017. Prior to her move to India, shewas an
investment banker at Morgan Stanley and Deutsche Bank in London, working primarily on credit derivatives
structuring and sales. She is an alumnus of IIM Ahmedabad and holds an undergraduate degree in economics from
Lady ShriRam College, Delhi University.

Divya Sehgal

Nominee / Non-Executive Director

Divya Sehgal is a Nominee Director representing True North. He is a Partner at True North and leads their
investments in the financial services industry. He holds a bachelor of technology degree in electrical engineering
from Indian Institute of Technology, Delhi and a post graduate diploma in management from Indian Institute of
Management, Bengaluru. In his professional journey, he started with McKinsey & Company and worked briefly at
ANZ Grindlays Bank. As an entrepreneur, he and his co-founders started E-Medlife.com which was merged into
Apollo Health Street, a leading healthcare outsourcing firm. Owing to his more than 27 years of professional
experience, he addsvalue to the Board in the areas of leadership, strategic thinking, treasury and finance.

Maninder Singh Juneja
Nominee / Non-Executive Director

Maninder Singh Juneja has been nominated on the Board by True North. He holds a bachelor's degree in civil
engineering from University of Baroda and a post graduate diploma in management from Indian Institute of
Management, Lucknow. He carries over 28 years of experience in the various industries and was associated with
Godrej GE Appliances Limited, SRF Finance Limited, DGP Windsor India Limited and Whirlpool of India Limited Prior
to joining True North, Maninder was the group head for ICICI Bank retail banking group, covering Strategy, products,
small business loans, branch banking and distribution channels. He was also leading the bank's various efforts in the
area of payments and service innovations, many of which are industry firsts. He held the position of vice-chairman of
ICICIHome Finance Company Limited. He has also served the Board of eminent companies including NPCl and CIBIL.
IARC, IFBI, and ICICI Merchant Services. He is an expertin strategy including digital, marketing (consumer behavior &
insights) & sales/channel evolution and has vast experience in the housing finance industry.
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Corporate Overview

Board of Directors

Narendra Ostawal
Independent / Non-Executive Director

Narendra Ostawal has been nominated on the Board by Orange Clove Investments B.V. (an affiliate of Warburg
Pincus). He is a Chartered Accountant and has a degree in Post-Graduation diploma in Management from Indian
Institute of Management, Bangalore. He is associated with Warburg Pincus India Private Limited since 2007, where
he is currently designated as Managing Director for health care and financial services. He has also worked with 3i
India Private Limited and McKinsey & Company. Besides Warburg Pincus India Private Limited, he is on the boards of
Avanse Financial Services Limited, Carmel Point Investments India Private Limited, Computer Age Management
Services Limited, Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited and IndiaFirst Life Insurance Company Limited. He is an expert
in finance, accountancy, audit, economics, corporate governance, legal & regulatory compliance, risk management
and strategic thinking.

Manoj Viswanathan
Managing Director and CEO

Manoj Viswanathan is the Managing Director and the Chief Executive Officer of our Company. He holds a bachelor's
degree in electrical and electronics engineering from the Birla Institute of Technology and Science, Pilani and a post
graduate diploma in business management from XLRI, Jamshedpur. He started his career with Asian Paints India Limited
and has worked with Citibank and CitiFinancial Consumer Finance India Limited prior to setting up HomefFirst. At Citi, he
was heading the branch-based consumer lending business spanning 450 branches with a customer base of more than 1
Mn customers. Manoj has been associated with the Company since inception and has been instrumental in chartering the
growth trajectory of the Company. His expertise lies in the areas of finance, consumer behavior, sales & marketing,
business operations, risk management, digital platform and strategic thinking.
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Management Team

Ajay Khetan

Chief Business Officer

Ajay Khetan is the Chief Business Officer of our Company. He is a Mechanical Engineer and has done his post graduate
diploma in management from Xavier Institute of Management, Bhubaneswar. He has over 23 years of experience in
Consumer finance, Operations and Risk Management.

Past Work Experience: Macquarie Finance (India) Private Limited, Hewlett Packard Financial Services (India) Private
Limited, CitiFinancial Consumer Finance India Private Limited, MIRC Electronics Limited, The Tata Engineering and
Locomotive Company Limited.

Gaurav Mohta J
Chief Marketing Officer

Gaurav Mohta is the Chief Marketing Officer of our Company. He is a mechanical engineer and has done his post
graduate diploma in business administration from ICFAI Business School, Hyderabad. He has over 20 years of
experience in consumer finance, marketing and product management. At Home First, he has been instrumental in
setting up sales distribution and evolving the brand identity of the company.

Past Work Experience: Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, CitiFinancial Consumer Finance India Private Limited,
Foodworld Supermarkets Private Limited.

Vilasini Subramaniam

Head - Strategic Alliances

Vilasini Subramaniam is the Head - Strategic Alliances of our Company. In her current role she is working on building a
new distribution channel through alliance partnerships and enhanced digital process flows. She also manages
product development & value added services for existing customers across the life-cycle of their loans. In her
previous role in the company she worked as Vice President - Credit & Risk , managing consumer credit and other
operational risk parameters . She is a commerce graduate and a Chartered accountant and has over 20 years of
experience in consumer finance and credit. She has handled Credit Underwriting, Product Development, Analytics &
Business Strategy in her prior work experience.

Past Work Experience: Micro Housing Finance Corporation, Janalakshmi Financial Services, Citibank India.

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. 30



Corporate Overview

Management Team

Ramakrishna Vyamajala

Chief Human Resource Officer

Ramakrishna Vyamajalais the Chief Human Resources Officer of our Company. He has done post graduate diplomain
management from T.A. Pai Management Institute. He has over 17 years of experience in human resources, rewards
and recognition, compensation and benefits.

Past Work Experience: Sterlite Technologies Limited and IDFC Bank Limited.

Nutan Gaba Patwari
Chief Financial Officer

Nutan Gaba Patwari is the Chief Financial Officer of our Company. She is a qualified Chartered Accountant. She has
over 16 years of experience in finance. In her last stint, she was with True North as a Vice President - Finance;
responsible for the implementation of strategy of the Financial services portfolio companies. She leads the
Accounts, Tax, Finance and Treasury, Secretarial, Investor relations and FP&A functions of the Company.

Past Work Experience: True North, Hindustan Unilever Limited, ITC Limited, Philip Morris Asia Limited.

Abhijeet Jamkhindikar

Business Head - Maharashtra

Abhijeet Jamkhindikar is the Business Head - Maharashtra of our Company. He holds a bachelor's degree in civil
engineering from Nagpur University. He was a member of Institution of Valuers and has completed the foundation
course in property valuation of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors India [RICS] Property Valuation. He has 20
years of experience in construction finance (for developers), finance, valuations, technical appraisals and business
development.

Past Work Experience: C-Net Solutions India Private Limited, Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
(HDFC Ltd).
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Arunchandra Jupalli

Business Head - South

Arunchandra Jupalli is the Business Head - South of our Company. He is a commerce graduate and holds a master's
degreein business studies from Bharati Vidyapeeth. He has over 21 years of experience in consumer lending business
handling various products like Consumer Durable Finance, PL, Insurance, GLand LAP.

Past Work Experience: Atlantic Duncans International (P) Limited, India Office Solutions Private Limited, Citi Financial
Consumer Finance India Limited, Net Ambit Value First Services Limited, Karvy Financial Services Limited and Small
Business FinCredit India Private Limited.

Ashishkumar Darji
Chief Risk Officer

Ashishkumar Darjiis the Chief Risk Officer of our Company. He is a Chartered Accountant and he has also completed
his bachelor's degree in law and banking from the University of Mumbai. He is a risk management professional with
an experience of 18 years in the Banking and Financial Services sector. His experience spans regulatory compliance,
risk managementand risk modelling.

Past Work Experience: KPMG, State Bank of India, Kotak Securities Limited and Clearing Corporation of India Limited.

Shreyans Bachhawat

Company Secretary

Shreyans Bachhawat is the Company Secretary of our Company. He has over 12 years of experience in corporate
secretarial compliances.

Past Work Experience: SREI Capital Markets Limited, India Power Corporation (Haldia) Limited, Gretex Corporate
Services Private Limited and Tata Value Homes Limited.
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https://youtu.be/iYnUfnrCYuU

Snapshot

Financial Capital

7,198..

Gross Loan Assets (AUM)
+33.8% y-0-y

-796..

Total Income
(+ 33.6% y-o0-y)

3.0%

Opex/Avg Assets

49.4%

CRAR

13.5%

+170 bps

77,512

Active Customers
+25.7% y-0-y

317..

PPOP
+26.0% y-0-y

228..

+31.1% y-o-y

3.9%

ROA
+30bps

AA- Stable (ICRA)
AA- Stable (IndRA)

Credit Rating

Natural Capital

40,000+ 50

Fruit trees Children treated
distributed

against clubfoot disability

60

Children treated
against Cleft Lip

l Sustainability Report
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Solar Pumps for
Marginal Farmers

Installation of Solar Panel at Jeevandhara Vrushashram, managed by Manav Seva Kalyan Trust

Human Capital

993 14,240

No of employees

Social and Relationship Capital

Total manhours training

24%

Women employees

52%

Women at head office

90% 16%

Of AUM have woman Of AUM have woman
as a borrower Primary applicant

Intellectual Capital

74%

of AUM having atleast 1
woman co-borrower

46% 60%

Digitally agreements E-Stamping during
signing during the year the year

65%

E-NACH mandates
during the year

38,000+

CSR beneficiaries Impacted



Sustainability Report

Overview by MD & CEO

Dear Stakeholders,

Global warming and sustainability are two of the most
pressing issues of our time. The rise in global
temperatures, caused by the emission of greenhouse
gases from human activities, is leading to significant
environmental changes, including melting ice caps, rising
sea levels, and more frequent extreme weather events.
To address this challenge, we need to transition to a
sustainable society that balances economic growth,
social equity, and environmental protection.

India's recent appointment as the chair of the G20 for the
year 2023 is a significant milestone in the country's
international relations and global economic leadership.
The G20, comprising 19 of the world's largest economies
and the European Union, plays a crucial role in shaping
global economic policies and promoting international
cooperation. As the chair of the G20, India will have the
opportunity to showcase its economic and diplomatic
prowess on the global stage as well as influence the
agenda and priorities of the group for the broader goals
of the G20 in promoting sustainable and inclusive
economic growth.

In the fiscal year 2023, HomeFirst continued to
strengthen their ESG efforts. We remain committed to
promoting financial inclusion through affordable
housing finance. During the year we disbursed loans
worth 3,013 Crs for affordable housing that has enabled
20,000+ families in the Economically Weaker Section and
Low-Income Groups to realize their dream to own a
home. Over the course of our 12 year journey, we have
enabled home-ownership for more than 100,000 such
families. HomeFirst has been a major proponent of the
PMAY-CLSS scheme that aims to provide subsidies to first
time home owners from low-income groups. Our efforts
in this area have resulted in channelling subsidies worth
966.7 Crs to 38,521 customers. The subsidy goes
towards reducing the loan balances of these customers,
in turn reducing their EMI burden by upto 25% for the
remainder of the tenure of the loan.
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Dineshbhai migrated to Morbi 25 years
ago from the outskirts of Surendarnagar.
Works as a supervisor in a ceramic
manufacturing factory. Have been living
with his family in company-provided
accommodation but the standard of living
was below average. He applied for a 12
lakhs Loan at HomeFirst and was repaying
an EMI of 13,634 with aloan tenure of 20
years. He has received a PMAY CLSS
subsidy of ¥2,67,280. He is also making
monthly pre-payments from the app. His
new EMI is 9,888 and his loan tenure has
been reduced to 10years.

The Company has also received a certificate of Merit in
PMAY empowering India Awards 2022 in recognition of
its contribution to Affordable Housing development in
the country.

This year, HomeFirst partnered with IFC to raise ¥ 280 Crs
to fund affordable, self-built, green homes. IFC's advisory
services will play a crucial role in developing the green
housing framework and raise awareness around the
usage of eco-friendly materials for home construction.

Our CSR projects focus on the socio-economic
development of migrant workers. Through our flagship
initiative - Project Sashakt we are doing work in the areas
of skilling and employment, children's education, school
development, healthcare, and financial literacy. Our
initiatives are empowering migrant workers living in
Narol (Ahmedabad) to generate more sustainable
income. We have increased the impact of these projects
through the launch of Phase Il of Project Sashakt, which
now benefits 1,700+ beneficiary families. We are also
promoting sustainability in these communities by
installing solar panels across schools, and hospitals in
these areas.
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At HomeFirst, we take pride in our people and work
culture, which have been recognized as Great Place to
Work for three consecutive years. We have a young,
diverse team who make the workplace more vibrant and
their enthusiasm to adapt to new things helps us to stay
ahead of the curve and deliver high productivity
consistently. We prioritize training and development and
have conducted around 14,240 manhours of training
across functional and behavioral areas. HomeFirst's
commitment to sustainability is reflected in our strong
governance framework, digital initiatives, diversity, and

33.16 Crs

utilized under CSR Solar pumps

installed to
benefit marginal

Sashakt science labs for STEM TS

education launched in 6 schools.

financial inclusion efforts. We received an ESG Risk Rating
of 16.2 which indicates low-risk and strong rating for ESG
Risk Management from MorningStar Sustainalytics. We
are proud to have one of the best ESG Risk Ratings for
Indian BFSI companies.

ESG Risk Rating

Amongst Leading Rating in BFSI Sector

16.2 .on s

Strong Risk Management

In conclusion, our ESG initiatives that began in earnest in
FY22 have gained momentum in FY23. Being a part of the
housing eco system in India, we find ourselves uniquely
well-placed to promote sustainable and responsible

i e practices in the areas of housing as well as financing. We
5' 000+ are determined to make the world a better place for our
SUGEnts future generations.
Solar panels Significant
installed in spending in
schools and Health
hospitals initiatives
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How We Create Value

Inputs

Financial Capital

Equity

Assets

Borrowings

Diversified Lenders Base
Cost of Funds

Natural Capital
Green Initiatives
Grid Electricity Consumed
Building a green portfolio

Human Capital
Employees

Learning & Development
Employee Engagement
Young workforce

Social & Relationship Capital
Livelihood Creation

Financial Inclusion

Customer Engagement

CSR Initiatives

Investors / Lenders / Rating Agencies
Engagement

Regulators

Intellectual Capital

Digital Initiatives

E-NACH, E-Sign, E-Vault

Mobility Solutions

Instant Soft Approval on App

Biometric Authentication on Customer App
Stable and scalable technology infrastructure
Robust Cyber security Framework

Integrated Annual Report
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Value Creation Approach

External Environment
= Regulations
= Macro Economy
= Evolving customer behaviour
= Pandemic
= Technological changes
= Market forces
= Customer requirements

Our Values

Transparent

nuconventional

Value Enablers
= Holistic Technology Usage
= Deep distribution in relevant markets
= Innovative and empowered Workforce
= Data Science Backed Underwriting
= Analytics driven electronic collections
= Diversified financing profile
® Centralised Operations
= Strong Ownership Culture
= Access to diversified funds
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SDGs
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ASY
: Outputs Outcomes
Financial Capital Customers
33.8% AUM Growth = Higher Customer 18,
26.0 EPS Satisfaction
3.9% ROA = |Improved Customer
13.5% ROE Experience
= Enabling Home Ownership
. = Financial Inclusion
Natural Capltal sl
40,000+ Trees Planted
16.2 ESG Risk Rating
GHG Scope 1 and Scope 2 Emissions Employees
= Inclusive, Diverse and
Safe Working Environment
Human Capital = Motivated Emplqyees
= Equal Opportunity employer
14,240 Manhours Training
26.50 years Median Age
24% Woman Employees Regulators & Government
. 22% Females in Senior Management " Strong Governance -
. Framework L S
: = ESG Compliant 45)
: Social & Relationship Capital = Compliance
89% of Book with Ticket Size
: Below %25 Lakhs
: 68%+ EWS and LIG Loans Society 12 v,
. %967 Crs CLSS Given Till F23 = Enhanced community QO
. 38,000+ CSR Beneficiaries development
: 82 NPS Score
: 15 Han
: Intellectual Capital Investors And Shareholder§ . o
. 4.2 Customer App Rating = Long term stakeholder relationship ol
. . ® Strong Brand Value
. 93% Customers Registered .
. = Return on Equity
. on App ® Sustainable Business & growth
. 89% Service Request Raised on
: App
. 46% Digitally Signed Agreements
- 60% E-stamping
&
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Ethics & Governance

HomekFirst is committed to ensuring ethical business
practices and transparency in the conduct of its
operations. To uphold the highest standards of integrity,
we have implemented the following measures and
policies:

Code of Conduct

This extensive document sets out the standards by which
HomeFirst conducts business and acts as a moral
compass for its employees. The HomeFirst Code of
Conduct is a collection of guidelines that direct and
regulate how HomeFirst and its employees conduct
themselves in all business-related situations. This is
hosted on our website.

Code of Conduct for Suppliers and Vendors

Through this code of conduct, we try to engage with our
suppliers and vendors to comply with applicable laws,
maintain the confidentiality of data, be environmentally
responsible and commit to providing a fair and ethical
workplace that recognizes diversity, equity and inclusion.

Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-blower Policy

We have a whistleblower policy in place that enables
employees and stakeholders to report any unethical or
illegal behaviour without fear of retaliation. Whistle
Blower policies in 6 local languages (Tamil, Telugu,
Marathi, Hindi, Gujarat, Kannada) are made available to
employees on the employee app). Also, the
Whistleblower policies in local languages are uploaded
on the website.

Anti-bribery and anti-corruption policy

The goal of this policy is to outline the duties of the
Company and those acting on its behalf with regard to
adhering to and upholding the Company's position on
bribery and corruption. It also outlines the Company's
policy with regard to the prevention and identification of
bribery and corruption, as well as the procedures to be
followed, if any fraud is discovered or there is any
suspicion that it may exist.

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. M m

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy, and
information required to be disclosed under Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

This policy provides for protection against sexual
harassment at the workplace, for the prevention and
redressal of complaints of sexual harassment and to
enforce strong disciplinary action in the event of any such
incident.

Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading
and Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure
of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information.

Fair Practice Code

The code defines the standards while dealing/ building
relationships with prospective/ existing customers and
has been framed and amended by the Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) to follow the best corporate practice within the
sector.

Know Your Customer (KYC) and Anti-Money
Laundering Measures Policy

This policy is adopted to evaluate the customers more
prudently to avoid the misappropriation of funds.

Internal Guidelines on Corporate Governance:

The objective of this policy is to ensure compliance with
legal requirements and set standards for Corporate
Governance so that concerned officers act in accordance
with the highest standards of governance while working
for and on behalf of the Company.

Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior
Management Personnel

This Code's objectives are to ensure the highest quality of
disclosures, discretion and fairness in business dealings,
sound corporate governance principles, efficient use of
the company's resources, and the elimination of any
conflicts of interest.

EEN EEE 3
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Ethics & Governance

Independence of Risk Management

The Chief Risk Officer is an independent person who is
responsible for overlooking the risk management
practices of the company and is independent of the
business operations. This helps him get an objective
outlook on the operations of the company.

Some of them are:

9

Environmental Social and Governance Policy
Diversity Inclusion Policy

CSR Policy

d 9 9

Learning Policy

9 9 9

HomekFirst has been a proponent of using technology to
drive efficient processes with lowest carbon footprint,
have high degree of ownership across its employees led
by a professional board and management team with top
notch governance standards. In this relentless journey of
becoming a trusted and respected institution, we have
also definde some key policies which bring out
consistency in application as we scale.

Equal Opportunity Policy
Health and Safety Policy
Fair Advertising Policy

Environment Management Policy

Timely training is conducted to spread awareness about these policies. Gamification modules for spreading awareness

about POSH Policy, Cybersecurity, Code of Conduct Training,.

Integrated Annual Report
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Ethics & Governance

Robust Governance Framework

Coupled with strong ethical practices, HomeFirst has a
robust governance framework.

Strong governance ensures that the company is
operating in compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations, minimizing the risk of legal and regulatory
penalties. It ensures that the company is managed
effectively, with clear lines of authority and
accountability, and that decision-making is transparent
and fair. This, in turn, helps to build trust and confidence
among customers, investors, and other stakeholders,
which is crucial for the long-term success of the
company. Finally, strong governance enables the
company to identify and manage risks effectively,
ensuring that it is able to navigate any challenges that
arise and capitalize on opportunities for growth and
expansion - thereby ensuring the stability, sustainability,

and success of the company.

Transparency, accountability and integrity form the root
of a strong governance framework. Our value system is
based on these core values. Our governance processes
are designed to go beyond compliance and adopt the
best practices. The Board of Directors are at the helm of
decision-making and exercises good control while the
management team supports the board with the
execution. The Board and the Board Committees,
institute policies as well as frameworks and helps
monitor them periodically. We believe in being
transparent in our operations and make timely
disclosures in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), Security and Exchanges Board of
India (SEBI), Reserve Bank of India (RBI), National Housing
Bank (NHB), National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay
Stock Exchange (BSE).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board of Directors

Board Level Audit Nomination and | Stakeholder | Corporate Social | Risk IT Strate .
S Committee | Remuneration Relationship | Responsibility Management Committi}; Comp!lance Inte.rnal
Committee Committee Committee Committee Function AUd't‘
¢ Dedicated Function
Eh'ef | * Independent
’ ompliance function
Management Credit E:j::sr;: Asset-liability Officer (CCO)
Committee Committee " Committee ) * Risk Based
Committee * Nodal Officer Internal Audit
for NHB
. - ® Regular
5 )
Regulatory Capital Risk Assessed in ICAAP Stress Test Nﬁgfs?igl Branch Audit
compliance
| | ® Annual HO
® Periodic Process Audit
® Market Risk e Strategic Risk Compliance
* CRM Risk  Cyber & info Risk * Credit Risk Tracker
Risk ok * Reputation Risk e Credit Concentration e |jquidity Risk
Management Credit Ris * HRRisk * Interest Rate Risk o Eresli Conaaniaiitemn
g ) ’ > .
K e Operation Risk e Compliance Risk ey
Framewor o LiquidityRisk e ESG Risk
Risk Assessment Risk Control Reporting
® Regulatory Approach * Mitigation / Risk Limits ® Regulatory
o Credit/Property Criteria e Deviation approval matrix e Internal MIS
e Parameter tracking ¢ Disclosures
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l Sustainability Report

Codes and Policies to Support Sustainability Governance

In an attempt to strengthen its governance mechanism, HomeFirst has in place a number of frameworks and
policies, some of which are:
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Code of Conduct for
Board of Directors and
Senior Management Personnel

Code of practices and procedures
for fair disclosure of UPSI

Fair Practice Code

Fit and Proper Policy

Internal Guidelines on
Corporate Governance

KYC-AML Policy

Vigil Mechanism and
Whistle Blower Policy

Environmental Social
and Governance Policy

Equal Opportunity Policy

Diversity Inclusion Policy

Policy for enquiry for
leak of UPSI
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Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

Health and Safety Policy

CSR Policy

Human Rights Policy

POSH Policy

Related Party
Transactions Policy

Policy to promote
Diversity of BOD

Anti-bribery and
Anti-corruption policy

Fair Advertising Policy

Learning Policy

Environment Management
Policy
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https://www.homefirstindia.com/files/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20Board%20of%20Directors%20and%20Senior%20Management%20Personnel.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Code%20of%20practices%20and%20procedures%20for%20fair%20disclosure%20of%20UPSI.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Fair%20Practice%20Code.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Fit%20and%20Proper%20Policy.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Internal%20Guidelines%20on%20Corporate%20Governance.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/KYC-AML%20Policy.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Vigil%20Mechanism%20and%20Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Home%20First%20ESG%20Policy.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Equal%20Opportunity%20Policy.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Diversity%20%26%20Inclusion%20Policy.pdf
https://homefirsthttps://homefirstindia.com/files/Policy%20for%20enquiry%20for%20leak%20of%20UPSI.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Health%20and%20Safety%20Policy.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Human%20Rights%20Policy.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/POSH_Policy_31-03-2023.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Policy%20to%20promote%20Diversity%20of%20BOD.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Anti-Bribery%20and%20Anti-Corruption%20Policy.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Fair%20Advertising%20Policy.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Learning%20Policy.pdf
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Environment%20Management%20Policy.pdf
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Board Composition
The Managing Director and CEO is responsible for the

HomekFirst Finance Company India Limited has a diverse day-to-day operations of the company and provides
and experienced Board of Directors that is responsible valuable insights into the company's operations and
for overseeing the company's strategic direction, risk strategic direction. He is also responsible for ensuring
management, and overall governance. The Board is that the company's activities are aligned with its overall
composed of 8 members, including 4 independent mission and values.
directors, 3 nominee directors and 1 executive director
(Managing Director and CEQ). Overall, the composition of the company's Board of
Directors reflects the company's commitment to strong
The independent directors bring a wealth of experience governance and responsible management, and it
and expertise to the Board, with backgrounds in ensures that the company is well-positioned to navigate
technology, operations, finance, law, and management. the challenges and opportunities of the affordable
They play a critical role in ensuring that the company is housing finance industry in India.

managed in the best interests of all stakeholders and that
the highest standards of corporate governance are
maintained.

The table below gives the detailed composition of the Board as of Mar'23:

Name DIN Designation

Mr. Deepak Satwalekar 00009627 Chairman & Independent Director
Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel 02277155 Independent Director

Mr. Anuj Srivastava 09369327 Independent Director

Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee 02569078 Independent Director

Mr. Divya Sehgal 01775308 Nominee Director

Mr. Maninder Singh Juneja 02680016 Nominee Director

Mr. Narendra Ostawal 06530414 Nominee Director

Mr. Manoj Viswanathan 01741612 Managing Director and Chief

Executive Officer

We have a young and diverse board, and this is illustrated by the below numbers:

Age Female Male Total
Under 30 years - - - i i 25%
30-50 years 2 2 4 Women
> 50 years - 4 4 Directors
Total 2 6 8
Declaration of Independence Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, relating to inclusion
All the independent directors have submitted a of their name in the databank of independent directors
declaration of independence, stating that they meet the maintained by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.
criteria of independence provided under section 149(6)
of the Act, as amended, and regulation 16(1)(b) and 25 of The terms and conditions of appointment of
the SEBI Listing Regulations. The independent directors Independent Directors are available at Terms
have also confirmed compliance with the provisions of and Condition for appointment of Independent
Director.
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Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors plays a crucial role in the
company's success, and the Board Evaluation process is
an important tool for ensuring that the Board is
functioning effectively and fulfilling its responsibilities.

The Board Evaluation process is conducted annually and
is overseen by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board. The evaluation process is
designed to assess the performance of the Board as a
whole, as well as the performance of individual directors,
and to identify areas for improvement. The evaluation
assesses the effectiveness of the Board in areas such as
strategy, risk management, governance, and financial
performance, as well as the performance of individual
directors. The results of the evaluation are shared with
the Board, and any areas for improvement are identified
and addressed. This feedback helps to ensure that the
Board is functioning effectively and that the company is
being managed in the best interests of all stakeholders.

Board Committees

To facilitate timely and well evaluated outcomes, Board
Committees have been set up and entrusted with
different responsibilities. The decisions taken by these
Board Committees are communicated to the Board in
the subsequent meetings. The various Board
Committees are

< Audit Committee

<X Nomination and Remuneration Committee
< Stakeholder Relationship Committee

<3 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
<3 Risk Management Committee

< IT Strategy Committee

Additionally, there are Management Committees
dedicated towards specific purposes - such as

< Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
<. Grievance Redressal Committee

Further details regarding the objective, role and
composition of the Board Meetings along with meetings

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. M m

held during the year detailed in the Report of the
Directors on Corporate Governance on page no 143.

HomeFirst understands the importance of conducting
operations in a sustainable manner and has a dedicated
internal team committed towards the implementation of
ESG-related activities.

The ESG Execution Team is led by management team
members along with the team. A monthly ESG dashboard
is reported to the management team to track the
progress of ESG-related initiatives. Quarterly updates of
ESG plans and status updates are done in the Board
Meeting. The ESG policy is also reviewed annually for any
changes if required.

To further the seriousness and commitment towards
ESG goals, the Company has adopted policies such as Fair
advertising, Learning policy, Diversity and Inclusion
policy, Human Rights Policy and Environment
Management Policy.

Grievance Redressal Mechanism

Lastly, a strong governance framework is not possible
without a strong grievance redressal mechanism.

For Employees:

We also have an employee grievance redressal
mechanism in place. Any employee can access the HR
team to raise a complaint and the same is then taken up
by the HR team who travel to the location (in case of
conflict) or reach out on phone to resolve the complaint/
grievance/ issue.

Employees can raise complaints on the LEENA Al portal.
The company follows an open-door policy and is a lean
organization. Employees have access to the
management/ business heads/ HR to raise their
concerns.

In addition, we have a whistle-blower policy which
provides a formal platform to share grievances on
various matters.
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For Customers:

To ensure we provide the best customer service and
address any concerns of the customer - we have a
Customer Grievance Redressal policy. The objective of
the policy is to have a clearly defined and easily accessible
mechanism for dealing with and settlement of customer
complaints and grievances through proper service
delivery and review mechanisms and to ensure prompt
redressal and review of customer grievances. The
process is uploaded on our website for a wider audience.

For Complaints and Grievances, you can contact as
per the stages below

a.Level-1

You can contact the nearest physical branch OR
alternatively can call at 180030008425 OR write to us at
loanfirst@homefirstindia.com for any queries
/complaints. Our Branch Manager or Customer Service
Team would resolve it within 7 working days from the
date of receipt of the complaint.

b.Level-2

In case we have not met your expectations at Level 1, you
can escalate it to the Central Customer Service Team at
the following email Id and we would ensure your
issue/concern is resolved within 15 working days from

the date of escalation or your issue.
Email id - query@homefirstindia.com.

c.Level-3

In unlikely scenario where you are not satisfied with
resolution provided to you at Level-2, you can escalate
the complaint to our Grievance Redressal Officer who
would ensure that your issue is resolved to your
satisfaction within 30 working days of receipt of the
complaintinthe Corporate Office.

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. M m

You can connect us at the below mentioned address and
emailid:

Mr. Gaurav Mohta (Grievance Redressal Officer)
Home First Finance Company India Limited

511, Acme Plaza, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East)
Mumbai-400 059

Phone: 8880549911

Email: complaints@homefirstindia.com

Alternative Remedy:

In case you are still unsatisfied with the resolution
provided at Level-3 by our Grievance Redressal Team, pls
feel free to approach the National Housing Bank (NHB)
via the following modes:

Online mode: https://grids.nhbonline.org.in

Offline mode: Alternatively write to the National Housing
Bank in a prescribed format available at
https://nhb.org.in/en/complaint-cell-against-hfcs and
post the same to:

Complaint Redressal Cell

National Housing Bank

Department of Regulation and Supervision

4th Floor, Core 5A, India Habitat Centre, Lodhi Road
New Delhi- 110003

The complaints can also be mailed at crcell@nhb.org.in
For Investors:

We have an internally adopted Investor Grievance Policy.
The investors/ shareholders can mail to the following
address or alternatively call on the given landline
number:

Home First Finance Company India

Mr. Shreyans Bachhawat

Company Secretary

511, Acme Plaza, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri East,
Mumbai 400 059

Email: corporate@homefirstindia.com

Tel No: 022 6694 0386
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Ethics & Governance

Investors / Shareholders can also register their queries/complaints on the below alternatives:

“SEBI Complaints Redress System”
https://scores.gov.in

KFin Technologies Limited (Share Transfer & Registrar Agent)

(formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)

Selenium Tower-B Plot 31 & 32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Hyderabad - 500 032 Telangana, India

Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com
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Fortifying Data Security And Privacy

HomekFirst is a tech-driven affordable housing finance
company. During credit evaluation, more than 100+ data
points of a customer are collected. Hence data security
and privacy become critical components of our
operations. We understand that our customers trust us
with their data and as a responsible company, it is our
responsibility to safeguard the data from unauthorized
access, use or disclosure. In this chapter, we discuss the
measures established at the organization to ensure data
security and privacy.

Data Security Measures

We have implemented robust data security measures to
protect our customers' data from unauthorized access,
use, or disclosure. Some of the measures we have taken
include:

Access Controls

We restrict access to sensitive data only to authorized
personnel. We have implemented a role-based access
control system that ensures that only those who require
access to customer data for their job functions have
accesstoit.

Encryption

We encrypt all sensitive data, including customer
personal and financial information, during transmission
and storage. We use industry-standard encryption
algorithms to ensure that the data remains secure. Our
applications/ servers/ LMS/ CRM/ Database all
communicate with each other with the help of APIs which
are encrypted using the latest security algorithms. All
APIs are IP restricted to prevent DDoS attacks
(Distributed Denial of Service Attacks) and to ensure that
the privileged users have access to these APIs. Further,
we have multifactor enabled and also Salesforce follows
the best security standards. Salesforce is I1SO 27001
certified. Salesforce is the CRM platform used by us.
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Firewalls and Intrusion Detection Systems

We have implemented firewalls and intrusion detection
systems to protect our network from unauthorized
access. These systems help us detect and prevent
unauthorized access attempts.

Regular System Audits

We conduct regular audits of our systems to ensure that
they are secure and that there are no vulnerabilities that
could be exploited by malicious actors. We conduct IT
Audits once every 2 years. We also conduct an internal
vulnerability assessment of all apps of the Company. All
our applications have gone through VAPT (Vulnerability
Assessment and Penetration Testing) and we have
received the requisite certification for the same.

IT Policy

We have a robust IT infrastructure to support our
performance. We also have a detailed IT policy which
details the processes and controls with respect to the IT
system. The policy is amended from time to time in order
to be compliant with the guidelines of NHB as well as
other regulatory bodies.

Employee Training and Awareness

We train our employees on our IT policies, procedures
and cyber-security. In addition to the training, we
conduct awareness regarding data protection, security
and privacy. Time to time emails are sent to the
employees to make them aware of malpractices
prevalent in the digital world and to avoid falling prey to
phishing attacks.

Data Privacy Measures

We are committed to protecting our customers' privacy
and ensuring their personal information is not used or
disclosed inappropriately. Some of the measures we
have taken to protect our customers' privacy include:
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Fortifying Data Security And Privacy

Data Privacy Policy

We have a comprehensive data privacy policy that
outlines the measures we have taken to protect our
customers' privacy. The policy is communicated to all our
employees and is hosted on our website.

Consent

We obtain explicit consent from our customers before
collecting, using, or disclosing their personal information.
We also inform our customers of the purposes for which
their data will be used. Through our HomeFirst Customer
App, we equip our customers to carry out a number of
transactions such as accessing their loan statements and
raising queries besides making payments. The
application empowers the customer to access his
personal information in strict privacy settings.

Data Retention

We retain customer data only for as long as it is necessary
to fulfil the purposes for which it was collected.

Third-Party Vendors

We ensure that our third-party vendors who handle
customer data adhere to the same data privacy
standards that we follow. We have contracts in place that
require our vendors to implement data security and
privacy measures. Data is shared with third parties only
on a need-to-know basis subject to confidentiality
obligations vide exhaustive service agreements executed
forthe arrangement.

Data Request Management

The Credit Information Companies (Regulation) Act, 2005
and the respective RBI and NHB Directives state that all
credit institutions should become a member of a Credit
Information Bureau. To comply with this, we presently
provide monthly information on our loans and EMI
payments to TransUnion CIBIL, Equifax Credit
Information Services Pvt. Ltd., CRIF High Mark Credit

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. M m

Information Services, and Experian Credit Information
Company of India Ltd. Information with respect to
security interests created on any asset or property is
registered with CERSAI. Apart from this customer data is
also disclosed for various compliance purposes such as
statutory audits, internal audits and investor disclosures.

Data Breach Response Plan

Despite our best efforts, data breaches can occur. We
have a data breach response plan in place that outlines
the steps we will take in the event of a data breach. Some
of the steps we will take include:

Containment

We will immediately contain the breach to prevent
further dataloss.

Notification

We will notify the appropriate authorities and our
customers as soon as possible.

Investigation

We will conduct a thorough investigation of the breach to
determine its scope and impact.

Remediation

We will take appropriate measures to remediate the
breach and prevent it from happening again.

Business Continuity Plan

HomeFirst has board-approved policies on Business
Continuity Plan and Disaster Recovery Plan. Both the risk
management framework and its BCP Policy involve
business effect assessments. With periodic reports, the IT
Strategy Committee and the Board maintain oversight of
how BCP is operating. We conduct BCP testing annually
by selecting hypothetical scenarios to invoke the BCP
Plan and check the effectiveness of the BCP/disaster
recovery plans.
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Stakeholder Engagement

The company's overall success and growth is a result of its relationship with its stakeholders. HomeFirst understands and
identifies the importance of the role of varied stakeholders and invests in developing a strong and lasting relationship.
These relationships are built on mutual trust and the ability to deliver. Our key stakeholders include Customers,
employees, Shareholders/investors, Regulators, Lenders and Credit Rating Agencies, Communities & NGOs, Research

Analysts,Channel Partners and key partners as well as Auditors.

Stakeholder Group Modes of Engagement Frequency Purpose and Scope
D« Customersatisfaction surveysand Ongoing + To understand customer needs,
) feedback provide suitable loan products,
) -InteractionatBranches and provide timely assistance
(XX ) * Telebanking - Customer Care and support - thereby providing
[ ] + Digital Channels - Customer App, SMS, top quality customer service
Customers WhatsApp, Social media platform,
Chatbot, Video Call
«Pamphlets
* House Visits/Work Visits
D «Email communications Ongoing *+ To provide training and
) «Physical/virtual meetings development opportunities,
o ) *Appraisal Process assess performance, and ensure a
.,g, +Online Surveys positive work environment.
(— + Employee Engagement Initiatives
Employees *Training and development sessions
*Wellness and counselling sessions
* Employee Welfare Schemes
b . Quarterly reports, integrated reports Ongoing + To stay abreast of developments in
) and pressreleases the Company
. ) - Investor meets and Annual General + To provide updates on financial
'.' Meetings (AGMs), including virtual performance, discuss strategic
aas investor meets and virtual AGMs initiatives, and receive feedback
Shareholders / . Emgil, SMS, newspaper a.dv<.ertise.ment, andinputfrom shar.eholdersj
notice board, website, intimation to * To ensure compliance with all
Investors stock exchanges, quarterly financials relevantlaws and regulations.
and investor meetings/conferences
.@. D« Email, one-on-one meetings, Ongoing * To ensure compliance with regul-
aaa ) concalls, video- conference, ations and guidelines, obtain

Regulators,
Lenders and
Credit Rating

Agencies

Integrated Annual Report

mandatory filings with
regulators

Home First Finance Company India Ltd. M

necessary approvals, and
maintain good relationships with
regulators.

To provide lenders with accurate
and timely information about the
company's financial perform-
ance, operations, and risk profile.
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Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder Group

o oo

&

Communities
& NGOs

©

Research
Analysts

o oo

b

Channel
Partners &
Key Partners

o oo

o oo

A
&
¥

Auditors
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Modes of Engagement Frequency

* Project Assessment Ongoing
reviews

+Jointassessmentof projects

« Community welfare
programs

*Implementation of CSR
Initiatives

* One-on-one meetings, Ongoing
concallsandvideo-conferences

* Regular meetings/ mails/ Ongoing
phone calls

+ Through regular audits of the As per regulatory

financial statements and requirements and

other regulatory compliance the company's

requirements. internal audit
schedule.

Home First Finance Company India Ltd. M
|
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Purpose and Scope

To contribute to the community,
promote social responsibility, and
maintain a positive reputation

To provide research analysts with
accurate and timely information
about the company's financial
performance, operations, and
strategicinitiatives.

To collaborate with strategic
alliance partners to leverage their
expertise, capabilities, and
resources to achieve shared
objectives.

To provide an independent
assessment of the company's
financial statements, identify
areas of risk, and ensure
compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. The auditors also
provide recommendations for
improving financial management
practices and internal controls.
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Materiality Assessment

Materiality assessment is essential to identify and
prioritize sustainability risks and opportunities. It helps
the company understand which environmental, social,
and governance (ESG) issues which are most relevant to
the business and stakeholders, and how to integrate

these issues into decision-making processes. By
conducting materiality assessment, we identified areas
where we can improve our sustainability performance,
reduce risks, and create value for our stakeholders.

The following steps were taken
as part of the exercise:

Identifying key
ESG risks relevant
to the Home First's
operations

Evaluating the
impact of ESG
risks
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Materiality Assessment

Following is the list of material topics and the capitals impacted by them:

Sr. No.

10

1

12

Integrated Annual Report

Material Topic

Corporate
Governance

Risk
Management

Code of Conduct
and Business
Ethics

Sustainable
Finance

Employee Training
and Development

Employment and
Labour Practices

Data Protection
and Privacy

Health and Safety

Customer
Satisfaction

Community
Relations

Operational
Eco-efficiency

Climate Resilience

Financial

Capital

Category

Governance

Governance

Governance

Governance

Social

Social

Social

Social

Social

Social

Environmental

Environmental

Capital Impacted

RE©
AY
RE @
A Y
RE @
AY
RE @
AY

RRAE

Do

Z

&

RE @
AY

L4

Why is this material

Corporate governance is the key for smooth business
operations. HomeFirst strives to adopt best practices and
ensures adherence to all applicaple regulatory
requirements.

Risk management is essential to proactively evaluate the
possible risks across the business organisation and
processes and implement measures for mitigating and
addressing the same.

Code of Conduct and Business Ethics is critical to
ensure ethical conduct of business operations, legal
compliance and building trust of all the stakeholders.

Sustainable Finance is required to ensure financial
inclusion of the lesser privileged community. This also
aids in promoting growth of the Indian economy.

To ensure competitive advantage and drive the business,
it is essential to have a well trained workforce. The
employees and improve their productivity.

For efficient conduct of business and adherence to the
rules and regulations, it is essential for the company to
have compliant employment and labour practices.
This inturn attracts and retains talent.

HomeFirst is a tech driven company functioning in a
services sector, hence Data protection and privacy is
very critical to ensure responsible usage of data,
appropriate storage and confidentiality of the data

To ensure health and safety of employees is of paramount
importance for the company and sustainable development
of its employees.

Customer satisfaction is of primary focus for HomeFirst
Customer first approach and providing quality service to
our customers forms the core of our business operations.

HomeFirst believes in working for the benefit of the
society by implementing and adopting various CSR
measures. The impact created by way of CSR initiatives
is a reflection of HomeFirst values.

In our endeavour to provide faster service to customers
with high degree of accuracy and efficiency, we strive to
digitise our processes and thereby promote operational
eco- efficiency.

To move towards low -carbon economy, HomeFirst strives
to adopt measures to be more eco-friendly and energy
efficient.

SoIC|a.I an(:]v Intellectual O Human Natural
3§§ Re ationship M\ Capital Capital
Capital
Home First Finance Company India Ltd. W m EEN EEm 5
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Financial Capital

Financial capital is the lifeblood of a balance sheet
business such as a housing finance company. For
HomefFirst, it becomes all the more crucial since financial
capital forms the foundation for onward lending to our
customers. The major inputs that comprise financial
capital for a Housing Finance Company are Equity,
Borrowings and Assets. Our recent achievement of

Particulars FY20
AUM (in T Crs) 3618
NIM 5.1%
ROA 2.7%
ROE 10.9%
Opex to Asset 3.5%
GNPA 1.0%
NNPA 0.8%

Sustainability Report

crossing milestone of ¥7,000+ Crs of Assets Under
Management is a testament to our ability to managing
these inputs, and achieving our objectives of growth,
profitability, as well as customer satisfaction. Our strong
financial capital has resulted in superior profitability and
sustainable growth.

FY21 FY22 FY23
4141 5308 7198
4.7% 5.4% 6.4%
2.5% 3.6%N 3.9%
8.7% 11.8%* 13.5%
2.7% 2.7% 3.0%
1.8% 2.3%"N 1.6%NN
1.2% 1.8%NAN 1.1%NA

Mdjusted RoA at 3.6% computed considering Adjusted PAT for FY22 without the impact of one-time deferred tax liability adjustment

#Adjusted RoE at 11.8% computed considering Adjusted PAT for FY22 without the impact of one-time deferred tax liability adjustment

AN Qur Gross Stage 3 (GNPA) as at Mar23 stands at 1.6% in line with RBI circular dated 12 Nov 2021 (Mar22: 2.3%). Prior to such classification, it stands at 0.9%
(Mar22: 1.3%). Our Net Stage 3 (NNPA) as at Mar'23 stands at 1.1% in line with RBI circular dated 12 Nov 2021. (Mar'22: 1.8%) Prior to such classification, it stands at

0.5% (Mar22: 0.9%).

Profitability

The company has successfully delivered in all areas - such
as return on equity, return on assets as well as managed
to optimise the cost of operations along with the cost of
borrowings. Our net profit improved by 31% y-o-y, while
our cost-to-income ratio has remained range bound at
35.7% (from 34.0% the year before).

Diversified Funding

During the year, the company raised ¥3,618 Crs across
diversified sources of funding. The borrowings mix been
consistent over the years reflecting the high quality of our
balance sheet. We ended the year with 26 lending
relationships. During the year we added 5 new banks i.e.
Qatar National Bank, J&K Bank, Karnataka Bank, Yes
Bank and Shinhan Bank (Seoul based South Korean
Bank).

Despite a tumultuous interest rate environment, we
managed to close the year with a COB of 7.4% -

Integrated Annual Report
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showcasing that HomeFirst has been successful in
building a strong liability franchise.

We were also successful in raising 3280 Crs from IFC - a
reputed multi-lateral agency and a member of the
prestigious World Bank Group. The funds were raised in
the form of INR denominated, senior secured, rated,
unlisted, redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures with
a tenor of up to seven years. The proceeds will be utilized
to provide financing for retail buyers of affordable
housing and green affordable housing units,
encouraging homeownership for low-income segments,
and supporting the development of green affordable
housing.

During the year, U.S. International Development Finance
Corporation (DFC) approved a $75 million loan to
HomeFirst, to support affordable housing mortgage
loans to women low-income borrowers.
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Financial Capital

H EENE BN

During the fiscal year, we entered into co-lending tie-ups outflows across all tenure buckets. Given that we have a
with the “Central Bank of India” apart from our previous long term underlying asset, we do not borrow any
tie-up with “Union Bank of India”. Our Borrowings Commercial Papers or short-term funds.

Strategy rests on a prudent ALM with inflows higher than

Borrowings Mix and Cost of Borrowing Trend
oo

DA& Co-lending [ nco M NHB Refinance NBFC

l Public Sector Banks l Pvt. Sector or Banks -®- COB% (Represents quarterly avg.)

20% 22% 23% 25% 23% 22% 21% 19% 19%
.

7.2%

6%

29%

1%

25%

19% 32% 329%
Mar'21 Jun'21 Sep'21 Dec'21 Mar'22 Jun'22 Sep'22 Dec'22 Mar'23

Robust ALM requirements were duly adhered to. As at Mar'23, the

company held a liquidity buffer of 1,802 Crs comprising
We also have cumulative positive ALM gaps in all buckets. of unencumbered cash and cash equivalent of ¥537 Crs
ALM framework is monitored in tandem with Company’s and 665 Crs of un-availed sanctions from the banks and
business strategy and risk management. Further LCR %600 Crs of un-availed sanctions from NHB.
ALM Position - Cumulative

oo
Surplus (XCrs) 631 759 880 1,285 2,431 2,041
11,381
Inflow § Outflow
6,175 6,556
4,890
2,903
1,988 2,023
1,409
778 1,229 .
- O
0-3 months 3-6 months 6-12 months 1-3 years 3-5 years 5+ years
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Performance of Our Book

Our prudent credit underwriting, strong collections
strategy and robust risk management has resulted in a
splendid performance of our assets and improvement in
the NPA % during the year. Our Gross Stage 3 (GNPA)
stands at 1.6% in line with the RBI circular dated 12 Nov
2021. (Mar'22: 2.3%). Our delinquency buckets have
reached pre-covid levels.

Provisions

Our ECL provision stood at 1.0% of the total POS as at
Mar'23. We continue to be conservative with the
provisions. Our Provision Coverage ratio stood at 59.5%

FY21
Rating Agency  Short Term Long Term
ICRA ICRAAT+ ICRA A+
Stable Outlook
CARE NA CARE A+
Positive Outlook
India Ratings IND A1+ NA

Integrated Annual Report

Short Term Long Term

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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(compared to 47.1% Mar'22). Prior to NPA reclassification
as per RBI circular, PCR stood at 104.8% vs 83.6% as of
Mar'22.

Credit Rating

Our focus on profitability, continued improvement in
asset quality coupled with a strong balance sheet and
funding have helped us in improving our credit rating
from A+ Positive outlook to AA- with Stable Outlook by
both ICRA as well as CARE. Our continued efforts will help
us further improve our ratings in the future and we
believe itll help us raise funds at lower costs.

FY22 FY23

Short Term Long Term

ICRA A1+ ICRA A+ ICRA AT+ [ICRA AA-
Positive Outlook Stable Outlook
NA CARE A+ NA CARE AA -
Positive Outlook Stable Outlook
IND A1+ IND AA- IND A1+ IND AA -
Stable Outlook Stable Outlook
[ | m EEN EEN 55
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Natural Capital

The affordable housing industry has been growing steadily
for quite some time now but post-COVID it has witnessed
remarkable growth. Even though we are going through a
high-interest rate cycle, ground-level demand has been
strong and often better than we all expected. All the recent
studies and industry reports share a similar optimistic
view. While this forecast is encouraging, the pressing
global concern of climate change casts a shadow on our
future. According to the International Energy Agency,
buildings contribute nearly 40% of global energy-related
carbon dioxide (CO,) emissions, primarily from residential
structures. Recognizing the urgency, the Government of
India has prioritized green growth in the Budget 2023,
targeting the attainment of net-zero carbon emissions by
2070. As the second-largest employment generator, the
real estate industry will play a significant role in realizing
these ambitious goals. HomeFirst, being a leading housing
finance company in India, will focus its energies on self-
built affordable home space to promote eco-friendly
construction and provide access to financial support and
guidance to first-time home buyers and unorganized
developers.

To create some real impact, we
have started our journey towards
turning individual homes into

green homes!
o oo

Building more eco-friendly homes is crucial for several
reasons, particularly in the context of Indian affordable
housing. First and foremost, eco-friendly homes help
reduce the strain on the environment by minimizing

What Makes a Home Green Home?

Use of Eco friendly building materials
during construction to reduce carbon
emission

q

Use of energy efficient lighting, cooling
N systems and other appliances

Adoption of sustainable lifestyle. Mindful
of water wastage and usage of cheap plastics

| R
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energy consumption, conserving water resources, and
decreasing greenhouse gas emissions. With India's rapidly
growing population and increasing urbanization, the
demand for affordable housing is soaring. By
incorporating sustainable practices and utilizing
renewable energy sources, eco-friendly homes not only
contribute to the preservation of the environment but also
help lower energy costs for homeowners, making housing
more affordable in the long run.

However, while the demand for green homes is gathering
pace, there is still a general lack of awareness and
expertise about the concept among the builders and local
contractors. This often leads to the affordable housing
segment regarding green homes as a luxury they can't
afford to indulge in. However, in reality, over a period of
time green construction might actually work out to be
more cost-effective than regular home construction.

Initiating Project Green Homes last year, we had
conducted initial primary research by surveying homes in
our portfolio. Furthermore, we also developed a Green
Calculator to showcase the cost benefit of green homes to
end users. Contemporary green rating mechanisms are
focused towards apartment complexes and gated
societies. This misses out on a major chunk of India's
population that resides in tier 2 and 3 cities, where
individual homes are a norm. In order to understand the
challenges and feasibility of building green, affordable,
individual homes, we surveyed 500+ homes. Using our
learnings from this, we have helped in creating the
framework of green measures for self-build homes with
the authorities like IFC and GRIHA to bring a new wave of
green homesinIndia.

‘.’ Provision of natural light, ventilation
L, ¥,  and protection from heat

~O-  Integrating renewable energy for daily

consumption like solar panels for water heaters

Recycling of water, rain water harvesting units

@ and effective waste management
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Natural Capital

IFC Project

International Finance Corporation (IFC) is a member of
the World Bank Group and the largest global
development institution focused on the private sector in
developing countries. HomeFirst has partnered with IFC
to take our Green Project to the next level. IFC has
extended a line of credit to HomeFirst worth ¥ 280 crores
to be utilised towards Affordable Housing (AFH) retail
buyers and developing the green portfolio. In
collaboration with IFC - FIG advisory, we are creating a
complete green housing framework for evaluation
and certification process. As a part of the initial steps
for the same, IFC - FIG advisory has been instrumental
in training our teams and they are helping us in
conducting green audits across markets to eventually
evaluate and finalise Green Certification parameters.
Once the framework is complete, we can drive further
awareness and promotions around Green Housing
with a green subsidy of 2.4% on home loan amounts
provided to green certified customers.

Sustainability Report

Other Green Initiatives:

In order to promote the use of green energy, ensure
regular power supply and cut down on the utility bills we
have also installed Solar panels at 4 schools in Narol,
Ahmedabad and at a hospital run by Shree Manav Sewa
Sangh Senior Citizens Home.

Continuing our contributions towards a green and
cleaner environment, this year HomeFirst provided
40,000+ fruit tree saplings to the marginal farmers in a
effort to help them in developing an extra source of
income. We have provided 5 solar pumps in Palghar
District along with a drip irrigation facility to another set
of farmers. Currently, they are dependent on a single
crop but with our initiative they will be able to multicrop.
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Carbon Emissions:

During the year, we have set up systems to understand
our GHG Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions. We have
tracked our electricity consumption for the current fiscal.
For the purpose of Scope 1 emissions, we have
considered only HVAC refrigerant gas refills since the
company does not have any diesel generator sets nor
does it have any company owned vehicles. For Scope 2
emissions, we have considered our energy consumption
across all the branches as well as the head-office and
corporate offices for the fiscal year ended 2023. The
Company has partnered with a leading environment and

Parameter

kWh

Total electricity

consumption (A) 618795.76 kWh

Total fuel consumption (B) Not tracked
Energy consumption through

other sources (C)

Total energy consumption

(A+B+C) 618795.76 kWh

Energy intensity per rupee of
turnover (Total energy
consumption/ turnover in
rupees)

782.31 KWh/R
crores of turnover

Energy intensity (optional)
the relevant metric may be
selected by the entity

623.16kWh/
employee

Integrated Annual Report
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research institution, Centre for Environmental Research
& Education (CERE) to help measure and monitor
HomekFirst Finance's carbon footprint. CERE provides
technical and domain expertise and assists the
Corporation in determining its carbon emissions
pertaining to its own operations. CERE has brought its
extensive expertise in the technical and domain aspects
of GHG Inventorisation to support HomeFirst Finance's
efforts to accurately determine the carbon footprint
associated with its operations in India. HomeFirst Finance
has successfully assessed its carbon footprint across all
its office locations. Below is our energy consumption and
emissions data.

FY 2022 (Previous Financial Year)

Home First Finance Company India Ltd. M

T) kWh T)

2.23 Terajoules Not tracked Not tracked

Not tracked Not tracked Not tracked

2.23 Terajoules Not tracked Not tracked

0.003 Terajoules/X Not tracked Not tracked
crores of turnover

0.002 Ty/employee Not tracked Not tracked

m HEEN EEN s3
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Parameter Units

Total Scope 1
emissions (Break-
up of the GHG into
CO,, CH, N,O,
HFCs, PFCs,

SF,, NF,, if available)

Metric tonnes of Coz
equivalent

Total Scope 2
emissions (Break-
up of the GHG into
Co,, CH,, N,0O,
HFCs, PFCs,

SF,, NF,, if available)

Metric tonnes of Coz
equivalent

Total Scope 1 and
Scope 2 emissions
per rupee of

turnover

Total Scope 1 and
Scope 2 emission
intensity (optional)

- the relevant metric

may be selected by the
entity

FY 2023
(Current Financial Year)

15.02

439.34

0.57 Metric tonnes
of CO, equivalent /
crores of turnover

0.46 Metric tonnes of
CO:z equivalent /
employee

Sustainability Report

FY 2022
(Previous Financial Year)

Not Tracked

Not Tracked

Not Tracked

Not Tracked

The conversion factor considered for electricity emissions is 0.71 as per Central Electricity Authority (CEA) - CO,
Baseline Database for the Indian Power Sector, version 18 (EF incl RES)
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Human Capital

Our differentiated people strategy backed by the creativity
of our young and vibrant staff has enabled us to be rated as
Great Place to Work for three years in a row. Our passionate
employees with an entrepreneurial mindset, who work with
a single-minded customer-centric approach, is undoubtedly
the most important asset in our journey to be one of the
country's most trusted and respected affordable housing
finance companies.

HomeFirst's people strategy involves attracting, nurturing of
talent and retaining the best talent and bringing out the best
in them. Continuous training and development activities
ensures our employees to stay ahead of the curve and

Sustainability Report

provides the company with competitive advantage and
drives the business.

As part of our employee engagement activity, we have
enabled a 2-way communication platform called NAOL TV -
between the employees and the leadership team. Wherein
we have an open floor where the employees can ask
questions and seek answers from the management team.
This helps drive the company”s goals across the organisation
and how they could contribute to the achievement of these
goals. The episodes are a mix of guidance as well as fun -
showcasing the human face of the senior team to all the
employees on live TV. This in turn helps create a sense of
belonging towards the organization.

The following factors are key to our unique people approach since they help us foster a positive work environment and are
usefulin attracting, retaining, and developing high-quality workforce.

Diversity &
Inclusion

Talent Retention &
Recognition

Diversity & Inclusion

We are committed to hiring the right people for the right job
and training them intensively. We encourage a diverse work
environment and are an equal-opportunity employer. We
are committed to treating all our employees and applicants
fairly. The company's commitment to advancing equality and
conducting business in accordance with the values of social
justice, respect, and freedom of expression is expressed in its
Equal Opportunity Policy. The Company's policy is to
undertake all reasonable efforts to hire and promote people
based on their skills and capabilities. The firm will appoint,
train, develop, and promote individuals based solely on their
merit and abilities. We also practice Equal Pay for Equal work
and do not discriminate on the basis of gender or any other
factor. We also have a Diversity & Inclusion Policy.

Integrated Annual Report

Recruitment
Strategy

Employee Wellbeing
and Benefits
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Learning &
Development

Employee Engagement
Programs

Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of women to men

Management 1.11

Non-Management

-Branch
Sales 1.13
Service 1.31
-HO
LO-L2 0.82
L3-L4 0.69
L5 0.63

L stands for Level where: LO-L1: Individual Contributors, Frontline staff and
Customer Facing roles | L2-L3: First time managers, Manage a team or a
department with independent responsibility or a couple of Branches L4-L5:
Manage a region or a function with reporting to Zonal Heads or CXOs | L6:
Manage a zone or large function, reporting to CXO

We are dedicated to fostering and preserving an inclusive
workplace where everyone is treated with respect and
dignity. This policy's goal is to encourage and support a
diverse workplace that values our diversity and celebrates
the positive contributions they may make.

EEN EEE 60



Human Capital

As of Mar'23, our employee count was 993. Out of which
66.2% employees had obtained a post-graduation in
business administration or management and
approximately 23.3% had a bachelor in technology
degree or a bachelor in engineering degree. Our median

Total no of
Age employees %
Under 30 years 778 78.3%
30-50 years 212 21.3%
> 50 years 3 0.3%
Total 993  100.0%
e o e o e o
993
‘ ' ‘ ' ‘ ' Employees

e o
Recruitment Strategy

We recruit majority of our employees through a

52%

comprehensive campus recruitment program, which
sees participation from our CEO as well. We also employ
people laterally to fill vacancies. We understand the
importance of home-grown talent, so we create multiple
opportunities through internal job postings, role
enhancements etc. We also list open positions on our
Website, LinkedIn page to increase the reach. Recently
we have started internship program to college students -
this enables them to get a hold of live projects and
evaluate their outlook about the company in case they're
handed placements.

Talent Infusion - New Employees Hired (Age and Gender wise)

Gender Under 30 Years 30 -50 Years >50 Years Total

Female 104 6 0 110
Male 345 53 1 399

Learning & Development
We are invested towards continuous improvement in the

skills of our employees and provide opportunities for
continuous learning and upskilling of our employees.

Integrated Annual Report

Women at head office
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age of employees is 26.50 yrs. We have a healthy gender
representation at the company level as well as at the
Management Level with 24.3% of women workforce and
22.2% of women in the management team.

Female Male
employees % employees %
196 81.3% 582 77.4%
45 18.7% 167 22.2%
0 0.0% 3 0.4%
241 100.0% 752 100.0%

24%

Women employees

22%

Women in senior management

e o o

e o o
Induction
Employees who joined us as Relationship Managers and
Customer Service Managers are included for the
Induction Program. The 2 Day program consists of
Technical as well as Soft Skill Training. Products/
Policies/Processes are explained and employees are
assessed on the same. Employees go back to the

branches with learning to handle their roles more
efficiently.

So Far So Good

The Program assesses Relationship Managers who have
completed 6 months in the system. These employees
come prepared with a presentation (based on their
experience over the past 6 months) on various
parameters such as sourcing mix, marketing drives, KRA
achievement and areas of improvement, which they
present to the management team members of the
organisation. This is followed by a refresher training on
various aspects and interaction with the senior team of
the organisation

Customer Service Training
Customer Service Managers are called in batches for a 2-

Day program. Extensive discussions and training on
Operations/Credit/Underwriting Processes, assessments
and soft skills take place.
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EVO

HomekFirst EVO is an initiative set for the new joiners for
Talent Nurturing. It equips the employees with concepts
related to finance and HomeFirst product/processes.
Employees are assessed on the same in a written test
format.

Aspire Program

Aspire is the opportunity for growth from a Relationship
Manager/ Customer Service Manager to Branch Manager
at HomeFirst.

Further, besides on-the-job training, we have compliance
training as well as code of conduct, and cybersecurity
training to drive holistic development. Recently, ESG and

Total number of
training hours

provided to employees
Female 4,010
Male 10,230

Total number of
employees

Sustainability Report

BRSR training was also launched to make the employees
aware of the 9 principles of sustainable development and
the growing importance of having sustainable
operations.

During the current financial year, 14,240 manhours of
training were clocked. This is compared to 5,288
manhours of training for the preceding fiscal year. Since
we have a young and diverse employee base with a
median age of 26.5 years and we have just 3 employees
who are aged 50 or more, we currently do not have any
transition assistance programs provided to facilitate
continued employability and the management of career
endings resulting from retirement or termination of
employment.

Average hours of training that the
organization's employees have
undertaken during the reporting period

241 16.64
752 13.60

Total number of training Total number of Average hours of training that the

hours provided to employees organization's employees have
employees undertaken during the reporting period
LO-L2 13,756 897 15.34
L3 and above 484 96 5.04

Talent Retention & Recognition

We have various competitions conducted throughout the
year to keep up employee morale and ensure their
engagement in the business. Further, we conduct NAOL
TV series which addresses the questions in the minds of

Attrition Rate Overall

Turnover rate in FY23

Turnover rate in FY22

the employees answered by the management. Through
this medium, we also try to guide the employees with the
vision of the company and the year to come. Employee
vintage is one of the parameters which symbolises
stability and loyalty towards the company. About 11.4%
of employees have completed 5+ yrs at HomeFirst.

Turnover rate in FY21

Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total
Permanent
38.69% 43.04% 39.80% 37.83% 33.41% 36.54% 18.51% 15.80% 17.64%
Employees
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Attrition Rate (Age and Gender-wise)

Gender Under 30 years
Female 48.02%
Male 38.62%

Attrition Rate (Vintage and Gender-wise)

Gender <1years
Female 46.99%
Male 36.39%

Our employee-friendly policies create a safe and
conducive work environment. The performance
appraisal process is conducted quarterly and we have an
open-door culture to receive feedback from the
employees. Engagement surveys are conducted
amongst the employees to monitor employee
satisfaction. Another external engagement survey
conducted was for Great Place to Work accreditation.
According to the performance during the year, we
extended performance-linked variable pay as well as
competitive increments along with promotions for
eligible employees in the year of a volatile job market. All
employees undergo career development discussions
and performance appraisal.

Employee Well-being & Benefits

“HomeFirst Health” initiative is a unique opportunity for
employees to learn from the best in the wellness
industry. We have ensured that the onus of one's well-
being is firmly in their own hands by launching various
initiatives that allow for downtime, flexibility and
participation in wellness activities.

Physical Wellness

In collaboration with MyGalf, programs like YOGA, Core-
body building etc. are specially curated to enthuse the
younger population by making the activities fun. We also
provide the opportunity to involve the family members of
the employee to make sure that there is greater buy-in to
the initiative.

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. M m

Sustainability Report

30-50 years >50 years Total
23.16% - 43.04%
38.97% 33.33% 38.69%

1-3years >3 years Total
54.00% 34.62% 43.04%
39.13% 41.99% 38.69%

Mental Wellness

In collaboration with 1tolhelp, employees can seek
counselling as part of the EAP (Employee assistance
program) or general guidance. It also provides
employees with a support system if they face difficult
situations at work. Webinars are done on Stress/Work-
life balance for the field force.

We also have Employee Health & Safety Policy which is
approved by the Board. The main motive behind this
policy is to constantly strive to provide and ensure a safe
and healthy work environment for all its employees
through a suitable process. We also conducted training
on Health & Safety.

We also conducted a fire-extinguisher safety drill at the
Head Office to educate the employees on the safe ways
to use a fire extinguisher as well as do's and dont's in case
of an event of afire.

HomekFirst has partnered with healthito provide annual
health check-up program. This covers services such as
blood tests, general check-up as well as free consultation.

Employee Benefits

HomeFirst looks out for its employees and provides
benefits such as health insurance, group accident
insurance, and maternity/paternity benefits - which are
one of the industry's best benefits. We also have a 5VY
league which celebrates the employees who have
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covered 5 years in the organisation and they are eligible
to enjoy a pool of perks and benefits. In addition to the
compensation that includes both salaries and allowances
(including performance-linked bonuses), we provide our
employees with employee stock options. As of Mar'23,
23.9% employees are covered under ESOP schemes.

The Company also offers to cover medical expenses, as
applicable. In case of the death of an employee who had
ESOPs, the ESOPs immediately vest with the nominee of
such an employee.

Sustainability Report

% of employees covered by

Total ESOPs % NPS %
Category (A) ® ®A (O (A
Male 752 183 24 12 2
Female 241 54 22 2 1
Total 993 237 24 14 1

% of employees covered by

Health Insurance

Categor Total % %
gory Number (B) (B/A) Number (C) (C/A)
Male 752 752 100 752 100
Female 241 241 100 241 100
Total 993 993 100 993 100

Parental Support Policy
Maternity Leave:

Under this policy, a woman employee can avail of leave
for up to 26 weeks with full pay for up to two children and
for more than two children, can avail of maternity leave
for up to 12 weeks (called Paid Maternity Leave).

Accident Insurance

Maternity Benefits =~ Paternity benefits ~ Day Care Facilities

% % %
Number (D) (/) Number (E) g/ Number () /)

NA NA 752 100 NA NA
241 100 NA NA NA NA
241 100 752 100 NA NA

Paternity Leave:

Men can avail of Paternity Leave under this policy for up
to seven working days with full pay within two months
from the actual date of delivery of the employee's child.

Adoption Leave:

Both men and women employees will be eligible for paid
leave of up to six weeks if they are the primary caregivers
of an adopted child below the age of one year.

Gender Return to Retention parental leaves Number of
work rate rate Gender o employees who
availed in FY23 .
resumed work in FY23
Male 100% 33%
Female 100% 64% Male 9
Total 100% 59% Female 14 17

Employees who availed parental leave in FY21- 22, returned to work and are still on the Company rolls

as on Mar'23

Gender

Male

Female

Integrated Annual Report

No of employees who took
parental leave in FY21 - 22

Still employed 12 months
after their return to work

3
14

Home First Finance Company India Ltd. M

1
9
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Employee Engagement Programs

We believe in the adage Work Hard, Party Harder. HomeFirst is committed to be one of the best Great Places to Work - and
thereby keep the employee morale high with various initiatives throughout the year.

There was a Cricket tournament conducted at the
regional level - Branch Premier League (Hyderabad,
Ahmedabad) as well as at Head Office (HomeFirst
Premier League - Season 1).
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We also treated our employees to a movie night
- on the first day of its release!

We took our employees to witness an
IPL match at Brabourne stadium.



Be it festivals, HomeFirst can’t be far behind - we grandly
celebrated Navratri and Diwali - treating our employees to

a sumptuous dinner party!

Promoting Human Rights & Non-discrimination

HomeFirst has a very strict policy against any case of sexual harassment at the workplace. We provide an easy channel for
reporting the offence. We have a policy on the Prevention of Sexual harassment in the workplace. To ensure women feel
comfortable and safe raising their complaints, the Internal Committee is headed by a Senior Woman employee.

Cases of Sexual No of complaints FY 22-23 Cases of Discrimination No of complaints FY22-23
Harassment at at Workplace
Workplace Discrimination 0
Cases of Sexual 0 Complaints
harassment
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CSR Actvities

At HomekFirst, we are dedicated to supporting those who
need it the most. Our primary focus is on the socio-
economic development of migrant workers earning less than
Rs 10,000 per month. This segment faces significant
challenges with low income, limited skills, and inadequate
access to healthcare, leaving them in a vulnerable position
just one unfortunate event away from extreme poverty.
Their entire income is typically consumed by daily expenses,
making long-term savings difficult to maintain.Our vision is
to measure the success of our CSR initiatives by the progress
these individuals make, transitioning from vulnerability to
healthier, happier homes. This year, we have further
strengthened our flagship initiative, Project Sashakt, with a
focus on key pillars such as skilling, healthcare, education,
and development. In the Narol area of Ahmedabad, we are
actively supporting over 1,500 beneficiaries, diving deeper
into this community to make a meaningful impact. At
HomeFirst, we firmly believe in giving back and are
committed to empowering these individuals to build a
brighter future. Most of our projects are concentrated in the
states of Gujarat and Maharashtra (we have presence across
13 States/UT).

The community engagement process involves

m Consultation with stakeholders

B Need assessment through local NGOs and employees
B Resource allocation and detailed planning

m Stakeholder engagement and project implementation
through NGOs

B Project monitoring and impact assessment

Vision Statement
Empower people
to live better

Project

Sashakt
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PROJECT SASHAKT - Socio Economic Development of Migrants

Under the flagship project of HomeFirst - Project Sashakt we have adopted 1000+ underprivileged families in the Narol
area of Ahmedabad with the aim to raise their standards of social, health and economic status to a point from whereon
they can become self-sufficient in every sense. This involves interventions and initiatives along the lines of education for
children, financial literacy and upskilling for adults and healthcare for all. These together form the four pillars of Project
Sashakt: Skilling & Employment, Education & Development, Health initiatives and Financial Literacy

Skilling & Employment Education & Development

Overview Overview

Dec'22, launched Sashakt Skilling Center at Nov'22 - Sashakt Science Labs were launched for
Narol. Capacity to cater 1,000+ beneficiaries holistic experiential learning of students from
annually marginal families at Narol. These science labs are fully
equipped to give the students practical learning
integrated with their current curriculum. Regular
tests will be conducted to measure the progress.

6 5,000+

Schools Students

600+ beneficiaries already enrolled across 3
batchesand 371 have completed the course

Impact

Beneficiaries from Batch 1 where 120 were
enrolled, have already started getting jobs and
working on their own after completing the

Continuing with our highly popular Bal Sashakt
initiative. An integrated educational program
incorporating academics, arts, craft, sports, nutrition,
and cultural aspects for kids aged between 6 to 15

248

242 years

Self Employed Beauty & -+
Tailoring Wellness 4 1 2 200

Batches Completed Week / Batch  Students
77 95 Impact
GST with Tally gafr::;:y 6 Gov/semi-aided schools have now access to
7 zp STEM education

3 150+
CNC Operator EV Assembly

Operator Specialized STEM DIY Kits & Demo Models

1

Industrial Welder

6

Secured jobs

1

Solar PV Installer

19

Beneficiaries

educators appointed Available in regional languages

652 372

STEM Sessions Hours of students training

To encourage them further we organized an interschool
science fair. Guests were invited from ISRO to motivate

became self- andjudge the children’s projects
2 employed 207 72
General Duty Assitant . .
Students Participated Different Type of Working
Models
Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. M m EER EEE 69



Education & Development

Preventive Healthcare
Measures for Schools

Overview

Prevent diseases and improve overall health and
hygiene for 3 schools by conducting health
awareness camps and constructing hygienic toilets.

Impact

2,800 900 22

Free Dental Sanitary Pads  Toilets
Checkups Distributed Constructed
2,557 246

Free Eye Spectacles

Test Distributed

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

Sustainable Measures
for Schools

Overview
To lower monthly electricity bills for semi-

aided schools at Narol we have installed
solar paneland LED lights

Impact

3 120

Schools LED Lights

13.86 kwp

Solar Panel Installed

*Estimation is subject to grid availability, PV module cleaning

70
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Financial Literacy

A workshop was conducted on the
basics of banking. Awareness created
around savings, borrowing money
and transaction frauds

Regional language booklets with all
necessary guidelines were distributed
80+ Candidates Participated

Health Initiatives

Free weekly medical check-ups organized,
with free medicine distribution for all
Sashakt Beneficiaries

1,985 48 34

Beneficiaries OPDs Gynaecology

Benefitted Checkups

Eye Camps Free Eye Test  Spectacles
Distributed

3 166

Dental Camps  Free Dental
Check-ups
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Mahila Shram Shakti Kendra

Continuing from last year, in order to enhance the living standard of migrant, women-construction workers in
Ahmedabad and Surat we have expanded our efforts through the following activities:

Skill Training
369 given individual OJT counseling

and78enrolled for program

Post training they were upgraded
from helper to skilled worker and
daily wagesincreased by ¥300-400

Legal Aid and Education

63 legal literacy meetings were
conducted across 3 centres

1,002 beneficiaries attended

130 30

Legal Counselling Cases Registered

Integrated Annual Report

Social Security

1,578 women enrolled for

E-shram and E-nirman cards

1,313 Registered under
BOCW Scheme

9 Received maternity
benefit of ¥37,500 each

Financial Literacy

Workshop on
- Basics of banking

- Money and Transaction frauds

- Savings and Loans

256

were helped with KYC's

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

Health and Nutrition

Mass awareness drives covering
menstrual hygiene and reproductive
health

We created awareness around UPT
kits usage. Now, 50 UPT kits are
being used monthly across centers

466 1,500+

Women Sanitary Pads Distributed
m EEN EEE 72
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Green Initiatives

Solar Panels Fitment Solar Pump Installation Tree Plantation Drive
Objective Objective Objective
Reduce the daily running cost To promote multiple cropping for Help in creating additional income for

marginal farmers. So that, same piece the marginal farmers
of land can grow 2 or more crops in a
calender year

and carbon emission

Initiative Initiative
Initiative Distributed 40,000+ fruit saplings in

Installed solar panel at old age partnership with Global Parli Vikas
home (run by Manav Seva Kalyan Installed 5 solar pumps and drip Trust
Trust) and 3 semi-aided schools irrigation in association
at Narol Ahmedabad with Keshav Srushti

Simply Social

To promote employee driven CSR

initiatives and create general awareness

within the team. HomeFirst donated the

mentioned amount on behalf of the

employee to their chosen cause on work

anniversaries.

Clubfoot CleftLip ~ Employees

Rectification Surgeries

Contributed

Before After
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Customer Centricity

In a machine loom factory, Anil ji works as a skilled machine
operator, earning a monthly income of ¥20,000. His wife is
a dedicated primary school teacher, earning ¥15,000 per
month. They have inherited a piece of land from their
parents and aspire to build a house on it. However, they
face a common challenge - they lack the traditional salary
slips and documents to prove their monthly income. The
question arises: Can they secure a housing loan of %10
lakhs to build their home?

A decade ago, the answer would have been a resounding
"NO." Back then, hard working professionals like Anil had
limited access to formal lending avenues due to various
obstacles. Some lacked the necessary paperwork to
support their income, while others found the loan
application process too daunting. As a result, many loan
applications remained unrealized, as customers struggled
to articulate their needs clearly and the traditional banks

Our Differentiators

@® Single Point of Contact ‘ No Physical Documents

across the journey
of the loan approval stage

@ Customized Loan

([

“We See You, Not Your
Documents” the industry

()

® Easy Prepayment
.é y pay

Zero prepayment Disbursal only with

charges customer permission

Our journey continues as we strive to provide inclusive and
accessible financial solutions, empowering individuals and
families to build their homes and create a foundation for a
better future. In our relentless pursuit of delivering
exceptional customer experiences, we continuously refine
our mobility solutions and enhance the user-friendly
features of our app. With various communication channels
available, including WhatsApp, Chatbot, Email, hotline
number, and social media handles, customers can
effortlessly reach out to us. Alongside our branch-based

required from lead to

Approval in 48 hrs

Fastest turnaround in

3\ Consent Call Before Disbursal

fell short in customising their solutions. It was these
challenges that HomeFirst wanted to overcome and it all
started from keeping the customer at the centre of
everything!

Our roadmap was clear - Simplify the home loan process
and provide first-time homeowners, like Anil, with a fast yet
customised solution. At HomeFirst, we believe that
everyone deserves a chance to own their dream home,
regardless of income or documentation constraints. We
have designed our processes and services to cater
specifically to individuals like Anil, who may not fit into
traditional lending frameworks. By embracing innovation
and customer-centric approaches, we have successfully
enabled countless individuals to realize their aspirations of
homeownership.

' Service at Home
RM visit customer at home & office

to complete the loan process

p No Hidden Charges . Mobile App

One time fixed Full feature app with
charges prepayment option

r— Multiple Electronic Payment Modes
.

Ease of making payment via
multiple payment methods

relationship managers, we also have virtual relationship
managers ready to cater to customers' needs. By
promoting transparent communication and embracing
unconventional methods to meet customer requirements
while swiftly processing their requests, HomeFirst has
positively impacted the lives of over 1,00,000 customers!

We take pride in serving a diverse range of customers,
reflecting the rich tapestry of our nation. Our customer
base spans across 13 states/ UT, encompassing different
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different cultures, languages, and backgrounds. We cater
to individuals of various ages, from young professionals
starting their careers to seasoned individuals planning.
Our customers represent a wide array of occupations,
including salaried employees, self-employed individuals,
and small business owners. Newer occupations like social
media influencers, delivery partners, graphic designers
and tech professionals are also becoming a part of our
portfolio.

At HomekFirst, to service all kinds of needs we have adopted
a Phygital model, seamlessly blending physical and digital
processes. Customers can easily self-onboard through our
website in just four simple steps or take help of our highly
trained relationship managers. Our commitment to
customer-centricity goes beyond technology! The team of
dedicated relationship managers understand the unique
needs of our diverse customer base. Whether it's
addressing language preferences, providing personalized
guidance, or offering tailored solutions, we strive to create
an inclusive environment where every customer feels
valued and understood.

To cater to our diverse customer base, we offer loan
agreements in regional languages such as Hindi, Marathi,
Guijarati, Tamil, Telugu, and Kannada, in addition to
English. Our website and branches prominently display all
applicable fees and charges, ensuring complete
transparency. Furthermore, the terms and conditions are
summarized in the Most Important Terms and Conditions
(MITC) document, which is attached to the Loan
Agreement for easy reference.

Transparency is at the core of our value system, driving our
operations and communication. We are committed to
promptly resolving customer complaints, which are
centrally tracked and addressed. Customers like Anil, now
prepay from the App directly and raise a query if they need
to know something from the App itself. With a well-defined
customer grievance policy and procedures in place, our
highly trained employees are dedicated to resolving issues
in a timely and empathetic manner. Customers can access
our Customer Grievance Mechanism through our website,
ensuring a seamless and effective resolution process.

Eknath Patil

Machine Operator

* Kk ok Kk k

| Trust HomeFirst
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As we strive to exceed customer expectations, HomeFirst
also plays a vital role in fulfilling aspirations and upgrading
lifestyles as the Indian middle class expands. We witness
the transformative power of homeownership, providing
stability, security, and a better quality of life for the entire
family. By offering accessible financing options, simplified
processes, and exceptional customer service, we assist
individuals in realizing their dreams and contribute to the

Our Customer-Friendly Features
homefirst

| got my Home Loan in
just 48 Hours

Sarfudin Daraji

Head Tailor, Lalit Kala Kendra

* ok ok K Kk

I Trust HomeFirst

growth of the Indian middle class. This expansion has far-
reaching effects, driving economic growth, fostering
stronger communities, and contributing to overall
development. HomeFirst is committed to being a trusted
partner on this journey, empowering individuals and
families to upgrade their lifestyles and contribute to the
vibrant growth of the Indian middle class.

homefirst

loan status to prepayments,

Radheshyam Sain

Owner, New Bhaskar Dhaba

* ok k k Kk

I Trust HomeFirst

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. M m EER EENE 7



Intellectual Capital

We have consistently remained at the forefront of
technology utilization for product innovation, cultivating
new efficiencies, and fostering sustainable business
growth. Tech is at the core of all processes and
operations. Right from onboarding a customer to the
disbursement of a loan - it is a complete paperless
process!

Throughout this year, we have sustained our
commitment to investing in technologies, consumer
insights, and advanced analytics, enabling us to create
captivating customer experiences, streamline decision-
making processes and enhance operational excellence.

Mobility Solutions

In an intensely competitive industry, we have remained
committed to cultivating our creative edge by
strategically investing in state-of-the-art technology,
aligning with global trends. Our approach is grounded in
design thinking, allowing us to connect with the ever-
evolving preferences of our customers. At Home First, we
prioritize the customer, placing them at the center of all
our endeavors. Every innovation we conceive and

HomeFirst Connect -
This app is for our
Channel Partners to
login their leads and
track the status of the
leads provided.

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. M m
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implement is driven by the ultimate objective of
delivering an exceptional customer experience.

HomeFirst Customer
Portal App - This app
enables our customers
to numerous features
such as accessing loan
statements, and
prepayment of loans
without any
prepayment charges
and service requests.

HomeFirst RM Pro - This app
is for our Relationship Man-
agers and has a host of
features to supportthe RMin
his day to day work. The RM
can collect payments from
customers, onboard new
connectors, feed in leads as
well as process loans and
track them real time, create
tasks for collections or other
daily activities, update KYC
details on the system
through the App, amongst
others.
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Intellectual Capital

Digital Marketing

We execute comprehensive marketing campaigns across
a range of online platforms and engage with our
audience through our active social media presence.
Additionally, we have established strategic partnerships
with esteemed organizations like Paisa Bazaar, Magic
bricks, No broker and India Post Payments Bank to
acquire digital leads. As part of our commitment to
customer education, we produce informative vliogs
under the “HomeFirst Gyaan Series”, which enlighten our
customers about various aspects of home buying /
building.

To ensure seamless communication, we provide multiple
channels for our customers to reach out to us, including

HomekFirst collaborated with
Disney+Hotstar's Special, Home
Shanti - A light-hearted take on
the “Joshi Parivaar's” home
building journey. The movie talks
about various obstacles the family
faces in their path of constructing
their dream home. HomekFirst
relates with this struggle and
assists the customers to wade
through this struggle in a seamless
manner.

Sustainability Report

social media platforms, WhatsApp, and email. We strive
to be readily available and accessible to address any
queries or concerns they may have.

Below is a video educating the viewers about Home
Loan

Home Loan
Eligibility Calculator
Home First Finance
Company



https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=MCAbC8o8EyY&list=UULFoNp_nmkkm-Rj_DZR5s2vgQ&index=1

Intellectual Capital

Data Analytics

The foundation of our robust asset quality stems from
our rigorous credit underwriting practices. We
meticulously gather over 100 data points, encompassing
documents, bureau data, photographs, and more, which
are securely stored in the cloud. Our collaborations with
trusted third-party aggregators enable us to access
valuable information on fraud, vehicle ownership, and
taxation, facilitating swift and accurate decision-making.
Moreover, our in-house machine-learning customer
scoring models play a pivotal role in enhancing our
underwriting process.

Further, all our financed properties are geo-tagged and
we use a machine-learning-backed property price
predictor. This helps us achieve higher accuracy in
determining the loan-to-value ratio. The seamless
integration and availability of data across platforms and
users enable us to process loans in a paperless manner
and with quick turnaround times.

To preserve the information from all of our various
applications, we utilize a data lake. This speeds up data
consolidation, visualisation, the creation of machine
learning models, and model application. Also, the data

E-Stamping
(60% in FY23)

Ibo

E-NACH Mandates
(65% in FY23)

0]
1

Digitally Agreement Signing
(46% in FY23)

ch
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lake enables thorough analytics that improve operational
decisions.

We also use software such as Tableau to prepare various
real-time MIS and visualisation of data - this assists in
monitoring key parameters and taking quick decisions.

Tech-Infrastructure

We capture and store our data on a secure cloud-based
platform, allowing our employees to work remotely from
anywhere. This not only enhances flexibility but also
grants us real-time access to data. Such capabilities
enable us to streamline centralized underwriting
processes consistently and achieve fast turnaround
times. In addition, we have implemented an integrated
customer relationship management and loan
management system on a leading cloud-based platform.
This setup provides us with a comprehensive overview of
all our customers, empowering us with a holistic
understanding of their needs and requirements.

We have also set up infrastructure for E-NACH, E-signing,
E-Stamping, and E-vaulting.

Our website as well as Customer Portal App offers a
potential customer to self-onboard and get soft approval.

Techin Collections

95% of collections are non-cash. A customer can make
payment via Card, UPI, Net banking channels using the
Customer App. We remind the customers about their
dues by automated calling as well as SMS reminders. All
our borrowers register for an automated debit facility,
and we track the status of instalments collected on a real-
time basis through a collection module in our system.

Lead Management System

Kaisys is an internally developed lead management
system with omnichannel communication and a
personalized sales journey, integrated with bureau and
third-party data sources.
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GRI 102

GRI Index

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Organisation Profile

102-1
102-2
102-3
102-4
102-5
102-6
102-7
102-8
102-13

Name of the organisation.

Activities, brands, products, and services
Location of headquarters

Location of operations

Ownership and legal form

Markets served

Scale of the organisation

Information on employees and other workers
Membership of associations Business Responsibility Report

Pg 181
Pg 181
Pg 181
Pg 11
Pg 181
Pg 11
Pg 182
Pg 61
Pg 221

Strategy and Analysis

102-14
102-15

Statement from senior decision-maker
Key impacts, risks, and opportunities

Pg 35
Pg 112

Ethics and Integrity

102-16
102-17

Governance

Values, principles, standards, and norms of behaviour
Mechanisms for advice and concerns about ethics

Pg 08
Pg 44 - Pg 46

102-18
102-19
102-20

102-21

102-22
102-23
102-24
102-25
102-26

102-27
102-28
102-29

102-30
102-31
102-35

102-36
102-37
102-38
102-39

Governance structure

Delegating authority of economic, environmental and social topics
Executive-level responsibility for economic,

environmental, and social topics

Consulting stakeholders on economic, environmental,

and social topics

Composition of the highest governance body and its committees
Chair of the highest governance body

Nominating and selecting the highest governance body

Conflicts of interest

Role of highest governance body in setting purpose,

values, and strategy

Collective knowledge of highest governance body

Evaluating the highest governance body’s performance
Identifying and managing economic, environmental,

and social impacts

Effectiveness of risk management processes

Review of economic, environmental, and social topics
Remuneration policies

Process for determining remuneration

Stakeholders’ involvement in remuneration

Annual total compensation ratio

Percentage increase in annual total compensation ratio

Pg4l
Pg 44
Pg 187

Pg 206

Pg7,Pg43-Pgda
Pg 43

Pg 152 - Pg 153
Pg 192

Pg 146 - Pg 158

Pg 146
Pg 44
Pg 51

Pg 115-Pg 119

Pg 187
https://homefirstindia.com/files/Nomination
%20and%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf

Pg 152 - Pg 153

Pg 152 - Pg 153, Pg 159 - Pg 160

Pg 60, Pg 179

Pg 179
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GRI Index

Stakeholder Engagement

102-40 List of stakeholder groups Pg 49 - Pg 50

102-42 Identifying and selecting stakeholders Pg 204 - Pg 206

102-43 Approach to stakeholder engagement Pg 49 - Pg 50, Pg 204 - Pg 206

102-44 Key topics and concerns raised Pg 49 - Pg 50, Pg 204 - Pg 206

102-46 Defining report content and topic Boundaries Pg2

102-47 List of material topics Pg 52

102-50 Reporting period Pg 2

102-52 Reporting cycle Pg2

102-53 Contact point for questions regarding the report Pg 181

102-54 Claims of reporting in accordance with the GRI Standards Pg 2

102-55 GRI content index

102-56 External assurance Pg2

GRI-300 Environmental

302-1 Energy consumption within the organisation Pg 58

305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions Pg 58 - Pg 59

305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG Emissions Pg 59

GRI-400 Social

401-1 New employee hires and employee turnover Pg 61 to Pg 63

401-2 Benefits provied to full time employees, programs for upgrading Pg 64
employee skills

40173 Parental leave Pg 64

404-1 Average hours of training per year per employee Pg 62

404-2 Programs for upgrading employee skills and transition assistance programs Pg 62

404-3 Percentage of employees receiving regular performance and career Pg 63

development reviews

Diversity and Equal Opportunity
405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees Pg43,Pg6l
405-2 Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of women to men Pg 60

Non Discrimination
406-1 Incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken Pg 67

Local Communities

413-1 Operations with local community engagement, impact assessments, Pg 68
and development programs
413-2 Operations with significant actual and potential negative Pg68-Pg73

impacts on local communities

Marketing and Labelling

417-1 Requirements for product and service information and labeling Pg 228 - Pg 229

417-2 Incidents of non-compliance concerning product and service Pg 228 - Pg 229
information and labeling
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Color Master in a private paints
workshop. He has taken a
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following section will give you an overview of the
macro environment, the changes in the operating
environment, the key drivers for housing finance and the
enormous size of the housing finance opportunity. The
section is structured in the following manner:

1. GDP growth expectation and peer comparison.

2. Economic momentum: India through charts

3. Manufacturing & Export led growth

4. Rise of Middle Class & working-age population

5. Per Capita Income analysis and correlation with
Mortgage to GDP

6. Digital leapfrogging

7.0ther Demand Drivers

8. Conclusion

1. GDP growth expectation and peer
comparison

Strong FY23, Strong GDP Growth Outlook

According to the latest IMF's World Economic Outlook
(Apr'23), the world economy is projected to grow by 2.8%
in 2023 and 3.0% in 2024 from a growth of 3.4% seen in
2022 and will normalize in the range of 3.0%-3.2% over
the mediumterm.

India is the fifth largest economy as per IMF and is
projected to fare better than peers with an impressive
estimated growth of 5.9% in 2023 and 6.3% in 2024
(April'23 Update). As per various leading research
institutions, Indian GDP has the potential to deliver the
highest CAGR globally in the medium term amongst large
economies, driven by various structural policy measures
taken by the Indian government.

India and World GDP Growth (in %)

9.1
6.3 5.8 6.3
. 5.9 :
] l i I i
24

Fy21 FY22 FY23 FY:.

B india

6.2 6.1 6.0 6.0
I ] I ) I : Ilo
FY2!

FY25 6 Fy27 FY28

World

Source: IMF, World Economic Outlook, April’23

India is expected to be the third largest economy by 2027
after USA and China moving up from its 5th position
currently (non-PPP basis). India is already 3rd largest
economy on PPP basis after USA and China.

GDP of major economies (USD Bn in Current Prices). India will be a USD 5 Trn economy and 3rd largest

economy by 2027 (non-PPP adjusted)

Country 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
USA 18,695 19,477 20,533 21,381 21,060
China 11,227 12,265 13,842 14,341 14,863
India 2,295 2,651 2,703 2,836 2,672
Japan 5004 4931 5041 5118 5,049
Germany 3,469 3,690 3976 3,889 3,887
UK 2,710 2,686 2,882 2,859 2,707
France 2,472 2,594 2,792 2,729 2,636
Canada 1,528 1,649 1,725 1,744 1,648
Italy 1,877 1,961 2,093 2012 1,89
Russia 1,281 1,575 1,653 1,696 1,488

Source: IMF World Economic Outlook (April'23 Update)

Integrated Annual Report

2021

23,315
17,759
3,150
5,006
4,263
3,123
2,957
2,001
2,116
1,837

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
25464 26,855 27,741 28,766 29,903 31,092 32,350
18,100 19,374 20,881 22,408 24,036 25722 27,493
3386 3737 4,062 4403 4766 5153 5575

4234 4410 4526 4,731 4923 5077 5344
4075 4309 4446 4,635 4,822 4,947 5044
3071 3159 3,375 3,574 3,793 4,016 4,245

2,784 2,923 3,019 3133 3233 3322 3391

2,740 2,090 2,179 2,281 2385 2492 2,605
2,012 2170 2,218 2,285 2,347 2407 2450
2,215 2,063 2,118 2,159 2206 2,235 2,266
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Rank 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

1 USA USA USA USA USA USA USA USA USA USA USA USA USA
2 China  China  China China  China  China = China = China China  China  China  China China
3 Japan  Japan  Japan @ Japan = Japan Japan Japan Japan = Japan = Japan  Japan India India
4 Germany Germany Germany Germany Germany Germany Germany Germany Germany Germany Germany Japan Japan
5 UK UK UK UK UK India India India India India India Germany Germany
6 France India France India India UK UK UK UK UK UK UK UK
7 India France India France France France France France France France France France France
8 Italy Italy Italy Italy Italy Italy Russia Italy Italy Italy  Canada Canada Canada
9 Canada Canada Canada Canada Canada Canada Canada Canada Canada Canada Italy Italy Italy
10 Russia = Russia  Russia =~ Russia  Russia  Russia Italy Russia = Russia = Russia = Russia = Russia  Russia

Source: IMF World Economic Outlook (April'23 Update)

Indian economy's three major pillars witnessed growth in GVA Composition of Indian Economy in%

FY23 as per government provisional estimates; with B griciure | industy  Services

Industry sector expected to grow the highest by 10.1%.

Services sector growth is also expected to grow at a

robust 7.4% despite it's higher share in GDP. As per 3 8 5 o o ® 8 & 8 & 3

various economists, government's focus on

manufacturing and services will raise economic output

and create more jobs driving per capitaincome. “HEECECRCSESEER SR R

LD T-
Indian Economy contribution by 3 major sectors. Services '

continueto grow on strong IT sector growth, followed by

. Source: RBI (FY23 is provisional estimate)
manufacturing sector where government has a strong

focus.

Sector-wise growth of Indian Economy in %
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2. India through Charts

IIP Index has been strong (x)
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It is expected that GST collections will remain robust
on the back of strong recovery and government
reforms like PLI, etc that have given a boost to the
manufacturing sector

GST Collection (F Bn) - Growth of 22% in FY23
highlights strong economic activity.
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Source: Government of India

Capacity Utilisation is consistently above 70% and

close to 75% highlighting momentum in economic
activity

Capacity Utilisation (%) - RBI

75.3
co 72.4 72.4 74.0
66.6 68.3
63.3
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Source: RBI
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Total Credit in the system grew by 135
13% CAGR since April'07

E-way bills continues to show growth in
monthly issuance

E-Way bills continues to trend upward (in Mn)
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Source: Government of India

Capex in India increasing mainly led by Public
infrastructure spends and will be a key driver of

employment in India going forward with corporate
capex

Gross Fixed Capital Formation
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Source: RBI
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Strong FDI Inflows

India has been a preferred economy within emerging
markets when it comes to long-term investments by
foreign investors. During FY22, India received USD
85bn of investments which is also the highest India has
ever received and in 9MFY23, India has received USD
55bn FDI inflows. This is due to strong long-term
prospects of the economy, stable government,
structural policies for a reliable business destination
expected by corporates and large market with a
growing middle-class and working-age population.
Also, the favorable business dynamics has improved
India’s rank in FDI Inflows from 43rd Rank in the year
1990to 7th Rankin 2021.

Foreign Direct Investments received by
India (USD Bn)

=~ y-o-y % change USD Bn 8 85

74

155%

60 61 62
56 55

47 45

38 35 340034 36

&
a
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1
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Fy21
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Source: Ministry of Commerce and Industry. Note that FY23 is for 9 Months

Industrialised states receiving large FDI share (USD Mn)
-HomeFirst's 6 focused states of Gujarat, Maharashtra,
Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, and
Karnataka contributed 48% of total FDI investments in
9MFY23 indicating business friendly environment
supporting Housing ecosystem (USD Mn)

State # Fy21 FY22 9MFY23

Gujarat 21,890 2,706 4,141
Karnataka 7,670 22,072 8,773
Maharashtra 16,170 15,439 10,766
Tamil Nadu 2,323 3,003 1,890
Telangana 1,155 1,607 1,081
Focused States Total 49,208 44,827 26,651

Delhi 5,471 8,189 6,114
Haryana 1,697 2,798 2,010
Jharkhand 792 6 5
Rajasthan 272 707 764
West Bengal 415 428 238
Others 24,118 27,880 19,492

FDI Grand Total 81,973 84,835 55,274

Focused State% 60.0% 52.8% 48.2%

Source: Government of India
* AP is a focused state but FDI is not disclosed seperately by GO/
# Government started sharing State-wise FDI starting Oct'19.

Integrated Annual Report

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

Indian economy will continue to benefit from structural
positives like higher urbanization rate, higher
discretionary spending, government push on
transparency through digitization (for eg: Faceless Tax
Assessment, FASTag, digitalization of land records, etc)
and government push for reforms in various sectors
are expected to continue to drive GDP growth in
medium to long term. India's medium-term growth is
supported by stimulus provided by the current fiscal
budget promoting an uptick in public investment with
main focus on Infrastructure investments and
corporate capexled by PLIScheme.

As per Crisil, few factors adding to resilience of the
Indian economy are 1) Healthy corporate balance
sheets providing a better cushion against shocks 2) A
robust financial system providing impetus to growth
and 3) Government capex focused on building
infrastructure.

3. Manufacturing & Export led growth

Renewed thrust on manufacturing sector: Over
medium to long term, Indian economy to get further
strength from capex led by government infra and PLI
Scheme.

The Covid pandemic has turned the spotlight on being
Atmanirbhar (self-dependent) considering the quantum
of foreign exchange we spend on imports like QOil, Gold,
Electronic Goods, etc. Government of India introduced a
scheme in April 2020 called “Production Linked
Incentive”, “PLI scheme” in short, for the manufacturing
of large-scale electronics. Since then, PLI scheme is being
extended to other sectors. PLI is an innovative scheme
that provides incentives in terms of cash to various
companies for enhancing their domestic manufacturing
apart from focusing on reducing import bills and
improving the cost competitiveness of local goods.

It is expected that Indian capex theme will receive
another fillip, in addition to Infrastructure capex,
Production-Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme is expected to
drive industrial capex in India over the next decade.
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Around ¥ 2.5 Tn worth of capex is expected via PLI
scheme as per Crisil. The PLI scheme has given impetus
to integration across supply chains, reducing import
dependencies, and propelling exports. PLI scheme is
particularly attractive for mobile phones, electronic
components, telecom equipment, and IT hardware,
which have high dependence on imports across value
chains and relatively lower domestic base.

As per Ministry of Labour & Employment (Govt of India),
PLI scheme has potential to add 6 mn new jobs (directly +
indirectly) over 5 years. Crisil estimate that PLI would help
Indian manufacturers add ~$25 billion to the ~$450
billion merchandise of exports of FY23. In FY22, ~$9
billion, or 2% of exports, were from PLI-based projects.
Potentially, PLI-linked exports alone can be as high as
$140 billion annually in medium to long term.

Locations for 50% of PLI capex identified. Sites are
concentrated in large states with major HomeFirst
presence.

Top 3 states
(shared in analysed capex)

1,280 Bn  33% 28% 11%
TOtal'PLI Cap‘;‘x with Tamil Nadu Gujarat Karnataka
locations available

TN 67% KA17%  GJ17%

Acc Battery

G) 76% AP 24%

Solar Pv

MP 18% GJ) 76% MH 12% GA 8% KA 8% Others 38%

Textiles

TN 57% UP17% KA 14% AP4%
Mobiles

MP 11%WB 10% GJ 8% AP 3% KR 2% Not Allocated 65%

Food Processing

MH
KA 27% Haryana24% 454, Delhi11% UP 9% Others 17%

Telecom

N MH  UP Delhi

Andhra Pradesh 35% 12% 1% 3% 3%

Not Allocated 35%
White Good

TN 48% KA 23% UP23%  3%2%

It Hardware

MH
KA20% g9 RJ6% Not Allocated 64%

Medical Devices

Source: Crisil, March 2023
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Success of PLI is already visible as mobile manufa-
cturing has taken-off.

Before 2014, there were 2 mobile manufacturing
factories; Post 2021, over 200 manufacturing units have
been set up in India. India became the preferred
destination for Global manufacturing giants. Samsung
opened the world's largest phone manufacturing unit
in India, and leading global Giants like Apple have
shifted major units to India. According to a Business
Standard report, Apple has already created 1 Lakh new
jobsinthelast 19 months. India's agile policies and anti-
fragile mindset is propelling India's holistic and
inclusive growth.

Mobile phone exports in 2015-16 were near zero.
Exports in 7MFY23 surpassed the $5 Bn mark (FY23
expectation is $9 Bn). The world's leading economies
like the UK, Netherlands, Austria, Italy, South Africa,
and other countries are using Made-in-India Mobiles.
India envisions an ambitious plan to scale annual
mobile manufacturincgto $126 billion by 2025-26.

Coming A Long Way

Mobile phones worth
¥2.75 Tn produced
in India in 2021-22, vs
%900 Bn in 2016-17

Exports of mobiles
constituted 16% of
production in 2021-22,
vs 1% in 2016-17

Mobile exports could rise to 22%
of production in ‘22-23

Mobile exports
worth around

$9 billion
likely in this
fiscal

Apple and Samsung leading exports,
with 75-80% share

Source: Times of India Link
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Various sector approved under PLI Scheme
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Auto ACC Battery
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Government's focus on exports will drive manufa-
cturing sector going forward over the already strong
services sector. HomeFirst has strong presence in 6
states of large exporters.

As per Cll, India is poised to target $1 trillion of
merchandise exports and a similar level for services
exports by 2030. Electronics, machinery, vehicles,
pharmaceuticals and plastic products are top five
categories that have the potential to contribute the
mosttothe $1 trillion target.

In FY23, India is expected to deliver merchandise
exports of USD 439bn, an increase of 4% on Yoy basis
and also the highest ever despite the concerns in global
economy. Services export has already crossed FY22
levels of USD 252bninfirst 10months at USD 264bn and
is expected to cross USD 300bnin FY23 (all-time high).

Integrated Annual Report
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India growing exports a key driver
for economic momentum
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India’s global Merchandise Exports Market Share.

India has gained 0.1% market share in 2021 vs 2019
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Increase in India's market share of global services

exports
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India's total export market share is expected to increase to 4.5% by 2031 from around 2% in 2021

Merchandise Exports . Service Exports

HomeFirst focused states amongst top States in
Exports: Our 6 States of focused presence are the
leading states in terms of exports. Gujarat s the highest

US$ Bn
2000
1800
1600
1400
1200
1000

800
600
400
200

0

239.8

1991 2001 2011 2021

Source: Morgan Stanley Report

682.6

1197.9

2031E

7.0%
6.0%
5.0%
4.0%
3.0%
2.0%
1.0%

India Share In World Exports

Morgan Stanley expects 2021-31 CAGR for merchandise
exports to be higher at ~13% vs Services Export at ~10%
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exporter and also our largest state in terms of

presence. On the basis of FY23 (10 months data), we
have presence in 8 out of top 10 exporting states in

India. Also, we have strong presence in top 4 export

states in India i.e. Gujarat, Maharashtra, Tamil Nadu

and Karnataka.

Integrated Annual Report
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States with more than 35,000 Crores of
Exports in 10MFY23 (22 Nos)

IBn 10MFY23
12,000

10,000
8,000
6,000
4,000

2,000

Source: Government of India

HomeFirst focused 6 states have higher concentration
in Total Export Mix (Average of 65% during FY20-22,
71.4% in TOMFY23). These 6 states contributes 78% of
business (new origination) for HomeFirstin FY23.

Exports in 6 specific states of Homefirst Focus
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Source: Government of India

HomekFirst presence of 13 states has 86.5% of India's export share

Uttarakhand - 0.4%

Chattisgarh - 0.6%
Madhya Pradesh - 1.8%
Delhi- 1.8%

Rajasthan - 2.1%
Telangana - 2.5%

Haryana - 3.5%

Andhra Pradesh - 4.5%

Uttar Pradesh - 4.9%

Karnataka - 6.2%

Source: Indian Government - Ministry of Commerce

Other -13.5%

Gujarat - 33.3%

Maharashtra - 16%

Tamil Nadu - 9%

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. 20



Statutory Reports

Management Discussion and Analysis

India expected to add 22% of the world's working
age population by 2031

Working Age Population
as of 2021 (Mn)

World 5130 438 (100%)
Africa 774 241 (55%)
ROW 798 107 (24%)
India 940 G 57 (22%)
LATAN 443 31(7%)
Indonesia 188 16 (4%)
Rest of AX) 206 5 (1%)
us 215 3(1%)
Japan 74 -5 (-1%)
Europe 482 .24 (-6%) Figures in () indicate share in
world working age population addition
China 1011 -32(-7%)
-80 -30 20 70 120 170

Source: UN Population Database

India's age dependency ratio will be lower than
USA & China till the year 2069
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Today, the gap in the share of India in world exports
(around 2%) & the working age population (around 11%)
is very high vis-a-vis other large peers like China which is
in sync at 13% & 11% respectively. With the reforms &
export focused policies, this gap is expected to reduce
materially.

Share of world exports vs working age
population

Share in World Exports B Share of World's Working Age Population (Rs)
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Source: UN Population Database

Gap in Working-age population is small vis-a-vis China
of 2007

The differing demographic outlook is also one of the
key reasons India can still sustain much higher growth
rates as compared to China. At the outset, India’s per-
capita income of US $2084 (FY22) is where China was
backin2007. While thisis a 15-year gap, India’s median
age today is 28, which is 11 years younger than China
today. Interestingly, the size of India's working-age
populationtoday is also right where Chinawas in 2007.
In other words, while there is a gap between the two
economies' developmental paths, the gap is smaller
when the state of demographicsis accounted for.
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4. Rise of Middle Class & working-age population

Manufacturing sector driven growth will lead to rising middle class population and provide a secular opportunity

for Housing Finance.

With increasing share of middle-class households, the pyramid

structure today will turn in to a diamond in 2030.

Households — 219M

High 1M (1%) High 8M (3%)
Uppermid Uppermoid
16M (7%) 61M (21%)
Lower mid
51M (23%) Lower mid
97M (33%)
Low 151M
(69%) Low 127M
—_—> (43%)
—_—
2005 2018

Source: World Economic Forum

Household income per annum classification as per report:

High Income &
Upper Middle
Income Segment

High 29M (7%)

* 1in4
Uppermid households
168M (44%) today
*1in2
households
Lower mid by 2030
132M (34%)
~70M fewer
low income
Low 57M (15%) households by
e
2030
2030 forecast

Low < $4k (<INR 0.25 Mn), Lower-middle- $4k - 8.5k (INR 0.25 - 0.55 Mn), Upper-middle- $8.5k - 40k (INR 0.55 - 2.75 Mn), High: >$40k (>INR 2.75 Mn).
Poverty line at <$2 (<INR 125) per day per person. Household Income per annum at FY18 prices.

Perfect combination of rising Middle class + high
working-Age Population

The demographic dividend of a young population
combined with a large middle class amplifies the
attractiveness of India's growth potential. India's age
dependency* has been declining since the 1970s and is
expected to continue declining until 2040. According to
UN estimates, by 2030 India will emerge as one of the
largest suppliers of labor, accounting for almost 22% of
the increase in the global working-age population. The
growth rate for India's working-age population is
expected to remain higher than the world average (ex-

India) through 2038. A higher share of working-age
population relative to dependents creates an
opportunity to accelerate economic growth through the
creation of productive job opportunities. UN projects that
India's working-age population will continue growing
until 2050 whereas China's working-age population has
been in decline since 2015.

*Age dependency ratio is the ratio of dependents--people younger than 15 or
older than 64--to the working-age population--those ages 15-64.
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India's working age population saw increase whereas
China'sworking age population stagnant

Working Age Population (mn)
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Source: Haver, UN, Morgan Stanley Research

China's median age rising faster than India
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Source: UN
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5. Per Capita Income analysis and correlation
with Mortgage to GDP

As per IMF estimates, India’s per capita income (at
constant prices) is expected to grow at 7.8% CAGR from
FY20 to FY25 rising from USD 1877 in 2020 to USD 2729
by FY25. The per capita income is expected to grow
along with improvement in GDP growth. As per ADB,
higher per capita income leads to higher discretionary
income which will lead to higher spending including
buying of larger housing space. This can be
corroborated with the trend of mortgage to GDP seen
in the USA from 1946 to 2000. In 1946, per capita
income in the USA was at similar levels as where India is
now (~$2000 non-PPP adjusted). As incomes rose from
$2000 to $5000 (between 1946 to 1973), mortgage
penetration has increased from 12% to 30%. If adjusted
for PPP, India is at similar levels to where USA was in
1973. USA's per capita income has strong correlation
with mortgage to GDP since then.

Increasing per capita income helped increase
mortgage penetrationin USA

70 90.0%
833%

80.0%

70.0%

India is here today %
60.0%

40

e 50.0%

Low teens 40.0%
Mortgage to GDP% 2

30.0%

28 20.0%

57800 Per Capita Income

10.0%

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

______________________________________

Per Capital Income in USD (LHS) == Mortgage Penetration as % GDP (RHS)

Source: World Bank & US Federal Bank

As incomerises, the share of EMI on Household income
also reduces. As shown in the chart below from HDFC
Securities, the mortgage penetration is higher in
Australia, UK, US, Germany, etc where the per capita
income is higher vs other countries and the mortgage
penetrationis also higher.
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Similar is the observation if we analyse various states in India. Higher Per Capita Income have high correlation with
mortage penetration. Maharashtra, Telangana, Karnataka, Gujarat, Kerala, Haryana, etc are high GDP states and also
have high mortgage penetration. Our strategy is to target these states and hence decided to focus on 6 specific large
market of Maharashtra, Gujarat, Tamil Nadu, Karnataka and AP&T.

Low EMI component drives High mortgage
penetration

140%
s B Indonesia ™ China
@ 105%
g India (Urban)
< [ ]
0
% 70% M India (Rural) . Australia
3 = B Malaysia B UK .
3 35% South Africa m WUS
s Germany
w
0%
0% 25% 50% 75% 100%
Mortgage to GDP Ratio (%)
Source: RBI

India’s state re-presentation on Mortgage
to GDP vs Per Capita Income (FY22)

14,000
Haryana

Karnataka

Telengana

12,000

Kerala Gujarat

Himachal Pradesh Tamil Nadu Maharashtra

10,000
Uttarakhand
Arunachal Pradesh
Punjab

8,000
Madhya Pradesh

Odisha Rajasthan

West Bengal

Andhra Pradesh

6,000
Jammu & Kashmir
Chhattisgarh
Manipur
Jharkhand

4,000 Assam
Uttar Pradesh

Bihar
2,000

10.0% 15.0% 20.0% 25.0%

Per Capita Income - PPP Adjusted (FY22)

0.0% 5.0%

Mortgage to GDP Ratio (%)

Source: NHB & Company workings

India’s State Representation on Per Capita Income ($PPP Adjusted) FY22

Chandigarh Himachal Pradesh State-Wise Per Capita Income ($PPP Adjusted)
1 ”32 Ladakh D
Sikkim
Jammug Kashmir_____ Uttarakha”d 23808 0 23808
5544 9896
Meghalaya
Delhi PunJaL* Uttar :;asdesh B
8144
19939 Arunachal Pradesh . ..
Maryana j 2:1;; 8318 We believe the rising
Rajasthan 12816 - Assam middle class with a
6519 " 4876 .. .
‘ 2 Manipur rising working-age
Gujarat T‘r;lspgsri_ 4194 Mizoram population will drive
—_— =
11829 . Iharkhand 7996 income. As we have seen
- = Bengal 3641 . " .
Madhya Pradesh 5751 ) in US, rising Per Capita
5686 Chhattisgarh o
Maharashtra ~ odisha 5369 Income supports rising
10586 ~ soma mortgage penetration.
Telengana We can expect the
2(;3:9 — 12403 penetration to rise from
Andra Pradesh X 0
Karnataka 5260 India Average current level of 11% to
11997 = $7,094 atleast double in the
ﬁﬁ; — ¥ Tamil Nadu next decade.
10498
Source: Company workings
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6. Digital Leapfrogging - IndiaStack to drive
efficiency & productivity gains, drive long
term economy growth

IndiaStack is digital transformation of Indian economy
at population scale. It is the collective name of a set of
commonly used Digital Public Infrastructure (DPIs) in
India. It consists of three different layers—unique
identity (Aadhaar), complimentary payments systems
(Unified Payments Interface, Aadhaar Payments
Bridge, Aadhaar Enabled Payment Service), and data
exchange (DigiLocker, Account Aggregator, Open
Credit Enablement Network (OCEN), Open Network for
Digital Commerce (ONDC), etc). Together they enable
online, paperless, cashless, and privacy-respecting
digital accessto avariety of publicand private services.

This has changed the way India processes documents
(especially official ones), invests, and makes payments.
It is India's highly inclusive and transaction-led model.
IndiaStack provides interoperability, democratizes
dataandis decentralized.

In under a decade, nearly 100% of the country's
population has been given a digital identity, something

The Components of Digital India

which is now powering a digital revolution providing
tremendous efficiency gains in both public and private
sectors.

High penetration/increasing usage of DPIs:
1.Aadhar ID issued for 1.37bn out of 1.4bn population

(almost 98% penetration)
2.UPI has more than 50% share in total payments,
rising from around 24% few years ago

Outcome has benefited HomeFirst and many other
players with tech stack. We believe that companies
with better technology capabilities backed by talented
workforce and strong leadership will witness superior
business performance in the new world. There is an
increased willingness of customers to avail financial
services through digital channels. This has also helped
in penetrating new regions. We have been proponents
of technology usage almost since the inception of the
company as we believe this will drive scalability and
profitability for the company. Digital payments have
evolved from being viewed as a cost centre to a
revenue centre and will be a key lever for customer
acquisitioninthe near future.

12-digit unique identifiable number based on biometric and demographic data

Aadhar UID 1,32 bn Aadhar cards have been issued as of Oct-21
Paperless KYC process, verifying subsciber’s identity and address electronically
e-KYC through AADHAR
13 bn transactions as of Sep-22
Enables all bank account holders to send and receive money instantly using
m—— UPI smart phone, without bank account information

Digital
India

B—— e-RUPI

m—— Digilocker

%11.1 tn worth of transactions as of Sep-22

Prepaid vouchers delivered to beneficiary mobile phones in an SMS string or a
OR code, ensuring access to welfare benefits for the unbanked population.

Platform for issuing and verifying documents digitally using cloud storage
linked to Aadhar
127.8 mn users registered as of Sep-22

Unified indirect tax administration platform for the entire country to handle
GSTIN invoices. returns, registrations and payments

13.9 mn business registered as of Aug-22

Source: Various. Direct Benefit

Transfer

Direct transfer of cash pr in-kind benefits and subsidies to citizens living below
poverty line

324.6 tn of cumulative transfer as of FYTD23
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Strong growth on UPI Payment Method
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As per ACI Worldwide Report on Digital Payments, Real-Time Payments is expected to add 1.12% of India's GDP by
2026. This is facilitated through net savings for businesses and consumers of $92.4 billion helping generate an

additional $45.9 billion of economic output whichis 1.12% of GDP by 2026.

Volume of real-time digital payments of India vis-a-vis other major countries (Transaction in Mns)

Source: ACI Worldwide
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7. Major Demand Drivers increasing this number. Household credit*

penetration is at 36% which highlights that housing
Indian Housing Demand Scenario & Housing Finance penetration is likely to be even lower and hence, the
Opportunity large opportunity.

Credit Penetration in India is lower vs other peers,
Housing penetration is one important trigger for

Total Credit Penetration & Household Credit Penetration of India vis-a-vis peers as % of GDP

Total Credit Penetration as on Sep-22 Household Credit Penetration as on Sep-22
France 231 Australia 114
Korea 225 Korea 105
China 220 Canada 103
Canada 217 Denmark 87
Denmark 216 United Kingdom 85
Singapore 187 United States 75
Japan 185 Japan 68
Australia 178 France 67
Finland 177 Finland 65
United Kingdom 154 China 61
United States 154 Germany 56
Germany 129 Singapore 50
indis QN ¢ incia QI 5

Source: Bank of International Settlement.
*Household credit is the credit includes credit extended by lendinginstitutions to households.

Rising Mortgage Penetration to GDP ratio: Mortgage to GDP Ratio is rising every year though India is still behind many
countries in mortgage penetration ratio.

India Mortgage to GDP % 13.0
11.7
10.9
9.6 10.2
g7 91 ’
8.4
75 79 7.9 24 77 80
6.5 69 g7 6.9 7.1
5.3
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 ... .. 2025E*

Source: CSO, RBI. * KPMG Projection.

Highly Industrialised / Urbanised centers have high mortgage to GDP ratio and we believe it will continue as housing
ecosystems are developed around these Centers. Also, reforms in other states will propel the housing ecosystem driving
mortgage finance.
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India’s state-wise’s Mortgage to GDP ratio

Himachal Pradesh State-Wise Mortgage to GDP Ratio

4.25
Ladakh - 1D
Jammu& Kashm|r Uttarakhand 0.00 20.85
4.49 8.99

Uttar Pradesh

Punjab  I- 3.77
7.51 )
Haryana "~ dwwie Bihar Arunachal Pradesh
4 10.06 3.77 1.8
Rajasthan e Assam
8.33 T 440
. Manlpur
Gujarat
1J2.2 _ 4.04 harkhand
Madhya Pradesh Bengal 3.99
6.27 .
6.41 Chhattisgarh
Maharashtra Odisha 6.81
20.85 3.63
Telengana
15.33
Karnataka
12.22 Andra Pradesh
8.67 All India Mortgage to GDP Ratio (FY22)
~1109,
Kerala . 1%
11.07 Tamil Nadu
. 10.46

Source: National Housing Bank FY22 Annual Report

Housing Loans contributes a small share of overall creditin the system, this is one sector which canincrease the overall
credit penetration in India. Bank’s Credit to Housing sector (directly to individual customers + on-lending vis HFCs)
witnessed growth of 12.9% CAGR over 4 years from 2019 to 2023

Total credit to Housing sector by Banks
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Share of Housing in total bank credit
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Strong growth potential in Housing Finance

India’s real estate sector, which is a $200-billion market
currently, has come out of the disruptions caused by
the Covid and is on the path to become a $1 trillion
industry by 2030 (as per NARDECO & EY report). With
growing urbanization, nuclearization, increasing
working population coupled with increasing per capita
income, demand for housing will see a rise. As per a
report by Knight Frank, there will be a housing gap for
about 97 mn households by 2030, up from 70mn
households in 2019. These numbers are very close to
thatinthe RBIdocument published in 2019.

As per Experian, the overall affordable housing
outstanding credit growth grew at a CAGR of ~12%
during Mar'18-Dec’22. The major growth drivers being
increase in penetration of financiers in rural and semi-
urban areas, favourable demographics, government
push to promote “Housing for All", and improved
affordability of borrowers. The affordable housing
market outstanding is ~¥10 trillion as on Dec’22 and as

Integrated Annual Report
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per various research, it is projected to grow by at least
15% CAGR in the medium term to touch ~ %28 trillion by
FY30. In volume terms, affordable housing loans
comprises majority of overall housingloan volumes.

As per our analysis, there is demand of 2mn units in a
year for housing ticket size between %0.5-2.5 Mn. We
believe, for HomeFirst, assuming 31.07 Mn (with
inflation of 5% p.a) as average ticket size, there is an
opportunity for housing finance of USD 336 Bn over
next 10 years for our target segment in core affordable
housing business.
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Bank’'sshareincreasesin the prime segment

Itis witnessed that banks and large HFCs are focused on high ticket size loans which is evident from the rising share of
>25 Lakh ticket size loans. This creates a huge opportunity for players like HomeFirst who can add value for loans with
ticket-size lessthan¥ 2.5 Mn.

Banking Sector's Outstanding Housing AUM Mix in in various ticket size (in %)

101 10.1 11.1 11.6 11.3 123 13.2 13.9 16.9 18.3
15.4 14.6 14.6
91 104 11 11.8 12.4 135 143
20.2 21.8 23.7 25.4
273 288 294
32.0
30.4 31.2
35.2 355
35.1
34.6 34.4
33.2
321 31.0 27.9
29.3
22.5 22.5 19.0
16.6
12.2 10.9 ' 9.4 8.0 7.2 '
Mar 14 Mar 15 Mar 16 Mar 17 Mar 18 Mar 19 Mar 20 Mar 21 Mar 22 Dec 22
® <1mn >1Mn <2.5Mn >2.5Mn <5Mn >5Mn <10Mn >10Mn
187 CAGR 15.7%
168 20.6%
Exhibit: Banking Sector's Outstanding 25
. .. . . . 148
Housing AUM in in various ticket size (3Tn) 2 25.4%
132 20
Source: RBI 28
18
113 23
60 21.9%
95 14 19
52
82 10 15 4
73
9 12 39
63 8
10 32
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6 26 52 7%
> 17 21
5 14 46 49
1 42
28 33 38
22 26
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14 [
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The major growth drivers supporting higher mortgage penetration are:

Apart from the positives highlighted on domestic economy, there are some specific drivers of housing sector growth

benefiting housing finance business.

Housing Loan Growth Drivers for HomeFirst

870 Mn
1990

1.43 bn
2023

1.67 bn
2050

749 Mn
2010

900 Mn
2020

1.1 bn
2050

Rising Working Age

Rising Population Population

Nuclearisation (Average

5.0 4.6 4.5
2010 2021 2031

67 Mn
2005

158 Mn
2018

300 Mn
2030

Rising Middile-Class

Household Size) Households

$866
2012

$2084
2022

$5242
2031

31%
2010

Rising Per Capita
Income

39.4%
Mar14

51.0%
Mar18

64.9%
Dec'22

Premiumisation (Bank’s non-

focus in affordable housing)*

35%
2021

Urbanisation

Lower Tax outgo by 48%,
PSL benefit to lenders, etc.

40%
2031

Only 2.8% property price rise
CAGR between Dec 18 - Dec 22

Improved
Affordability

Inclination for home
ownership post covid

Changing dynamics of

Government Incentives

housing demand post covid

*Banks share in ticket size above ¥ 2.5 Mn.
Source: Various

Increasing Population:

The pace of rising population will propel India to the
most populated country by 2050. India is currently the
second most populated country in the world after
China. India’s population currently stands at around
1417 Mn Crs which is expected to rise to 1568 Mn by
2035 and 1670Mn by 2050. This is one of the key
drivers to rising housing demand potential in the
country.

Exhibit: India's growing population (in Mn)

India == China
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Source: UN Population Database
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Covid led to change in house ownership dynamics:

As per various surveys, reverse migration has further
supported an increase in housing demand in tier 11/1ll
cities. This is validated by the strong recovery seen in
Real Estate sector post in the past 2 years. Also, as per
experts, the demand dynamics of the Indian real
estate have undergone a change during pandemic.
Buyers are demanding homes which offer more
liveable space. The residential property now doubles
up as an office corner, virtual gym as well as a place for
onlineschooling.

Initiatives to boost housing ownership by
government:

Initiatives such as Income tax deductions along with
various regulatory measures to boost liquidity and
demand for housing have been instrumental in
boosting the housing demand in the past. We expect
that these will continue going forward as well given
that housing ownership in India is low as compared to
other countries.

101



Statutory Reports

Management Discussion and Analysis

Home Ownership Comparison Between
Major Countries (%) (Year 2020)
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Source: Trading Economics.com & Knight Frank

Urbanisation:

South Korea

Germany

Hong Kong

According to Census 2011, Urbanisation in India rose
from 28%in 2001 to around 31% by 2011. Currently itis
around 36% as per World Bank. Urban population is
expected to cross Rural population in the year 2045
and to reach 53% by 2050 as per United Nations report
on World Urbanization Prospects 2018 Revision.
Higher urbanisation is expected to boost demand for
housing in urban areas. It is estimated that around 70-
75% of India's GDP will be contributed by Urban

centres by 2030.
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UN expects India to have more cities due to rapid

urbanization. This will help build ecosystem and

opportunity for housing sector

Urban population by size of urban

settlement
Population
600 Mn
7 Cities
2 Cities
5 Cities
400 Mn
4 Cities 62 Cities
52 Cities 70 Cities
49 Cities 94 Cities
2 Cities 71 Cities
200Mn 5 Cities
20 Cities
30 Cities
40 Cities
0 1990 2018

. Below 3,00,000 3,00,000 to 5,00,000

1to 5 million 5 to 10 million

Source: https://population.un.org/wup/Country-Profiles/

Urban and rural population in India
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5,00,000 to 1 million

10 million or more

2050
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Rising Per-capita income & its strong linkage with
mortgage penetration as explained earlier on Page
no.93

Nuclear Families Led Consumption

Reducing average household size driven by changing
lifestyle of people, changing social culture, and
increased mobility of labour is expected to continue in
future. The average household size has reduced from
5.5 persons in 1991 to 4.6 persons in 2021 and will
further reduce to 4.5 by 2031 as per Morgan Stanley..
Nuclearization is also expected to drive housing
demand.

RBI House Price Index

94
100

Working Population led Economic growth

As per Economic Survey FY19, working age population
will grow by 9.7 million per year during FY21-31 and 4.2
million per year during FY31-41. Favourable
demographics coupled with declining age of home loan
borrowers, growth in salaries/ incomes and increasing
preference to accumulate assets is also expected to
boost mortgage penetrationin India.

Stable Housing Prices driving affordability

As per RBI statistics, the affordability of housing is at its
highest and as shown in the chart below, the housing
price rise has slowed down since mid of 2017. With

lower price levels of houses, the housing demand is
expected to continue to be strong.

2.8%
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8. Conclusion

We believe that there are various factors at play for the growth of housing sector and its finance through
mortgage. India's will have highest GDP growth amongst large peers and this is expected to sustain from
structurally strong policy reforms. These reforms will continue to result in higher manufacturing sector growth
and exports helped by FDI flows. This economic momentum will drive higher working-age population and create
more middle-class households. Globally, Per Capita Income growth has led to higher mortgage penetration and
India will witness the same over the next few decades. We believe, your company HomeFirst is placed at the right
spot to benefit from these reforms and we are working on our to mission of being the Fastest Provider of Home
Finance for the Aspiring Middle Class, delivered with Ease and Transparency.
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Our Performance Overview

During FY23, HomeFirst continued scaling up and
maintained its growth momentum with an increase of
33.8% in AUM over FY22. Further, we registered a
growth of 48.4% y-o-y increase in annual disbur-
sements. Our annual disbursal for the year 2016 was
¥277 Crs - which is close to our disbursal for the month
of Mar'23. This robust growth was possible on account
of the focus on distribution in core markets, strong
liquidity position, risk management processes and
increased use of technology across the processes. This
focus has translated into best in class return on assets
of 3.9% (Mar'22 :3.6%) and return on equity of 13.5%
(Mar'22:11.8%). Gross Stage 3 (GNPA) stands at 1.6%in
line with the RBI circular dated 12 Nov 2021. Prior to
such classification, it stands at 0.9%. The
corresponding figures for Mar'22 are 2.3% post-RBI
circularand 1.3% priortocircular.

Let us examine the building blocks of our growth story
forthefiscal year ending 2023.

Assets Under Management

Our AUM increased from ¥5380 Crs as of Mar'22 to
¥7198 Crs as of Mar'23 - a y-o0-y growth of 33.8% (36.6%
prior to CLSS subsidy). We crossed another milestone
of ¥7000 Crs AUM. We have multiplied by 8.5X in a 5-yr

AUM in States FY17
Gujarat 280
Maharashtra 310
Tamil Nadu 80
Telangana 9
Andhra Pradesh -
Karnataka 76

FY20
1438
785
360
176
47
325

span of 2017 to 2023. This shows our ability to meet
customers' demands and improve our market share
across our focus markets while maintaining our
portfolio quality.

We are committed to driving our growth pan-India and
reducing any concentration risk. We started with a
presence in 98 districts at the beginning of the year and
have grown our reach to 119 districts at the end of the
fiscal year 2023. Our core states remain Gujarat,
Maharashtra, Tamil Nadu, Telangana, Andhra Pradesh
and Karnataka. For 9MFY23 these states comprise
more than 50% of total affordable housing finance
market in the country. HomeFirst has shown growth in
these states over the years (see table below). Our
contiguous expansion in these markets is facilitating us
to reach our long-term target of 10% market share in
each ofthese marketsin due course of time.

Assets Under Management (FCrs)

CAGR is for 6 years from FY17 to FY23 for all the above states except Andhra Pradesh

Integrated Annual Report
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Last 4 Years Last 4 Quarters
7,198 7,198
6,275 6,751
5,380 5,832
4,141
s00
FY20 Fy21 FY22 FY23 Jun22 Sep'22 Dec'22 Mar23
FY23 CAGR
2343 42%
1037 22%
988 52%
639 104%
322 89%
539 39%
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GeographicPresence

We ended the year with 265 touchpoints and having a
presence in 119 districts spreading over 13 states/UT.
The Top 200 districts comprise of 82%* of the total
affordable housing finance marketin India. HomeFirst
present in 101 of these 200 districts. Our expansion
strategy focusses on presence in large affordable
housing markets in Tier 1, Tier 2 and Tier 3 markets.
Thedistributionis granular and branches/touchpoint
expansion is done in a calibrated manner - ensuring
market capture as well as asset quality, productivity
and operating costs. We have stuck to our tried and
tested strategy of contiguous expansion across
regions by evaluating areas with high economic
growth and substantial demand for affordable
housing finance, along with industry portfolio-at-risk
and socio- economic risk profile. This approach has
helped us to reach 36 physical branches in 6 years by
2017, and thereon the number of branches grown 3x
in the next 6 years by 2023 to touch 111 physical
branches.

*5-25L Ticket Size
For our presence across India, please refer to
Geographic Presence on pg no.11

Disbursements

During the year, we have been successful in growing
our disbursements month on month! We have
exhibited a steady increase in loan disbursements
with a growing customer base and a healthy loan
portfolio. This is possible on account of the strategic
expansion of our branch network, the introduction of
innovative loan products, and Best-in-class tech stack
to enhance operational efficiency and customer
experience. Disbursements crossed ¥3000 Crs during
theyear.

Disbursement (ZCrs)

Last 4 Years Last 4 Quarters
3,013
2,031
1,097
1,618
861
780
. 661 702
FY20 Fy21 FY22 FY23 QTFY23  Q2FY23  Q3FY23  Q4FY23

Product Metrics

Our product metrics continue to focus towards
salaried customers having credit history. Our
approach to LAP is cautious and bulk of our LAP
customers are quasi home loans and for self use. We
continue to carefully monitor our risk profile and
continue to have low under construction properties
exposure. Our LTV at the time of sanction stands at
56%.
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Loan to Value (LTV) -
Based on AUM (Live Book)
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Credit Approval & Disbursement Process

Step 1: Initial Screening
and Pre-Sanction Check

1. Customer leads are 1.

logged into the
system

2. Each lead checked
against KYC, credit
bureau and third-party

database checks 2.

3. Workspace and
residence verifications
undertaken by RMs

4. Loan application is
submitted on central
platform

5. Centralized credit
underwriting is

then conducted 3.

Asset Quality: Healthy Leading

Step 2: Customer Credit
Underwriting

Centralized
underwriting team is
assisted by data
science backed
customer-scoring
model

Integrated customer
relationship
management and loan
management system
allow our underwriters
to conduct the credit
appraisal processin a
quick and efficient
manner.

Third-party databases
along with proprietary
machine learning
credit scoring models
to assist us with our
credit assessment
process.

Indicators

Step 3: Property Underwriting

& disbursement process

1. Collateral value is
assessed at the time of
sanctioning as well as
disbursal

2. Legal and technical
assessment through
third party vendors is
initiated to verify the
authenticity of the
technical documents.
legal title to the
collateral property and
its market value.

3. Our proprietary ML
backed property price
predictor coupled with
geo-tagging of
properties further
assists in reducing our
turnaround times for
approving loans and
improving accuracy in
determining loan to
value ratio.

Step 4: Loan Collection and

2.

3.

4.

Monitoring

Robust collection
management system
with prescribed
collection at each stage
of severity of default.
We can track status of
installments collected
on a real time basis
through a collection
module

Customers are
reminded of their
payment schedules
through automated
calls and text
messages

Our collection process
is completely managed
by our branch teams
and a significant
portion of our
employee incentives
are dependent on
collections.

Our bounce rates have been continuously improving and are inching towards pre-covid numbers. Collection efficiency
has also remained high consistently .

Bounce rate

CcoviD
WAVE-2

COVID WAVE-1
36.4%
|
28.3%
|
20.1%
u 17.3%
|
9.5%  10.0% 10-9% 10-“%
|
QTFY20 Q2FY20 Q3FY20 Q4FY20 QTFY21 Q2FY21 Q3FY21 Q4FY21
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18.3%
u

Q1FY22  Q2FY22

Bounce rates normalising

14.0%

16.5%
|
|

15.7% 14.5%
u ]

Q3FY22  Q4FY22  QIFY23
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Q2FY23  Q3FY23

14.9%
|

13.6%
|

Q4FY23
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Collection Efficiency

Collection Efficiency trending back to normal levels

9 9 98.8% 98.4% 98.59 98.0 98.8% 98.9% 98.7% 98.5% 99.3%
97'8%6‘ % 98.2% 97 2% 98'4/°97A1% 97.5% 97.3% 97.2% 96.9% 97.3% 97.4% 97.4% 97.3% 97.8%
Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23
. o 1 . 2
B Collection Efficiency " Unique Customers®

(1) Collection Efficiency =Total #of EMIs received in the month (including arrears of previous months) / Total #of loan accounts whose EMIs are due

in the month

(2) Unique customers =#of customers who made at least one payment in the month / Total #of Customers whose EMIs' are due in the month

We continued our relentless focus on early bucket
collections. Also, we have provided the feature to our
customers to make the payments via app as well as
through remote payment links. This has made the
process of making payments much easier for our
customers and is reflected in our collections strength.
This has given results by bringing down our 1+ DPD as
well as 30+ DPD. Our 30+ DPD metrics are amongst the
best in the industry. Additionally, the improving trend
in bounce rate and strong collection efficiency has
resulted in controlling our GNPA % to 1.6% in Mar'23.
This has improved by 70bps compared to our GNPA
levels at Mar'22 which stood at 2.3%. Prior to RBI
circular, our GNPA % for Mar'23 stands at 0.9% (Mar'22
is 1.3%). Our Stage 3 Provision Coverage Ratio stands
at 59.5% (104.8% pre-RBI circular) as at Mar'23
compared to 47.1% (83.6% pre-RBI circular) as at
Mar'22.
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Gross Stage 3/ POS (GNPA) %

Last 4 Years

2.3%

1.8%

1.0%

Mar20 Mar'21 Mar'22 Mar'23

B Re-classification due to RBI circular

Last 4 Quarters

2.1%

0,
. 1.9% 1.8% | 6%

. (1]

0.9%

0.8% 9

oo
1.2% 1.1% 1.1% 0.9%

Jun'22 Sep22 Dec22 Mar'23
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Our Financial Performance:

Particulars (FCrs) FY23 FY22 YoY%
Interest Income on term loans 682.50 477.04 43%
Net gain on DA 38.04 67.83 -44%
Non-interest income 75.06 50.82 48%
Total Income 795.60 595.70 34%
Interest on borrowings and commercial papers 303.26 214.82 41%
Net Interest Income 379.24 262.23 45%
Net Total Income 492.34 380.89 29%
Operating Expenses 175.60 129.57 36%
Credit Cost 21.52 25.02 -14%
Profit before tax 295.22 226.30 30%
Tax expense 66.93 52.21 28%
One-time adjustment - -12.01

Profit after tax 228.29 186.10 23%
Adjusted PAT 228.29 174.09 31%
Basic EPS 26.01 21.26

Diluted EPS 25.20 20.54

Key Financial Ratios

Particulars (3Crs) FY23 FY22 Variance
Profit after tax on average total assets (ROA) 3.9% 3.6%" + 30 bps
Leverage (Average total assets/average Equity or average 3.5 3.3

Net-worth)

Profit after tax on average equity or average Net-worth (ROE) 13.5% 11.8%" +170 bps
Cost to Income Ratio (Operating Expenses / Net Total Income) 35.7% 34.0% +170 bps
Operating Expenses / Average total assets 3.0% 2.7%

Debt to equity ratio 2.6 2.2

Mdjusted RoA at 3.6% computed considering Adjusted PAT for FY22 without the impact of one-time deferred tax liability adjustment
# Adjusted RoE at 11.8% computed considering Adjusted PAT for FY22 without the impact of one-time deferred tax liability adjustment
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Profit After Tax

Our Profit After Tax increased by 31.1% as compared to previous fiscal year. The key drivers to this growth were strong
NIMs, optimal use of cash and judicious operating costs. Our RoE has grown from 11.8% to 13.5% in a span of 1 year.
This has been possible due to healthy growth of portfolio book coupled with strong collections.

Profit After Tax (FCrs)

Last 4 Years

228
Last 4 Quarters
174%
100
80
' . 51 54 59 64

FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Q1FY23 Q2FY23 Q3FY23 QA4FY23
*174 Crs is Adjusted PAT for FY22 without the positive impact of one-time deferred tax liability adjustment

Spread on Loans

Our spreads were consistently above 5.5%. We have implemented 2 repricing actions of 25 bpsin Q2 and 50 bpsin Q3
totalingto 75 bpsin FY23. The repricing and increase in interest earning assets have resulted into increase of “Interest
Income on Term Loans to Average Total Assets” to 11.5% in FY23 from 9.9% in FY22. Our cost of borrowing has been
competitive at 7.4% and incremental cost on fresh borrowing for the year was 8.2%.

Net Interest Spread Movement

Last 4 Years Last 4 Quarters
12.9% 13.0% 12.8% 13.1% 12.7% 13.0% 13.1% 13.4%
o o - —u - — —a
8.8%
’ 8.0% . %
7.2% 7.4% 6.9% 71% 7.4%
FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Q1FY23 Q2FY23 Q3FY23 Q4FY23
5.6% 5.7% 5.8% 5.8% 5.7% 5.5%
5.0%
4.1%
FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Q1FY23 Q2FY23 Q3FY23 Q4FY23

=l Portfolio Yield Spread CcoB
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Resource Mobilisation

Shareholders' Funds

Our Shareholders' Funds as of Mar'23 stood at ¥1,817 Crs. The increase was primarily due to increase in retained

earnings.

Particulars ZinCrs
Opening Equity as on Mar'22 1,573.68
Add: Shares issued during the year - represents increase on account of face value for the 0.08
shares allotted pursuant to ESOPs exercised

Add: Increase in securities premium on account of premium received on allotment of shares 5.18
Add: Statutory Reserve transfer for the period 45.90
Add: Increase in retained earnings (net off transfer to statutory reserve) 182.40
Add: Option valuation linked credit 10.24
Add: Other Comprehensive Income (0.14)
Closing Equity as on Mar'23 1817.34

ESOP allotment

During FY23, the company has issued and allotted
3,83,064 equity shares pursuant to the exercise of
stock options by eligible employees of the company
under ESOP plans. Further during the year 1,25,900
ESOPs were granted to the employees under the
HomeFirst ESOP Scheme 2021.

Borrowings

The Borrowings of the company stood at¥4,813.47 Crs
as at Mar'23 as against ¥3,466.77 Crs as at Mar'22.
During the year, funding to the tune of ¥3,618 Crs was
raised. The Company also placed long term NCD of
¥280 Crs with International Finance Corporation for
financing affordable homeloans and green homes. The
Company's liability profile is well diversified and
comprises 26 lending relationships and continues to
focus on raising long term borrowing at a competitive
rate. During the year we added 5 new banks i.e. Qatar
National Bank, J&K Bank, Karnataka Bank, Yes Bank and
Shinhan Bank (Seoul based South Korean Bank).

During FY23, the Company had not issued any
Commercial Paper or any Short-Term Instrument.

Accordingly, the Company's Commercial Paper
outstandingwas NIL as at Mar'23.

As at the end of Mar'23, we had a liquidity buffer of
¥1,802 Crs - comprising of unencumbered cash and
cash equivalent of ¥537 Crs and ¥665 Crs of un-availed
sanctions from the banks and 3600 Crs of un-availed
sanctionsfrom NHB.

Total Borrowings (in ¥ Crs)
Includes Direct Assignment and co-lending

Last 4 Years

5,956
4,492
3,070 ?iw
FY20 Fy21 FY22 FY23
Last 4 Quarters
5,801 5,956

4,839 >228

Q1FY23 Q2FY23  Q3FY23 Q4FY23
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Our analysis of Strengths and Weaknesses helps us identify and manage our business risks in a better manner

Integrated Annual Report

STRENGTHS

« Strategic selection of markets, deeper and
contiguous penetration in large affordable
housing finance markets with omnichannel
distribution strategy.

* Best in class tech stack to enhance risk
management, customer experience and
operational efficiency.

* Robust risk management framework coupled

with strong collection process and culture.

+ Data science-backed underwriting.

WEAKNESSES

+ Sensitive to changing interest rates and
market conditions.

* Limited brand recognition compared to
banks.

THREATS

« Competitive intensity from time to time.

+ Any adverse movement in the industry/
macro-economic environment.

« Economic downturns and natural disasters
affecting portfolio quality.

OPPORTUNITIES

+ Growing demand for affordable housing
finance in India coupled with existing low
mortgage penetration.

« Demographic factors such as urbanisation,
nuclearization and the increasing working
population of India.

* Expansion into new geographies.

« Government initiatives to boost affordable
housing.

Risk Management

Risk Management at HomeFirst includes risk
identification, risk assessment, risk measurement and
risk mitigation, with its main objective being to
minimize the negative impact on profitability and
capital.

HomeFirst is exposed to various risks that are an
inherent part of any financing business. The major risks
are Credit Risk, Market Risk, Liquidity Risk, Interest Rate
and Operational Risk, including IT Risk. Alongside,
some of the critical non-financial risk applicable are
Reputation Risk, Compliance Risk, ESG Related Risk and
Cybersecurity risk, etc.

To enable efficient management of risk, an
independent Risk Governance Structure, in line with
Regulatory was putin place in the context of separation
of duties and ensuring the independence of risk
measurement, monitoring and control functions.

The Risk management framework enhanced in line
with new Regulatory guidelines/directives with formal
Risk Appetite Framework, Stress Test Scenarios and
assessment of risks (those that are not
captured/factored in the capital adequacy prescribed
by Regulator) under Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP).

The various risks across HomeFirst are monitored and
reviewed through the Management Level Committees
and the Risk Management Committee (RMC), which
meetsregularly.

Corporate Governance Structure

HomeFirst believe that sound corporate governance is
critical in enhancing and retaining stakeholders' trust.
It is a reflection of HomeFirst's principles of fairness,
responsibility and sustainability. Accordingly, Home
First seek to ensure that the performance is driven by
integrity.

The Board exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the
widest sense and provide strategic guidance. The
Board members are individuals with diverse
backgrounds and expertise, and includes independent
directorsto provide objective oversight.
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Borrowings Mix

Last 4 Years
19% 20%

0% 6%
21%

2% 29%
33% 1%

25%
- @
FY20 FY21

B Pvt Banks

23%
4%
27%
2%
22%

Fy22

Public Banks

19%
6%
15%
2%

26%

NBFC NHB Refinance

Last 4 Quarters

22%
3%
25%
3%
22%

25%

NCD

21%
3%
21%
3%
20%

Q1FY23

Q2FY23

19%
6%
17%
2%
24%

Direct Assignment and Co-Lending

Q3FY23

19%
6%
15%
2%

26%

Q4FY23

We also have cumulative positive ALM gaps in all buckets. ALM framework is monitored in tandem with Company's
business strategy and risk management. Further LCR requirements were duly adhered to. As at Mar'23, the company
holds a liquidity buffer of¥1,802 CrsandLCRof 157.2%.

ALM Position - Cumulative

Surplus (ZCrs) 631

§ Inflow  Outflow

1,409
. 778

0-3 months

759

1,988

. 1,229

3-6 months

Further detailing can be referred in the Financial Capital Chapter on page no. 53
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880

2,903
2,023

6-12 months

1,285

6,175
4,890

1-3 years

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

2,431

8,987

6,556

3-5years

2,041

11,381

9,340

5+ years
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board of Directors

Board Level Audit Nomination and | Stakeholder | Corporate Social | Risk T Strate .
. Committee = Remuneration Relationship | Responsibility Management . . S I
Committee . : : : Committee Function
Committee Committee Committee Committee
e Dedicated
Chief
cri Compliance
rievance '
Management Credit Redressal Asset-liability Officer (CCO)
Committee Committee Committee Committee e Nodal Officer
for NHB
. e Focus on RBI/
Regulatory Capital Risk Assessed in ICAAP Stress Test NHB/SEBI
compliance
. . * Periodic
* Market Risk * Strategic Risk Compliance
e CRM Risk e Cyber & info Risk 5 Freli Bk Tracker
Risk e Reputation Risk e Credit Concentration e Liquidity Risk
Management Credit Risk e HR Risk e Interest Rate Risk lquidity Risk-
e Operation Risk ¢ Compliance Risk * Credit Concentration
Framework e Liquidity Risk e ESG Risk e Interest Rate Risk
Risk Assessment Risk Control Reporting
® Regulatory Approach ® Mitigation / Risk Limits ® Regulatory
e Credit/Property Criteria e Deviation approval matrix e Internal MIS
e Parameter tracking e Disclosures
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Corporate Information

Internal
Audit
Function

* Independent
function

¢ Risk Based
Internal Audit

* Regular
Branch Audit

* Annual HO
Process Audit
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Risk Management Framework

The Risk Management Committee reviews all the risks
and policies at timely intervals to ensure they arein line
with the growth of the Company. Further, the Board
also monitors the risks and their mitigants through its
sub-committees like ALCO, Risk Management
Committee, and IT Strategy Committee. The Audit
Committee observes how the management oversees
compliance with the risk management policies and
procedures. It also reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework with respect to the risks faced
by the Company from time to time.

Risk Appetite

The Risk Appetite is the aggregate level and types of risk
an organisation is willing to assume to achieve its
strategic objectives and business plan. It is decided in
advance and withinits risk capacity.

At HomeFirst, Risk Appetite framework incorporates
limits for significant risks with monitoring parameters.
It's a combination of quantitative and qualitative
parameters, shortlisted and aligned with its business
strategy. The board and senior management team

Type of Risk Description

Credit Risk The possibility of losses associated
with decrease in the credit quality of
borrowers or counterparties. In a
credit portfolio, losses stem from
outright default due to inability or
unwillingness of a customer or
counterparty to meet commitments
in relation to lending, trading,
settlement and other financial
transactions.

reviews and assesses the parameters to ensure it
remains appropriate and aligned with its business
objectives.

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP)

As per the RBI notification, Housing Finance Companies
(HFCs) are categorized as Middle Layer and accordingly
HFCs are required to have internal assessment of the
need for capital, commensurate with the risks in their
business.

Accordingly, HomeFirst has designed its ICAAP Policy
and assessed applicable risk in ICAAP, as per internal
methodology, which is proportionate to the scale and
complexity of HomeFirst's operations.

Stress Test

During the year, HomeFirst also initiated stress test
covering severe but plausible adverse scenarios. The
stress test policy document list-out stress test shocks,
frequency of stress test, tolerance, tentative mitigation
plan and reporting framework for Credit Risk, Credit
Concentration Risk, Liquidity Risk and Interest Rate Risk
(IRR).

Mitigation Measures

The Company has a Board approved Credit
Policy in place which is prepared post
considering inputs from Senior Management.
This policy entails a set of credit procedures and
guidelines for effective credit risk management
andto ensure a healthy portfolio.

® The Credit Committee reviews adherence
to the policy and the credit portfolio
performance metrics on a quarterly basis.
This is presented to the Audit Committee of
the Board and their inputs are also taken on
record.

® The credit policy is reviewed annually and
amended periodically to ensure compliance
with guidelines of RBI, NHB as well as other
regulatory bodies. The inputs received from
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Type of Risk Description
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
Market Risk Risk of loss arising from movements °
in market prices or rates away from
the rates or prices set out in a
transaction or agreement.
Considering the nature and scope of
business, HomeFirst's primary
objectives of investments is liquidity °

management, through investments
in liquid mutual funds, debt mutual
funds, NCDs, CD/CPs, fixed deposits
with high quality instrument.

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

Mitigation Measures

credit committee and audit committee are
considered while reviewing and renewing
the policy.

Robust Processes

Credit Approval - Verification of
information through independent third-
party/applications (to understand financial
discipline and other credit risk dimensions).

Property Assessment - Support from
Technical and Legal Expert to evaluate
ownership rights on property.

Centralized approval and risk-based
pricing.

Exposure limits on groups / sub groups,
builder, Product & Property type.

Refining sourcing strategy based on
portfolio performance and business
opportunities.

Continuous training to existing credit
officers and new recruits - who form the
firstline of defence for the company.

Regular internal audits and reviews by the
Audit Committee ensure that the credit
policy isimplemented effectively.

Investment process is guided by detailed
investment policy. Investments of
temporary surplus funds is done as per the
policy principle which provides for strict
controls in terms of tenure, product, rating,
limits and authorization.

Regular assessmentof allinvestments along
with underlying portfolios is carried out and
the investments are reported to ALCOon a
quarterly basis.
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Type of Risk

Operational Risk

Liquidity Risk &
Interest Rate
Risk

Integrated Annual Report

Description

Risk of loss resulting from °
inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or

from external events.

Liquidity risk is the inability of a °
financial institute to meet its
obligations as they become due,
without adversely affecting the
financial condition.

Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book
(IRRBB) refers to the current or
prospective risk to a Financial
Institutes' capital and earnings
arising from adverse movements in
interest rates that affect its book
positions.

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

Mitigation Measures

The Board approved Operational risk
management policy enlists the processes
and controls for monitoring people, systems
and processes atvarious points of time.

We have a comprehensive system of
internal controls, systems and
procedures to monitor transactions,
employee rotations, contingency
planning, insurance cover, document
storage and retrieval arrangements as
well as maintenance of back-up
procedures to minimize operational risks.

In addition, we have appointed
independent audit firms to conduct
internal and process audits at all of our
offices to assess adequacy of and
compliance with our internal controls,
procedures and processes, as well as all
applicable statutory and regulatory
guidelines.

Reports of the internal auditors as well as
the action taken on the matters reported
upon are discussed and reviewed in the
Audit Committee meetings.

In order to manage the liquidity risk, we
have a comprehensive Asset Liability
Management Policy in place. The Policy
provides for several risk management
measures including short term liquidity
forecasts which is done to identify any
short-term liquidity gaps and implementing
immediate actions to correct such gaps,
diversifying our sources of funding to
facilitate flexibility in meeting our funding
requirements, and maintaining strong
capital adequacy.

The Company has adopted the stock
approach to measure liquidity buffers
along with quarterly reporting of critical
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Type of Risk

Compliance &
Regulatory Risk

Reputation Risk

Integrated Annual Report

Description
°
°
°
The risk of legal or regulatory °
sanctions, material financial loss, or
loss to reputation as a result of its
failure to comply with laws, °
regulations, rules, related self-
regulatory organization standards,
and applicable codes of conduct. L4
°
°
Reputational risk can be defined as °
the risk arising from negative
perception on the part of °

customers, counterparties,
shareholders, investors, debt-
holders, market analysts, other
relevant parties or regulators that L4
can adversely affect entity's ability
to maintain existing, or establish

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

Mitigation Measures

ratios and threshold levels to ensure
adequate liquidity planning. We have
positive ALM flows across all buckets in line
with prudent ALM practices.

Effective simulation method is also
adopted to periodically stress test bucket -
wise flows and change in the Net Interest
Income (NII) or Net Interest Margin (NIM)
duetointerestrate movements.

Quarterly monitoring of liquidity ratios
including Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR).

Further, to strengthen internal controls, an
audit process is in place to ensure
implementation of the above-mentioned
measuresis carried out effectively.

The Company has a robust framework,
monitored by senior management team
to mitigate compliance and regulatory risk.

Monitoring through compliance tracker
and reporting timelines.

Coordination and clear communication
amongst departments in case of inter-
dependencies.

The amendments by any of the regulators
aremonitored closely.

Further internal audit process assists in
complying with all the existing laws and
regulations.

HomeFirst has robust Governance
framework as per applicable Regulations.

Tracking Reputation risk related
parameters, including Digital & Social
Media Monitoring.

Enhance compliance culture through
training and awareness workshops.
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Type of Risk

Information
Technology
Risk, Cyber
Security Risk
and
Information
Security Risk

Integrated Annual Report

Description

new, business relationships and ®
continued access to sources of
funding.

Information technology risk is °
the risk arising on account of
inadequacies or failure of technical
infrastructure or IT systems which
can have an adverse impact on the
availability, integrity, accessibility
and security of the data and the IT
infrastructure.

Cyber Security Risk means risk of
cyber-attacks on Home First's
systems through hacking, phishing,
ransomware and other means,
resulting in disruption of our
services or theft or leak of sensitive
internal data or customer
information. L

Information Security refers to
protecting sensitive information L
and ensuring use of information
only by legitimate users with proper

°
authorization. Risk of information
getting compromised or being
accessed without proper
authorization exposes organization
to Information Security Risk.

°

°

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

Mitigation Measures

Customer grievance redressal policy with
robust redressal mechanism.

Communication with stakeholders
through appropriate mechanisms to
addresstheir expectations and concerns.

Dedicated investor relations team and
adherence to Regulatory disclosures.

HomeFirst has IT Policy prepared as per
NHB and RBI guidelines, which sets out
processes and controls that are required to
be maintained in relation to the IT systems.
TheIT Policyisamended regularly.

Further we have an IT Strategy Committee
of the Board. The main responsibility of this
Committee is to assess the IT systems of the
Company and gauge the vulnerability of the
system tovarious risks and its mitigants.

The Company has adequate
codes/policies to ensure that there is no
breach in the privacy of the information of
the customers.

End Point security software and Antivirus
softwarein all laptops.

Robust access-control and log tracking
forserver security.

To ensure IT security, performance stability
and flexibility, Home First has a well-
established IT infrastructurein place. The
loan processing applications of the
company are built on Salesforce.com which
is a globally recognized platform with low
downtime and low security risk.

Further, we conduct IT audit once every two
years to determine issues and process level
gaps, ifany.

Training is provided to existing and new
employees on IT policies, procedures and
code of conduct.
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Type of Risk Description Mitigation Measures
Environment The risk related to environmental, ® HomeFirsthasdedicated ESG policy
Social & social and governance-related that . .
) o ) ® |nvolvement of senior management in
Governance may impact an entity in terms of its ) N .
R o ) trackingand monitoring ESG related risk

related risk sustainability and may exposes it to

non-financial risk ® Negative list/exclusion for restricting funding

to inappropriate property/development
location which may either lead to loss of life
and/or deterioration in quality of life in
nearby habitats.

Direct Assignment

During the FY23, we received a purchase consideration of ¥289 Crs from direct assignment and the corresponding
assets were derecognized in the books of the company. As at Mar'23, the company has Direct Assignment of¥1,056.49
Crsinthetotal portfolio comparedto ¥1,025.16 Crs as at Mar'22.

Co-lending

During the fiscal year, we entered into co-lending tie-ups with the “Central Bank of India” apart from our previous tie-up
with “Union Bank of India”. We have executed co-lending transactions of an amount of ¥65.18 Crs with Union Bank and
¥23.90 Crs with Central Bank of India during the year. We plan to scale up the co-lending transactions in the medium
term.

Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets Ratios

The following table sets forth our capital to risk-weighted assets ratios for the periods indicated:

Mar'23 Mar'22
CRAR (%) 49.38% 58.61%
CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 48.89% 58.05%
CRAR - Tier Il capital (%) 0.49% 0.56%
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Credit Ratings

As at Mar'23, the following table sets forth our credit ratings:

India Ratings

India Ratings

Instrument

Term Loan ICRA
CARE

Commercial Paper ICRA

Non-Convertible Debentures ICRA

India Ratings

During FY23, ICRA Limited upgraded the rating to 'IlCRA
AA- Stable Outlook' from 'ICRA A+ Positive Outlook' for
Term Loans and NCDs. CARE Ratings upgraded the
rating to 'CARE AA- Stable Outlook' from 'CARE A+
Positive Outlook' for Term Loans.

Human Resources

One of the most important and critical assets and
foundation of our operations is human capital. We
strive to create a conducive environment for growth
and development of our employees. Continuous
training is provided to employees to uplift their skills
and advancein their careers. Our culture iswhat sets us
apartfrom the rest of the companies. In addition to our
culture as well as our employee engagement
programs, HomekFirst received a "Great Place to Work"
certification from the GPTW Institute for the third time
in a row. More details on training, employee benefits,
employee engagement activities can be found in
Human Capital Chapter - refer page no. 60

As of Mar'23, the employee strength stood at 993 as
comparedto 851 asatMar'22.

ESG

ESG is gaining wider traction the world over -
sustainability in operations is becoming a pre-requisite
for functioning rather than a hygiene factor. HomeFirst
has taken early lead and has demonstrated
transparency in its governance with adequate

Rating Agency

Rating Amount (in %) Outlook
AA- 3500 Crs Stable
AA- 2300 Crs Stable
AA- 44.23 Crs Stable
AT+ 100 Crs -

Al+ 100 Crs -

AA- 131 Crs Stable
AA- 400 Crs Stable

disclosures, green initiatives and digitalization of
processes. Pursuant to adoption of such measures and
creating a thriving and vibrant workplace environment,
we were not only adjudged as one of Great Places to
work, but also HomeFirst has been rated “Low Risk” on
ESG Risk parameters by Morningstar's Sustainalytics.
Our score of 16.2, we believe, is the best amongst BFSI
peers. This validation by a large agency highlights
HomeFirst's focus on sustainability & superior
corporate governance.

More details on ESG practices can be found in the
Sustainability report starting from page no. 33

Internal Control Systems and Internal Audit

The RBI had mandated the introduction of Risk-Based
Internal Audit for all deposit-taking housing finance
companies with effect from June 30, 2022. Accordingly,
the Corporation has put in place a Risk-Based Internal
Audit Policy and has appointed Ms. Harshita Mulay -
Dixit as the Head of Internal Audit. The internal audit is
performed as per the Annual Audit plan approved by
the Audit Committee of the Board. HomeFirst has a Risk
based Internal Audit process covering branches and
HO processes which is commensurate with the size and
nature of its business. Observations and
recommendations from the Internal Audit review are
placed before the Audit committee. Agreed actionables
are monitored till closure and the status of the
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actionables are presented to the Audit Committee
periodically.

The Company has an adequate internal Control
System to ensure adherence to company's policies
and procedures, compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, to ensure that management information
and financial reporting is correct, reliable, and.
complete, to enable detection and prevention of
frauds and errors and to safeguard the company
assets against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition, amongst others. Further, the internal
control system is commensurate with the size of the
business as well as the industry in which the Company
operates The framework endorses ethical values,
good corporate governance, and risk management
practices. The Company has appointed Internal
Auditors to ensure compliance with the company's
policies and procedures and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The Audit Committee
of the Board reviews the performance of the internal
auditand the adequacy of the internal control systems
and compliance with regulatory guidelines. The Audit
Committee also provides necessary oversight, gives
recommendations, and monitors implementation of
such recommendations.
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Outlook

We believe HomeFirst is at an inflection point to
benefit from the multi-decadal opportunity in housing
finance underpinned by multiple macro drivers as
highlighted above along with our strong balance sheet
and a robust risk management framework. We will
continue to leverage technology to automate
processes, reduce costs and improve customer
service with a lean business model architecture. We
are committed to build a strong brand in Housing
Finance while staying true to our mission of being the
"Fastest Provider of Home Finance for the Aspiring Middle
Class, delivered with Ease and Transparency.”

Cautionary Statement

This document contains statements about expected
future events, financial and operating results of the
Company, which are forward looking. By their nature,
forward-looking statements require the Company to
make assumptions and are subject to inherent risks
and uncertainties. There is a significant risk that the
assumptions, predictions, and other forward-looking
statements will not prove to be accurate. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-
looking statements as several factors could cause
assumptions, actual future results, and events to differ
materially from those expressed in the forward-
looking statements. The Company assumes no
responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any
forward- looking statements based on any
subsequent developments.
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To,

The Members,

Home First Finance Company India Limited.
(“the Company” /“HomeFirst")

Statutory Report

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 14" Directors' Report of the Company together with the Audited

Statement of Accounts for FY23.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
State of Company's Affairs:

The Company is a leading technology driven affordable
housing finance company in India. The Company serves
first-time home buyers belonging to the low and
middle-income group who aspire to own a home by
offering a convenient digital process coupled with fast
turnaround times. We take pride in understanding the
needs of our customers and providing them
extraordinary service intheirhome buyingjourney.

Particulars

Total Income

Less: Total Expenses

Profit/ (Loss) before tax

Less: Current tax

Deferred tax

Tax pertaining to earlier years

Profit after Tax

Other Comprehensive Income

Transfer of Statutory Reserve (u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987)

Balance carried to Balance Sheet
Earnings per Share (Face Value ¥ 2)
Basic (3)

Diluted (%)

Dividend & Reserves:

The board after considering the asset liability levels and
the growing scale of business has made
recommendation to return a portion of the surplus to
the shareholders in the form of dividend for the
financial year ended March'23. An amount of 2 2.60 per
equity which is equivalent to 130 % of the face value of
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Financial Results:

Despite geopolitical uncertainty and rising inflation, the
Indian economy was able to overcome the vagaries and
demonstrate a healthy GDP growth of 7% supported by
favorable government and central bank policies. The
Company continued to capitalize on its technology led
business model to achieve strong results for the year.

The key highlights of the Audited Financial Statements
of your Company for FY23 and a comparison with the

previous yearis summarized below:

(Amount in ¥ Crs)

FY23 FY22
795.60 595.70
500.38 369.40
295.22 226.30
71.45 44.68
(4.52) 7.53
- (12.01)
228.29 186.10
(0.14) (0.32)
(45.90) (37.50)
182.25 148.28
26.01 21.26
25.20 20.54

the equity shares, being recommended by the Board,
subject to the approval of the members, to be paid out
as Dividend. The payout ratio for FY23 shall be 10%. The
dividend declared is in accordance with the Dividend
Distribution policy adopted by the Company. The
Dividend Distribution Policy is hosted on the website of
the Company.
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During the year under review, pursuant to Section 29C
of the NHB Act, 1987, the Company had transferred a
sum of ¥45.90 Crs out of the previous year's profits
available for appropriation to the Statutory Reserve
Fund.

Business Update:

India is the fifth largest economy as per IMF and is
projected to fare better than peers with an impressive
estimated growth of 5.9% in 2023 and 6.3% in 2024. As
per various leading research institutions, Indian GDP
has the potential to deliver the highest CAGR globally in
the medium term amongst large economies, driven by
various structural policy measures taken by the Indian
government. In the medium to long term, it is
anticipated that the Indian economy would continue to
gain from structural positives such as increased
urbanisation rates, higher discretionary expenditure,
greater transparency through digitisation, and the
government's emphasis on reforms in various sectors.
The currentfiscal budget which encourages anincrease
in public expenditure with a primary focus on
infrastructure development, supports India's medium-
term growth.

HomeFirst has made a positive impact on the lives of
100,000 customers in its journey of 13 years by
providing housing finance to these customers and
enabling them to own a home. The Company has scaled
a new milestone of 7,000+ Crs of AUM during this
current fiscal. Disbursal of new loans crossed 3,000
Crs. Our sustained growth supported by a healthy
balance sheet has prompted rating agencies to
enhance our credit rating to AA-/Stable. We have also
diversified our lender base and added our first multi-

lateral agency IFC, a member of World Bank Group. As
of March'23, we have 26 banking and lending
relationships.

Our distribution has been further strengthened to
cover 265+ touchpoints across 12 States. The
Company has also crossed the milestone of 100
branch offices during the year to reach a total branch
distribution of 111 branches. This contiguous branch
expansion has helped your Company to grow its
portfolio by 33.8% y-o-y. The highlights of the
Company's performance during FY23 are as follows:
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e The Assets Under Management (AUM) as at
March'23 amounted to %7198 Crs vis-a-vis
%5380 Crs in the previous year; a year-on-year
growth of 33.8%.

e The profit before tax for FY23 increased by
30.5% to ¥ 295.22 Crs (FY22:3226.30 Crs). The
profitaftertax for FY23increased by 22.7%to%
228.29Crs(FY22:3186.10Crs).

e Strong Capital Adequacy ratio of 49.38% as of
March'23.

e Enhancementofrating from A+to AA-.

e Stable Asset Quality - The Gross Non-
Performing Assets (GNPA) as on March'23 was
1.61% of the total loan book of the Company
and corresponding Net Non-performing
Assets (NNPA)was 1.07%.

e The Net Interest Income reported for the
period was ¥379.24 Crs vis-a-vis 262.23 Crs in
FY22.

e The Networth of the Company as on March 31,
2023 was1817.34Crs (FY22:%31573.69 Crs)

The organization's goal of sustainable growth is
underpinned by strong governance standards,
combined with a zest to leave a positive social and
environmental impact. HomeFirst has been successful
in getting one of the best ESG risk ratings in the BFSI
sector by MorningStar Sustainalytics. They have given
HomeFirst an ESG Risk Rating of 16.2 with Low Risk and
Strong rating for ESG Risk Management.

Further the Company has received subsidy under
PMAY-CLSS worth 2277.91Crs towards 10,806
beneficiaries during the year and the same has been
credited to the respective customers' loan accounts to
reduce the principal amount of their loans and provide
relief by reducing their EMI.
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Resources and Liquidity:

Your Company has been maintaining strong liquidity
buffers on an ongoing basis. The Company has a
diverse set of lenders/investors that include public
sector banks, private sector banks, the National
Housing Bank and other financial institutions. Funds
were raised in accordance with the Company's
Resource Planning Policy, through term loans from
banks, NCDs and re-finance facilities from NHB. The
Company's long-term nature of borrowings and
adequate liquidity have ensured a well- matched ALM.

During the year under review, the Company issued
secured, rated, unlisted, redeemable, taxable non-
convertible debentures on a private placement basis
aggregating to 3280 Crs to the International Finance
Corporation.

During the year under review, the Company has raised
(i) 1860Crs borrowings from banks / finance
companies (outstanding as of March'23: 3,553.53Crs),
(ii)*877.54 Crs raised by way of Direct Assignment & Co-

Credit Rating:

Statutory Report

lending (iii) ¥600 Crs through re-finance from NHB
(outstanding as of March'23:3912.99 Crs) and (iv) 3280
Crs by way of NCDs (outstanding as of March'22:
2346.95 Crs).

Further, the liquidity coverage ratio ('LCR') as on March
31,2023 was 157.21% as against the regulatory
requirement of 50%.

Disclosure as per Master Direction - Non-Banking
Financial Company - Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

() The total number of non-convertible debentures
which have not been claimed by the Investors or not
paid by the housing finance company after the date on
which the non-convertible debentures became due for
redemption: Nil

(ii) The total amount in respect of such Debentures
remaining unclaimed or unpaid beyond the date of
such debentures become due for redemption: Nil

The Company's financial discipline and prudence is reflected in the strong credit ratings assigned by Credit Rating

Agencies as under:

Instrument Rating Agency
ICRA
Term Loan India Ratings
CARE
, ICRA
Commercial Paper
India Ratings
ICRA
Non-Convertible
Debentures India Ratings

Migration of the Credit Rating of the Company:

During the year, considering the steady growth, strong
profitability and robust balance sheet, rating agencies
upgraded the credit rating of the Company. Both ICRA
and CARE upgraded the rating from A+ to AA- (stable) in
June 2022.
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Rating
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Outlook Amount in ¥ Crs
AA- Stable 3500
AA- Stable 2300
AA- Stable 44.23
Al+ - 100
Al+ - 100
AA- Stable 131
AA- Stable 400

Capital Adequacy Ratio:

The Company maintains a Capital Adequacy Ratio of
49.38% (Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio 48.89%) as of FY23
(FY22:58.61%); which is far higher than the minimum
required level of 15% under the RBI Master Directions
signifying the strong position of the Company.
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Deposits:

Your Company being a non-Deposit taking Housing
Finance Company has not accepted or renewed any
amount falling within the purview of provisions of
Section 73 of the Act read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year
under review. Hence, the requirement for furnishing
the details relating to deposits covered under ChapterV
of the Act or the details of deposits that are not in
compliance with the Chapter V of the Act is not
applicable.

Awards & Recognitions:

Your Company was certified as 'Great Place to Work' by
Great Place to Work Institute, India for three
consecutive years. This was an excellent endorsement
of the human resource practices and work culture of
the Company.

The Company has also received a certificate of Meritin
PMAY empowering India Awards 2022 in recognition of
its contribution to Affordable Housing development in
the country.

Changein the nature of business:

There has been no change in the nature of business of
the Company during the year under review.

Details of Companies which have become or ceased
to be its subsidiary, associate or joint venture
companies:

During the year under review the Company does not
have any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint venture
Companies.

Material changes and commitments, if any,
affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between March'23 and date of
thisreport:

No material changes and commitments, affecting the
financial position of the Company have occurred

Statutory Report

between the Financial Year ended March'23 and date of
this Director's Report.

SHARE CAPITAL:
Authorized Share Capital:

During the year under review there was no change in
the Authorized Share Capital of the Company.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital:

During the year under review, the Company allotted
3,83,064 Equity Shares to employees on exercise of
stock options granted under ESOP 2012 Scheme and
ESOP Il Scheme. Pursuant to the aforesaid allotments
of equity shares, the issued, subscribed and paid-up
share capital of the Company stands increased to
%17,60,33,534/- (8,80,16,767 Equity Shares of Face
Value 22/-each).

Particular Of Contracts Or Arrangement With
Related Parties:

During the financial year under review, the Company
has entered certain transactions/contract with related
parties falling within the provisions of Section 188 of the
Act and the rules made thereunder. However, the
Company has obtained Omnibus approval for the same
from the Audit Committee, and the requirement of
disclosure of Related Party Transactions in terms of
Section 134(h) of the Act is provided in Form AOC-2 as
Annexurel.

Further as required by Master Directions - Non-
Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, “Related
Party Transaction Policy” is annexed as Annexure Il
and the same can be accessed on the website of the
Company at https://homefirstindia.com/policy-

/related-party-transaction-policy/.
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Conservation Of Energy, Technology Absorption
And Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo:

Since your Company is engaged in financial services
activities, its operations are not energy intensive nor
does it require adoption of specific technology and
hence information in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

Statutory Report

Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
not provided in this Board's Report. However, the
Company has given the details of its initiatives in
relation to conservation of energy and technology
absorptionin BRSR provided in Annexure VII.

The Company has no foreign exchange earnings and has made expenditure in foreign currency as per the following

table:

Sr no Particulars

1. Software license and technology fee
2. Bank and other charges
Total

Annual Return:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the
Act, the copy of Annual Return in Form MGT-7 as
required under Section 92 (3) of the Act shall be placed
on the website of the Company at www. homefirstindia.
com.

Particulars Of Loans, Guarantees Or Investments:

The Company is a Housing Finance Company, the
disclosure regarding particulars of loans given,
guarantees given, security provided and investment
made in the ordinary course of business is exempted
under the provisions of Section 186 (11) of the Act.

Adequacy Of Internal Financial Controls With
Reference To The Financial Statements:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial
controls with reference to its financial statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and no
reportable material weakness in the design or
operation was observed. In the opinion of the Auditors

(Amount in ¥ Crs)

FY23 FY22
2.49 6.14
0.63 -
3.12 6.14

of the Company, there are adequate internal financial
control procedures that are commensurate with the
size of the Company.

Matters Related To Directors And Key Managerial
Personnel:

The Company has a diverse and inclusive Board which
endeavors to protect the interest of all the
Stakeholders. The composition of the Board is in
accordance with Section 149 of the Act and Regulation
17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with an appropriate
combination of Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Directors.

As of March'23, the Board of Directors of your Company
comprised of 8 Directors; viz. four (4) Independent
Directors out of which two (2) are women Independent
Directors, three (3) Nominee Directors and 1 (one)
Executive Director. The Chairman of the Board is an
Independent Director.
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Details of Board of Directors along with Key Managerial Personnel as on March'23 are mentioned below:

Name DIN/PAN
Mr. Deepak Satwalekar 00009627
Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel 02277155
Mr. Anuj Srivastava 09369327
Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee 02569078
Mr. Divya Sehgal 01775308
Mr. Maninder Singh Juneja 02680016
Mr. Narendra Ostawal 06530414
Mr. Manoj Viswanathan 01741612
Ms. Nutan Gaba Patwari AGSPG3187G
Mr. Shreyans Bachhawat AJDPB9500E

Appointment / Resignation of Directors:

During FY23, there has been no new appointment of a
Director on the Board of the Company. Further, Mr.
Vishal Vijay Gupta (DIN: 01913013) retired at the last
annual general meeting and did not seek re-
appointment.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

During the year under review, there was no change in
the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

In terms of the Act, the following are the KMPs of the
Companyason March'23:

a.Mr.ManojViswanathan - Managing Director & CEO
b.Ms. Nutan Gaba Patwari - Chief Financial Officer
¢.Mr. Shreyans Bachhawat - Company Secretary

Declaration by Independent Directors:

There are four Independent Directors on the Board of
the Company. The Independent Directors have
submitted their Declaration of Independence in
accordance with the relevant provisions of Section 149
of the Act; stating that they meet the criteria of
Independence and are not disqualified from continuing
asIndependentDirectors.
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Designation
Chairman & Independent Director

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Nominee Non-Executive Director
Nominee Non-Executive Director
Nominee Non-Executive Director
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary

Declaration of Fit & Proper Criteria:

All the Directors of the Company have given the
declaration to the effect that they are Fit & Proper, to be
appointed as Director, as per the criteria prescribed by
RBI/NHB.

Director(s) Retiring by Rotation:

In terms of Section 152(6) of the Act read with the
Articles of Association of the Company, not less than
one-third of the total number of retiring directors
should retire by rotation, at every Annual General
Meeting. For the purpose of this section, the total
number of directors to retire by rotation shall not
include Independent Directors.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the
Act, Mr. Maninder Singh Juneja (DIN:02680016),
Nominee Director of the Company, being longestin the
office, retires atthe ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Performance Evaluation of the Board:

The Company has defined a manner of evaluation as
per the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations and for the Evaluation of the performance
of the Board, Committees of Board & Individual
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Directors. The above manner is based on the Guidance
Note on Board Evaluation issued by SEBI on January 05,
2017.

The Board carried out the evaluation of every Director's
performance, its own performance, the Committees
namely Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, IT
Strategy Committee and Risk Management Committee
and allthe Independent Directors.

During the financial year under review, a separate
meeting of the Independent Directors was held on
March 15, 2023, without the attendance of Non-
Independent Directors and the Management of the
Company. The Independent Directors have discussed
and reviewed the performance of the Non-
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole also
assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of the
flow of information between the Management and the
Board, which is necessary for the Board to effectively
andreasonably performits duties.

Corporate Governance Report:

The Corporate Governance report is furnished as
Annexure Il to this report. A certificate from Bhatt &
Associates Company Secretaries LLP, Practicing
Company Secretaries, confirming compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as prescribed
under the Listing Regulations is annexed to the
Corporate Governance Report. Further, pursuant to
Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para-C clause (10)(i) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, M/s. Bhatt &
Associates Company Secretaries LLP have stated that
for FY23, none of the Directors have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
other Statutory Authority and a certificate to that effect
has been annexedto the corporate governance report.

Statutory Report

Internal Guidelines on Corporate Governance:

As on March'23, your Company adhered to the Internal
Guidelines on Corporate Governance adopted in
accordance with Master Directions - Non-Banking
Finance Company - (Housing Finance Company),
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, which inter-alia,
defines the legal, contractual and social responsibilities
of the Company towards its various Stakeholders and
lays down the Corporate Governance practices of the
Company. The said policy is available on the website of
the Company and can be accessed at
https://homefirstindia.com/policy/corporate-
governance-policy/

Company's policy on Director's appointment and
remuneration:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid
down criteria for determining Directors Qualification,
Attributes and independence of a Director,
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and other employees and criteria for evaluation of
Directors, Chairperson, Non-Executive Directors and
Board and the evaluation process of the same. The
policy may be accessed on the Company's website at
https://homefirstindia.com/nominationandcompensa

tionpolicy.

Further as required by Master Directions - Non-
Banking Finance Company - (Housing Finance
Company), (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, there were
no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-
executive directors with the Company except sitting
fees and profit related commission paid to the
Independent Directors.

Management Discussion and Analysis:

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations')
and Master Directions issued by the Reserve Bank of
India, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report
(MD&A) forms part of this report.
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability
Reporting ('BRSR’):

In terms of Regulations 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the top 1000 listed entities, based on the market
capitalization (calculated as on 31st March of every
financial year) shall submit business responsibility and
sustainability report for FY23 describing the initiatives
taken by these listed entities from an environmental,
social and governance perspective, in the format as
specified by SEBI from time to time. The same has been
included as part of the Annual Report as Annexure VII.
The Company being committed to the well-being and
betterment of the community in which it operates and
with a focus on the social and governance aspects have
opted to submitthe BRSR for FY23.

Disclosures Related To Board, Committees And
Policies:

Board and Committee Meetings:

During FY23, the Board of Directors of the Company
met 4 times. The details of meetings of the Board and its
Committees held during the financial year under review
are provided in the Corporate Governance Report of
the Directors which forms a part of this report. The
intervening gap between the two Board meetings was
withinthe period prescribed under the Act.

Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 (9) of
the Act and the rules made thereunder, the Company
has established Vigil mechanism and adopted a
Whistleblower Policy under the surveillance of the
Audit committee. The Company has adopted a work
culture which ensures the highest standards of
professionalism, honesty, integrity, moral and ethical
behavior.

The Policy may be accessed on the Company's website
at the link: http://www.homefirstindia.com/whistle-

blower-policy.
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Corporate Social Responsibility ('"CSR’):

As part of its initiatives under Corporate Social
Responsibility, the Company has undertaken projects
in the areas of promoting healthcare, education and
livelihood support, skill development of migrant
workers and empowerment of women workers. The
CSR Policy is available on the Company's website at
http://www.homefirstindia.com/CSR policy. The details
of all the activities done as a part of CSR initiatives are
givenin Annexure V, forming part of this Report. These
projects are in accordance with Schedule VII of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 read with the relevantrules.

Risk Management Framework:

The financial world was significantly impacted due to
the COVID-19 pandemic, with markets experiencing
unprecedented volatility and businesses facing
significant financial challenges. The recent, Russia
Ukraine conflict also impacted the Indian financial
services sector through its impact on the global
economy and financial markets. Inflation touched a
peak of 7.8% in April 2022 and remained at a level of
6.8% throughout May-November 2022. Adding to high
inflation was China's COVID-led disruption in the supply
chain. To tackle inflation, RBI had to increase the
interest rates. Despite such challenges, the robust risk
management framework in the Company has helped in
achieving strong results for the Company. The risk
management framework at the company is designed
keeping in mind regulatory requirements and
dynamics of business environment. The key objective
of policy is to support financial stability and create value
for allthe stakeholders.

As a lending institution, we face financial and non-
financial risks. The risk management framework of your
Company enables risk identification, risk assessment,
risk response planning and actions, risk monitoring and
overall risk governance. This augments our risk
evaluation and management capabilities while
providing the flexibility to adapt effectively and
efficiently to the changing business and regulatory
environment. The Company is vigilant and has laid
down the policy considering the Company's objectives,
business strategy and intricacies arising out of the
business operations.
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The Company also has a Risk Management Committee,
with Board members in majority, which oversees the
overall risk assessment and monitoring in the
Company. Adoption of Risk based Internal Audit further
strengthens the risk framework of the Company in
terms of identification and mitigation of various types
of risks.

A detailed report on Risk Management is presented in
the Management Discussion & Analysis report, which
forms part of this annual report.

Auditors And Reports:
Appointment of Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and
with the approval of the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting held on August 5, 2021, M/s. Deloitte
Haskins and Sells (‘Auditors'), Chartered Accountants,
Firm registration no: 117365W, were appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for aterm of 3years.
The Company has received a confirmation from the
said Auditors that they are not disqualified and are
eligible to hold the office as Auditors of the Company.

Qualification/ Reservation/ Adverse remark /
Disclaimer of Statutory Auditors on Financial
Statements for FY23:

The Statutory Auditors have not made any adverse
comments or given any qualification, reservation or
adverse remarks or disclaimer in their Audit Report on
the Financial Statements for FY23.

Fraud Reported by Auditors:

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors
have not reported any instances of fraud committed in
the Company by its officers or employees to the
Board/Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the
Act.

Internal Auditors:

The Company had appointed M/s. P Chandrashekhar
LLP and M/s BDO India LLP asJoint Internal auditors (for
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Branch and HO functions respectively) for FY23 to
conduct comprehensive audits of functional areas and
operations to examine the adequacy of, and
compliance with policies, plans and statutory
requirements. For the year under review, the Internal
Auditors have not submitted material qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers.

Maintenance of Cost records:

The Company being a Housing Finance Company is not
required to maintain cost records as prescribed under
section 148(1) of the Act.

Secretarial Standards:

During the year under review, the Company has
complied with the applicable secretarial standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Secretarial Auditors' and Secretarial Compliance
Report:

In accordance with Section 204 of the Act and Rule 9 of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had
appointed M/s. Bhatt & Associates Company
Secretaries LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries to
conduct secretarial audit of the Company for FY23. The
Secretarial Audit report has been annexed to this
Report as Annexure IV. The Secretarial Auditors have
not submitted any qualifications, reservations or
adverse remarks or disclaimers. Further, the
Secretarial Auditors have not reported any instances of
fraud interms of Section 143 (12) of the Act.

HUMAN RESOURCE:

The strength of the Company comes from its
employees. Your Company has continuously invested
in developing and ensuring the financial as well as
mental well-being of its employees. The employees are
equipped with different types of functional and
behavioral skills to ensure high standards of service to
internal and external stakeholders. During the year, the
Company has provided various knowledge and skill-
based trainingvia online and offline modes.
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Your Company has built a diverse workforce across
gender, age, social and economic segments and has
created a healthy work environment. The Company has
a policy of hiring college graduates and giving them on
the job training to realize their full potential and
eventually giving them a sustainable career path within
the organization. The HR team has built and nurtured a
safe environment for the employees which has helped
the employees deliver optimum results while
maintaining their work life balance.

The Company has a total of 111 Branches as on March
31, 2023 with a total employee strength of 993
Employees.

Employee Stock Option Schemes:

In order to enable the employees of the Company to
participate in its future growth and success, the
Company has three Employee Stock Option policies. In
terms of Regulation 14 of SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, the
disclosures for FY23 with respectto all the ESOP policies
have been provided on the website of the Company at
www.homefrstindia.com.

Employee Remuneration:

In terms of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the disclosures
with respect to the remuneration of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and employees of the Company
have been provided in Annexure VI to this Board's
Report. Further, statement containing details of
employees as required in terms of Section 197 of the
Act read with Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel)Rules, 2014, is available for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company during working hours
for a period of 21 days before the date of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. A copy of the statement may
be obtained by shareholders by writing to the Company
Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company or at
corporate@homefirstindia.com.
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Prevention Of Sexual Harassment At Workplace:

In accordance with the Act and the rules made
thereunder the Company has adopted and
implemented a policy on 'Prevention of Sexual
Harassment'. The Policy is available on the website of
the Company at the below mentioned link
http://www.homefirstindia.com/psh-policy. The Company
has complied with the provisions relating to the
constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

During FY23, the Company did not receive any
complaint. The Annual Report as required under
Section 21 of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Rules, 2013 has been
submitted to the respective authority.

Regulatory Compliance:

The Company has complied with the guidelines,
circulars and directionsissued by RBI from time to time.
The Company has adopted all the Policies as
recommended by regulatory authorities from time to
time.

The Company also has been following directions /
guidelines / circulars issued by Accounting Standards,
Income Tax Act, 1961 and Ministry of Corporate Affairs
fromtimetotime, as applicable to the company.

Other Disclosures:

Other disclosures as per provisions of Section 134 of
the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are
furnished asunder:

Disclosure Of Orders Passed By Regulators Or
Courts Or Tribunal:

During the year under review, there were no orders
passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact
the going concern status of the company and its future
operations.
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Director's Responsibility Statement:

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Act, in relation to the
audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March'23, the Board of Directors hereby
confirmthat:

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures;

b. the directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and the
Directors made judgments and estimates thatare
reasonable and prudent to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March'23, and of the profit of the Company for
theyear;

c. the directors havetaken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d. thedirectors have prepared the annual accounts
of the Company on a going concern basis;

e. the directors have laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and
were operating effectively; and

f.  the directors have devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

Disclosure under Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act:

The Company has not issued any shares with
differential rights and hence no information as per
provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule
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4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)
Rules, 2014 isfurnished.

Disclosure under Section 54(1)(d) of the Act:

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares
during the year under review and hence no information
as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with
Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture)Rules, 2014 is furnished.

Disclosure under Section 67(3) of the Act:

During the year under review, there were no instances
of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of shares
purchased directly by employees under a scheme
hence no information pursuant to Section 67(3) of the
Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital
and Debentures)Rules, 2014 is furnished.

Disclosure under Rule 8 of the Companies
(accounts)Rules, 2014:

During the year under review the Company has not
made any application nor any proceedings are pending
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
further there were no instances of one-time settlement
for any loans taken from the Banks or Financial
Institutions.

Acknowledgement and Appreciation:

Your Board of Directors take this opportunity to
express their appreciation to all stakeholders of the
Company including the Reserve Bank of India, National
Housing Bank, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Securities and Exchange Board of India, the
Government of India, Stock Exchanges and other
Regulatory Authorities, Bankers, Lenders, Financial
Institutions, Members, Credit Rating agencies,
Customers of the Company for their continued support
and trust. Your directors would like to express deep
appreciation for the commitment shown by the
employees in supporting the Company in achieving
continued strong performance on all fronts.
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In closing, | would like to thank all the investors as well as the communities we operate in who have reposed their trust
inusand supported usinourjourney.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Deepak Satwalekar
Chairman & Independent Director
DIN: 00009627

Date: May 2,2023
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure |

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

()

arrangements entered into by the Company

with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of

section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm's length transactions under third proviso

thereto
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions
notatarm's length basis: NIL (f)
(@) Name(s) of the related party and nature of (8
relationship: N.A (h)

(b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements /
transactions: N.A

Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions: N.A

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements
ortransactionsincluding the value, ifany: N.A

Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions: N.A

Date of approval by the Board: N.A
Amount paid as advances, ifany: N.A

Date on which the special resolution was
passed in general meeting as required under
first proviso to section 188: N.A

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

Sr No.  Particulars Details

1. Name(s) of the Perfios Software Solutions
related party Private Limited ("Perfios")

2. Nature of Entity with Common
relationship director

3. Nature of Service Agreement
contracts/
arrangements/
transactions

4. Duration of the Five years effective since
contracts October 30, 2019
/arrangements
/transactions

5. Salient terms of i. Service Agreement has

Integrated Annual Report

the contracts

been entered with

arrangements Perfios for a
or transactions period of five years.
including the ii. Software solutions and

value, if any

technological services to
be provided by Perfios.

iii. Perfios to provide online
integration software to
the Company.

iv. The delivery timeline of
each assignment shall be
mutually agreed.

v. During the year, the
total value of the
transaction with Perfios
was for ¥ 1,10,000/-.

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

Details

True North Enterprise
Private Limited ("True North")

Entity under Common
Control

Reimbursement of
Expenses

Not Applicable

.True North has appointed

their employee to assist in
projects and enable a sharper
learning curve for their
management graduates and
obtain a practical experience
of the operational side of the
business.

. The Company had

reimbursed True North
for the remuneration paid
to these employees in lieu
of their contribution
made during FY23.
During the year, the total
value of the transaction
with True North was

% 42,65,233/-.
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Sr No. Particulars

6. Date(s) of
approval by
the Board, if
any:

7. Amount paid
as advances, if
any

" Report

Details
Approval granted by Board

in its meeting held on May
3, 2022.

NIL

Statutory Reports

Details
Approval granted by

Board in its meeting held
on May 3, 2022.

NIL

Note: Perfios Software Solutions Private Limited ceased to be a Related Party w.e.f. June 10, 2022.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Deepak Satwalekar

Chairman & Independent Director

DIN: 00009627
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Manoj Viswanathan
Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 01741612
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Annexure Il

Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and
Dealing with Related Party Transactions

Title

This policy shall be called the 'Policy on materiality
of related party transactions and dealing with
related party transactions' (the “Policy”).
Objective

Related party transactions have been one of the
major areas of focus for corporate governance
reforms being initiated in India. The changes
introduced in the corporate governance norms
through Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
as amended and the rules framed thereunder
(the “Act”) and Regulation 23 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) require
companies to have enhanced transparency and
due process for approval of the related party
transactions. Pursuant thereto, Section 188 of the
Act and Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations require the Company to formulate a
policy on materiality of related party transactions
and also on dealing with related party
transactions including clear threshold limits duly
approved by the Board.

This policy is framed to endeavor to ensure due
and proper compliance with the applicable
provisions and provide guidance for entering into
transaction with related party to ensure that
proper procedure is defined and followed for
approval / ratification and reporting of
transactions as applicable, between the
Company and any of its Related Parties.

Definitions:

“Act” or “The Act” shall means the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (as
amended/modified/re-enacted from time to
time).

“Arms' length transaction” means a
Transaction between two related parties that is
conducted as if they were unrelated, so that no
conflict ofinterest.

Note: For determination of Arm's Length basis, guidance may be taken
from the provision of Transfer Pricing under Income TaxAct, 1961.

0

d)

“Key Managerial Personnel” or “KMPs" means
Key Managerial Personnel as defined under the
Companies Actandincludes:

i. managing director, or chief executive officer
or manager;

ii. the whole-time director;

iii. company secretary;

iv. chief financial officer;

v. such other officer, not more than one level
below the directors who is in whole-time
employment, designated as key managerial
personnel by the Board; and

vi. such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Material Related Party Transaction” in
relation to the Company means a Related Party
Transaction which individually or taken together
with previous transactions with a Related Party
during a financial year, exceeds one thousand
crore or ten per cent of the annual consolidated
turnover of the Company as per the last audited
financial statements of the Company, whichever
is lower or such limit as prescribed or amended
by the SEBI Listing Regulations or the
Companies Act, 2013 or any other Statutory
Bodies.

Notwithstanding the above, a transaction
involving payments made to a Related Party with
respect to brand usage or royalty shall be
considered material if the transaction(s) to be
entered individually or taken together with
previous transactions during a financial year,
exceed five percent of the annual consolidated
turnover of the Company as per the last audited
financial statements of the Company orsuch limit as
prescribed or amended by the SEBI Listing
Regulations or the Companies Act, 2013 or any
other Statutory Bodies.
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e) “Ordinary Course of Business” means all such h) “Related Party Transactions” means a
acts and transactions undertaken by the transaction involving a transfer of resources,
Company, including, but not limited to sale or services or obligations between:
purchase of goods, property or services, leases, (i) a listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on one
transfers, providing of guarantees or collaterals, hand and arelated party of the listed entity or any
providing loan to subsidiaries/joint ofits subsidiaries onthe other hand; or
ventures/obtaining loan from holding companies (i) a listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on one
in the normal routine in managing trade or hand, and any other person or entity on the other
business and is not a standalone transaction and hand, the purpose and effect of which is to benefit
includes any transaction carried out as per the a related party of the listed entity or any of its
Object Clause of Memorandum of Association subsidiaries, with effect from April 1, 2023.
and Articles of Association of the Company.

Regardless of whether a price is charged and a
Note: The Company may take into account the “transaction” with a related party shall be
frequency of the activity and its continuity carried construed to include a single transaction or a
out in a normal organized manner for group of transactionsin a contract.
determination what is in the ordinary course
business. Provided that the following shall not be a related
party transaction:

f)  “Relative” inrelation to arelated party shall have
the same meaning assigned to it in Section 2(77) (a) the issue of specified securities on a
of the Act and rules prescribed there under and preferential basis, subject to compliance of the
as per Regulation 2(1) (zd) of the SEBI Listing requirements under the Securities and Exchange
Regulations as amended from time to time, Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
means anyone whois related to another, if Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(b) the following corporate actions by the listed
(i) theyare membersofaHinduundivided family; entity which are uniformly applicable/offered to
or all shareholders in proportion to their
shareholding:
(i) they are husband or wife; or i. paymentof dividend;
ii. subdivision or consolidation of securities;
(iii) one person is related to the another in the iii. issuance of securities by way of a rights issue or
following manner, namely: abonusissue; and
iv. buy-back of securities.
(A) father,includesstep-father ) acceptance of fixed deposits by banks/Non-
(B) mother,includes step-mother Banking Finance Companies at the terms
(C) son,includesstep-son uniformly applicable/offered to all share-
(D) son'swife holders/public, subject to disclosure of the same
(E) daughter along with the disclosure of related party
(F) daughter'shusband transactions every six months to the stock
(G) brotherincludes step-brother exchange(s), in the format as specified by the
(H) sisterincludes step-sister Board.

g) “Related Party” means a person or an entity, i)  “Transaction” shall be construed to include
which is a related party under section 2(76) of the single transaction or a group of transactions in a
Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to contract.
time or under applicable accounting standards
and as per Regulation 2(1) (zb) of the SEBI Listing j) “Material Modification” in relation to a Related
Regulations asamended from time to time. Party Transaction approved by the Audit

Committee or a material related party transaction
Note: Reference and reliance may be placed on the approved by the Shareholders, as the case may
clarification issued by the Ministry of Corporate be, material modifications means any variation
Affairs, Government of India and other authorities having animpact on the monetary limits already
from time to time on the interpretation of the term
“Related Party”.
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approved by the Audit Committee or
Shareholders, as the case may be, exceeding 20%
of transactions, in each case, over and above the
approved limits.

Any words used in this Policy but not defined
herein shall have the same meaning prescribed to
it in the Companies Act, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended,
or rules and regulations made thereunder
including the SEBI Listing Regulations, the
applicable accounting standards or any other
relevant legislation/law applicable to the
Company.

Disclosure by Directors

Every director shall at the beginning of the
financial year provide information by way of
written notice to the Company regarding his
concern or interest in the entity with specific
concern to parties which may be considered as
Related Party with respect to the Company and
shall also provide the list of Relatives which are
regarded as Related Party as per this Policy.

Directors are also required to provide the
information regarding their engagement with
other entity during the financial year which may
be regarded as Related Party according to this
Policy.

Identification of related parties and related
party transactions

Identification of related parties

The Company shall periodically identify and
update the list of related parties as prescribed
under Section 2(76) of the Act read with the Rules
framed thereunder and SEBI Listing Regulations.
Such periodicity shall not be more than one year.

Identification of related party transactions

The Company has formulated process for
identification of related party transactions in
accordance with Section 188 of the Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations. The Company has also
formulated guidelines for determining whether
the transaction is in the ordinary course of
business and at arm's length basis and for this
purpose, the Company may seek external
professional opinion, if necessary.

Statutory Reports

Each Director and Key Managerial Personnel is
responsible for providing notice to the Company
or Audit Committee of any potential Related Party
Transaction involving him or her or his or her
Relative, including any additional information
about the transaction that the Board/Audit
Committee may reasonably request. Audit
Committee will determine whether a transaction
does constitute a Related Party Transaction
requiring compliance with this Policy.

Determination of approval level based on
nature of transaction

Audit Committee approval

Related Party Transactions will be referred to the
next regularly scheduled meeting of Audit
Committee for review and approval. Any member
of the Committee or the Directors of the Board
who has potential interest in any Related Party
Transaction in terms of Rule 15(2) of the
Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 shall not be present at the meeting
whether physically or by electronic mode during
the discussions on the subject matter and shall
refrain himself or herself and abstain from
discussion and voting on the approval of the
Related Party Transaction.

All the transactions which are identified as
Related Party Transactions should be
preapproved by the Audit Committee before
enteringinto such transaction.

The Audit Committee shall consider the following
factors while deliberating the Related Party
Transactionsforitsapproval:

i. name of party and details explaining nature
of relationship;

ii. duration of the contract and particulars of
the contractand arrangement;

iii. nature of transaction and material terms
thereofincluding the value, if any;

iv. manner of determining the pricing to
ascertain whether the same is on Arm's
Length Basis;

v. business rationale for entering into such
transaction; and

vi. anyotherinformationrelevantorimportant
forthe Board to take a decisiononthe
proposed transaction.
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In determining whether to approve a Related Party
Transaction, the Committee will consider the following
factors, among others, to the extent relevant to the
Related Party Transaction:

vi.

Whether the terms of the Related Party
Transaction are fair and on Arm's Length Basis to
the Company and would apply on the same basis if
thetransaction did notinvolve a Related Party;

Whether there are any compelling business
reasons / rationale for the Company to enter into
the Related Party Transaction and the nature of
alternative transactions, ifany;

Whether the Related Party Transaction would
affect the independence of an independent
Director;

Whether the proposed transaction includes any
potential reputational risk issues that may arise as
a result of or in connection with the proposed
transaction;

Whether the Company was notified about the
Related Party Transaction before its
commencement and if not, why pre-approval was
not sought and whether subsequent ratification is
allowed and would be detrimental to the
Company; and

Whether the Related Party Transaction would
present an improper conflict of interest for any
director or key managerial personnel of the
Company, taking into account the size of the
transaction, the overall financial position of the
director, executive officer or other Related Party,
the direct or indirect nature of the director's, key
managerial personnel's or other Related Party's
interest in the transaction and the ongoing nature
of any proposed relationship and any other factors
the Board/Committee deems relevant.

Board of Directors approval

All Related Party Transactions covered under Section
188 of the Act (which primarily excludes loans,
investments and providing guarantee/security etc.)
thatare:
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notinthe ordinary course of business, or

in the ordinary course of business but not at
arms'length or

neither in the ordinary course of business nor at
arms'length

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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shall require the prior approval of the Board of
Directors ata Meeting of the Board.

Further, the transactions which require approval
of the Board shall first be reviewed /approved by
the Audit Committee. Where any director is
interested in any contract or arrangement with a
Related Party, such director shall not be present
at the meeting during discussions on the subject
matter of the resolution relating to such contract
orarrangement.

Shareholders' approval

All Related Party Transaction which falls under
first proviso to section 188 of the Act and exceeds
the threshold limit as prescribed under rules
made thereunder (as amended/modified from
time to time) or material related party
transactions and subsequent material
modification under Regulation 23 of SEBI LODR
Regulations shall be approved by the
shareholders in the manner prescribed
thereunder. All entities falling under the definition
of Related Parties shall not vote to approve the
relevant transaction irrespective of whether the
entity is party to the particular transaction.

Review and Approval of Related Party
Transactions:

All Related Party Transactions or changes therein
must be reported by the Head of Accounts
/Finance to the Company Secretary and referred
for the approval/review by the Audit Committee in
accordance with this Policy.

Omnibus Approval:

(i)  The Audit Committee may grant omnibus
approval for Related Party Transactions
proposed to be entered into by the
Company in respect of the transactions
which arerepetitive in nature;

(i)  The Audit Committee shall satisfy itself the
need for such omnibus approval and that
such approval is in the interest of the
Company;

(iii)  Such omnibus approval shall specify (a) the
name/s of the related party, nature of
transaction, period of transaction,
maximum amount of transaction that can
be entered into and (b) the indicative base
price / current contracted price and the
formula for variation in the price if any (for
ex:+/-5-10%);
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In case where the Related Party Transaction
cannot be foreseen and aforesaid details
are not available, Audit Committee may
grant omnibus approval for those kinds of
transactions, subjectto afinancial value not
exceeding Rs.1 Crore per transaction or
such other higher limit as may be
prescribed under the applicable law from
time to time;

(iv)  Such omnibus approvals shall be valid for a
period not exceeding one year and shall
require fresh approvals after the expiry of
one year or immediately succeeding
meeting of the Audit Committee;

(v)  Audit Committee shall review on a quarterly
basis , the details of Related Party
Transactions entered into by the company
pursuant to each of the omnibus approval
given.

If prior approval of the Audit Committee / Board /
Shareholders as the case may be, for entering into
a Related Party Transaction is not feasible, then
the Related Party Transaction shall be ratified by
the Audit Committee and the Board / general
meeting, if required, within 3 months of entering
inthe Related Party Transaction.

Disclosures

The Company shall disclose, inthe Boards' report,
transactions prescribed in Section 188(1) of the
Act with related parties, which are not in ordinary
course of business or not on arm's length basis
along with the justification for entering into such
transaction

Related Party Transactions not approved
Under This Policy

In the event the Company becomes aware of a
transaction with a related party that has not been
approved in accordance with this Policy prior to its
consummation, the matter shall be reviewed by
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall
consider all of the relevant facts and
circumstances regarding the related party
transaction, and shall evaluate all options

10.
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available to the Company, including ratification,
revision or termination of the related party
transaction. The Audit Committee shall also
examine the facts and circumstances pertaining
to the failure of reporting such related party
transaction to the Audit Committee under this
Policy and failure of the internal control systems,
and shall take any such action it deems
appropriate.

In any case, where the Audit Committee
determines not to ratify a related party
transaction that has been commenced without
approval, the Audit Committee, as appropriate,
may direct additional actions including, but not
limited to, discontinuation of the transaction or
seeking the approval of the shareholders,
payment of compensation for the loss suffered by
the related party etc. In connection with any
review/approval of a related party transaction,
the Audit Committee has authority to modify or
waive any procedural requirements of this Policy.

Compliance with RPT Policy

a) Every person associated with RPT shall be
accountable for complying with this RPT
Policy that may beinforce fromtime to time.

b) Director or KMP or any other employee, who
had entered into or authorised the contract
or arrangement in violation of the RPT policy
and RPT framework shall be guilty of non-
compliance.

c) In case of breach of this policy, Audit
Committee and/or the Board of Directors
may intimate appropriate action against the
person/sresponsible.
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11. Administrative Measure employees and concern persons are required to
follow the said SOP.
The Audit Committee of the Company, subject to
supervision of the Board, shall be the Competent 14. Exemption
Authority for investigating and taking appropriate
actions/steps for prevention or remedy of any Transactions which are governed under the other
breach and/or default in complying with this applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
Policy. Any disciplinary action taken by the Audit like Section 185, 186 or 187 of the Companies Act,
Committee shall be in addition to the penal 2013, shall govern by the respective applicable
provisions of the Regulation. provisions of the Act.
12. Interpretation 15.  Policy Review
Subject to the superintendence of the Board, this n Cés,e of any subsequent changes in the
. . - provisions of the Act and the Rules framed
Policy shall be interpreted and administered by . )
the Audit Committee. thereunder, .the Act and its R.’u.les V\{OU|d pre\{a|l
over the Policy and the provisions in the Policy
would be modified in due course to make it
13.  ProcessorStandard Operating Process consistent with law. The Board shall have the right
to amend the Policy from time to time, based on
The Head of Finance/Accounts form/adopt a recommendations of Audit Committee. The Policy
Standard Operating Process (SOP) as guidance shall be reviewed as and when required,
for related party transactions and all the However, it shall be reviewed earlier if need arises
for the same and/ or under special circumstances,
for example achangeinlaw.
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Annexure Il

Report of the Directors on Corporate Governance for FY23

Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance

Corporate governance provides a comprehensive and
interdisciplinary approach to the management,
operation, and control of the company. It is the use of
best management practices, strict compliance to the
letter and spirit of the law and adherence to superior
ethical standards. Corporate governance is critical to
the survival of the company and is required to establish
a corporate culture of transparency, accountability and
effective oversight over the business.

A system of effective checks and balances between the
key participants, including the board, its committees,
the management, auditors, and numerous other
stakeholders, is included in your company's corporate
governance architecture. Maintaining oversight and
integrity in the company's governance and business
operations is a priority for the board of directors and
management of your business.

Our corporate governance policies are appropriate for
the scale of the company and in the best interests of all
stakeholders, including our shareholders, workers,
customers, and the community. The Company has
implemented more effective governance frameworks
to guarantee sound decision-making, support senior
management succession planning that increases long-
term prosperity.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company play an integral
part in formulating standards for overall corporate
governance along with the framework for internal
control and risk management processes while taking
into account the scale of operations, risk profile and
organizational structure and ensuring strict
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observance of statutory and regulatory requirements
including market conduct, managing customer
grievance and suitability of customer service.

The contribution of the Board is critical for ensuring
appropriate guidance with regards to leadership,
vision, strategy, policies, monitoring, supervision,
accountability to shareholders and other stakeholders,
and for achieving greater levels of performance on a
sustained basis as well as adherence to the best
practices of corporate governance.

We also support the value of a more diverse and
inclusive board, which contributes a rich range of
perspectives, opinions, and ideas for making decisions
and solving problems. Board diversity can pave the way
for more inclusive and cooperative corporate
governance, enhancing the productivity and
performance of the company, have a good effect on a
company's culture, and assist in keeping up with a
changing consumer base and market.

Composition and Category of the Board of Directors

The composition of the Board of Directors is in
conformity with the SEBI (Listing Regulations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (“Listing
Regulation”)and the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

AsatMarch 31,2023, the Board of Directors comprised
of 8 Directors, of whom 4 were Non-Executive
Independent Directors (Including the Chairman and 2
Women Directors), 3 were Non-Executive Nominee
Directors representing investors and the Managing
Director & Chief Executive Officer.
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The details of the Board of Directors are as under:

Membership in

No of No of Committees*
. Equity Qualification / Other
Name ofDirector DIN Category Shares Experience Directors as
held hips Member Chairperson
Non-
Mr. Deepak Executive Bachelors in
catmalob 00009627  Chairman ) Mechanical 3 5 5
atwalekar and Engineering and MBA
Independent (over 37 years)
Director
Independent Bachelors in
'\DAS&G?taI 02277155 Woman - Commerce and 4 1 -
utta o€ Director PGDM (over 28 years)
. Bachelors in
M.r' Anuj 09369327 In.dependent Technology and MBA 1 -
Srivastava Director (over 20 years)
Ms. Sucharita Independent Bachelors in
Mukherjee 02569078 Woman - Economics and 2 2 2
Director PGDM (over 22 years)
gﬁ,gy&ie Bachelors
Mr. Divya in Technology and 3
01775308  (For True - -
Sehgal North Fund PeGa[ils\;l (over 27
V LLP) y
gﬁgl'gﬁe Bachelors in Civil
Mr. Maninder Engineering and
. . 02680016 (For True - 4 2 -
Singh Juneja North Fund PeGaDré\;l (over 28
VLLP) y
Nominee
Director
Chartered
g'i Narle”dra ogs30414  FOr Oranee - Accountant and 6 -
stawa PGDM (over 17 years)
Investments
B.V.)
Managing
g;:i:?tor & 803383 Bachelors in electrical
Mr. Manoj 01741612 Executive and electronics and ) 1 _
Viswanathan Officer (0.91%) PGDM (over 26
(“MD & years)
CEO")

*For the purpose of considering the Committee Memberships and Chairpersonship's for a Director, Audit Committee
and the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of Listed Companies including our Company has been considered.
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Other Directorships of Directors in listed entity

Name of Director

Mr. Deepak Satwalekar 1. Asian Paints Limited

2. Wipro Limited

Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel
Mr. Anuj Srivastava -
Ms. Sucharita

Mukherjee

Mr. Divya Sehgal -
Mr. Maninder Singh

Juneja

Name of the listed Entity

1. Equitas Small Finance Bank Limited

Statutory Reports

Category of Directorship
Non-Executive - Independent
Director, Chairman
Non-Executive - Independent
Director
Non-Executive Independent Director

1.Computer Age Management Systems

Mr. Narendra Ostawal Limited

2. Fusion Microfinance Limited

Mr. Manoj Viswanathan -

None of the Directors held directorship in more than
ten public companies and none of the directors served
as a director in more than seven listed companies,
across the directorships held including that in the
Company. Further, neither of the Directors of the
Company isa member of more than ten committees or
chairperson of more than five committees across all
the publiccompaniesinwhich he/sheis a Director.

The Company has a Non-Executive Independent

Director as a Chairman. The role of the Chairman and
the MD & CEO are distinct and separate. The MD & CEO

Change in Composition of the Board

Non - Executive - Nominee Director

of the Company does not serve as an Independent
Directorinany listed company or any other company.

None of the directors are inter-se related to each other.
The Independent Directors are independent of the
management and in the opinion of the Board all the
independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in
the SEBI Listing Regulations. All the directors of the
Company have confirmed that they satisfy the fit and
proper criteria as prescribed under the applicable
regulations.

The change in the composition of Board for FY23 under review is as under:

Sr. No. Name of the Director
1. Mr. Vishal Vijay Gupta

The Company has furnished to National Housing Bank
aquarterly statement on change of directors fromtime
totime.

Chart setting out skills/expertise/competence of
the Board

The Board comprises qualified members who bring in
the required skills, competence and expertise to

Nature of change
Retirement by rotation

Effective date
June 10, 2022

enable them to effectively contribute in deliberations
at Board and Committee meetings. As required under
Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the below matrix
summarizes a mix of skills, expertise and competencies
possessed by our individual Directors, which are key to
corporate governance and Board effectiveness:
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Parameters

Industry
Experience v v

Financial Expertise

Consumer N N
Behavior

Legal and - N
Compliance

Corporate \ N
Governance

Strategy and N N
Decision Making

ALM and Risk \ N
Management

Information
Technology and - -
Cyber Security

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board's role, responsibilities, and levels of
accountability are all clearly stated. The Board's duties,
in addition to its principal responsibility for keeping an
eye on company performance, include but are not
limited to the following:

e formulation of strategicand business plans;

e reviewing and approving financial plans and
budgets;

®* monitoring corporate performance against
strategic and business plans, including
overseeing operations;

e ensuring ethical behavior and compliance of
laws and regulations;

e reviewingandapproving borrowinglimits;

e formulating exposure limits; and

e keeping shareholders informed regarding
plans, strategies and performance.
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Mr. Deepak Ms.Geeta Mr. Anuj Ms. Mr. Mr. Mr. Mr.
Satwalekar Dutta Goel Srivastava Sucharita Maninder Divya

Narendra Manoj
Mukherjee Singh Sehgal Ostawal Viswan

Juneja athan
V V v v v
v V v ol V
- V V - V
- - - - V
V - v v v
V V v v v
V V v v v
v ol v - v

Board Proceedings

The Board and Committee Meetings are planned in
advance, and a tentative annual calendar is shared to
all Directors to allow them to plan their schedules and
encourage active participation in the meetings. When a
particular or urgent business necessity arises, the
Board must give its consent by approving resolutions
that are circulated in line with all applicable legislation.
These resolutions are reported and reaffirmed at the
following board meeting. The Directors are also given
an option to participate in the meetings through video
conferencing to encourage effective and active
involvementin the Board deliberations.

The Board / Committee meeting notificationis sentina
timely manner and in accordance with all applicable
legislation. To help the members make thoughtful
decisions, all the necessary notes and information are
included inthe agenda itself.
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The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and
decide on the business policy and strategy and other
businesses. During the year under review, 4 meetings
of the Board of Directors of the Company were
convened and held on May 3, 2022, July 27, 2022,
October 19, 2022 and January 24, 2023. All the
meetings were held in a manner that not more than
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The required quorum was present at all the above
meetings.

The attendance of the directors at the above-
mentioned board meetings and the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) held on June 10, 2022, along with the
sitting fees paid to them are listed below:

120 days lapsed between two consecutive meetings.

Name of Director No. of Board No. of Sitting Fees AGM
Meetings convened meetings paid (in<) Y=attended
during their tenure attended N=not attended

Mr. Deepak Satwalekar 4 3 3,00,000/- Y

Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel* 4 -

Mr. Anuj Srivastava 4 2 2,00,000/- Y

Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee 4 3 3,00,000/- Y

Mr. Divya Sehgal 4 3 - Y

Mr. Maninder Singh Juneja 4 4 - Y

Mr. Vishal Vijay Gupta 1 1 - N

Mr. Narendra Ostawal 4 4 - Y

Mr. Manoj Viswanathan 4 4 - Y

*Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel vide her letter dated January 17, 2022 had expressed her intention to not draw remuneration
in any form for FY23.

Membership of Directors in Board Committees during FY23:

Name of Director Audit Nomination &  Stakeholders  Risk IT Corporate Social
Committee Remuneration Relationship Management Strategy Responsibility
Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee

Mr. Deepak Satwalekar - - - - . -

Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel M C - - - C
Mr. Anuj Srivastava - M - - C -
Ms. Sucharit

s uc.ana c ) c M ) M
Mukherjee

Mr. Divya Sehgal - - - - - -
Mr. Maninder Singh

Juneja M ) M ¢ ’ )
Mr. Vishal Vijay Gupta ** - - - - - -
Mr. Narendra Ostawal - M - M - -
Mr. Manoj Viswanathan - - M M M M

* C=Chairperson and M=Member
** Mr. Vishal Vijay Gupta ceased to be a Nominee Director with effect from June 10, 2022.
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Board Diversity

To ensure thatafair and transparent process is in place
to encourage diversity in thought, knowledge, skills,
experience, age, gender, perspective, functional and
industry experience, cultural and geographical
background, the Board has adopted the “Policy to
promote diversity on the Board of Directors” as
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. We recognize the benefits of having a
diverse Board, and see increasing diversity at Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a
competitive advantage.

The present Board comprises of adequate number of
members with diverse backgrounds such as financial
services, technology, accounting, cybersecurity and
consumer behavior that best serve the governance and
business requirements of the Company. The directors
are persons of eminence in their respective fields and
bring with them plethora of skills and experience that
addvalue tothe performance of the Board.

Role of Independent Directors

Independent directors play a crucial partin the board's
decision-making process since they approve the
Company's overall strategy and monitor
management’'s performance. The independent
directors bring with them a wealth of expertise,
wisdom, and understanding in the areas of finances,
housing, credit & risk, and accounting. This extensive
understanding of their area of specialty and
boardroom procedures resultsin a variety of unbiased,
experienced, and independent view points. Each
independent director has committed and set aside
enough timeto carry outtheir responsibilities well.

Declaration of Independence

All the independent directors have submitted a
declaration of independence, stating that they meet
the criteria of independence provided under section
149(6) of the Act, as amended, and regulation 16(1)(b)
and 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The independent
directors have also confirmed compliance with the
provisions of Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended,
relating to inclusion of their name in the databank of
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independent directors maintained by Indian Institute
of Corporate Affairs.

The terms and conditions of appointment of
Independent Directors are available at Terms and
Condition for appointment of Independent Director.

Familiarization Programme

Your Company, on an ongoing basis strives to keep the
Board, specifically the Independent Directors informed
and updated with matters related to the industry and
business environment in which we operate, our
business model, risk metrices, mitigation and
management, ever evolving governing regulations,
information technology including cyber security, their
roles, rights and responsibilities and any other major
developments and updates.

All new Independent Directors are taken through a
detailed induction and familiarization programme, that
covers the history, background, cultures, values,
organizational structures, board procedures and
overview of the business operations of the Company.
The Company has also provided directors with a
reference manual which inter alia covers the roles,
functions, powers and duties of the directors,
disclosures and declarations to be submitted by
directors and various codes and policies of the
Company.

The induction and ongoing programmes enable the
Independent Directors to take better informed and
conscious decisions, in the best interests of the
stakeholders of the Company.

The details of familiarization programme imparted to
the Independent Directors and the policy of the
Company are available on the Company's website at
Policy on Familiarization Program for Independent
Director.

Separate Independent Directors Meeting

The Independent Directors convened a separate
meeting without the presence of Non-Independent
Directors and members of the management to discuss
all suchissue as they may consider relevant. During the
year under review, the meeting of Independent
Directorswas held on March 15, 2023.
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Atthe said meeting, the Independent Directors considered the following:
1. Reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board asawhole.
2. Reviewed the performance of Mr. Deepak Satwalekar, Chairman of the Company, taking into account

the views of all the Directors who had given their rating in the evaluation process.
3. Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the Company

managementandthe Board thatis necessary for the Board to perform their duties effectively and reasonably.

The details of the meeting and sitting fees paid is mentioned as below:

Number of

. meetings held
Name of Director

during the year and
during their tenure

Mr. Deepak Satwalekar ' 1
Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel 1
Mr. Anuj Srivastava 1
Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee 1

Committees of the Board

To enable better and focused decision making for the
Company, the Board Committees are set up under the
formal approval of the Board and with clearly defined
roles. The Board Committees focus on specific areas
and make informed decisions within the framework of
delegated authority, as well as make specific
recommendations to the Board on matters within their
areas or purview. The Committees' decisions and
recommendations are presented to the Board for
information or approval, as appropriate.

Your Company has six Board level Committees namely,
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Risk
Management Committee and IT Strategy Committee.

The Board has accepted all the recommendations
made by the various Committees. The composition and
functioning of these board committeesisin compliance
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, SEBI Listing Regulations and the Master
Directionsissued by Reserve Bank of India.
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Number of % of total . .
) ) Sitting fees paid
meetings meetings (in ?)
attended attended
1 100% 1,00,000/-
1 100% -
1 100% 1,00,000/-

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been constituted in terms of
provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule Il of SEBI
Listing Regulations. The composition of the Committee
is in adherence to provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing
Regulations and the RBI Master Directions for Housing
Finance Companies.

All the Members of the Committee are financially
literate and possess strong accounting and financial
management expertise. The meetings of Audit
Committee are attended by the Nominee Director, MD
& CEO, Chief Financial Officer, Statutory Auditors and
Internal Auditors as special invitees. The Company
Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary to the
Committee. The Board of Directors have accepted and
implemented the recommendations of the Audit
Committee, whenever provided by the Committee.

As on March'23, the Company has a qualified and
independent Audit Committee comprising of 3 Non-
Executive Directors, 2 of which are Non-Executive
Independent Directors. The Chairperson of the Audit
Committeeis anIndependent Director.
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Composition:

The members of the Audit Committee as on March'23 were:

Name of Director

Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee
Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel

Mr. Maninder Singh Juneja

Statutory Reports

Category Designation
Independent Director Chairperson
Independent Director Member

Nominee Director Member

Terms of reference: 6. Laying down the criteria for granting omnibus
approval in accordance with the Company 'policy
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are very on related party transaction' and such approval
wide and are in line with the regulatory requirements shall be applicable in respect of transactions which
rr_1ar'1dated by t'he Act and Part C of Schedule Il of the arerepetitive in nature;
Listing Regulations. 7. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly,
1. Overseeing the Companv's financial reportin half-yearly and annual financial statements before
' g . P y ) o P . & submission tothe Board for approval;
process and disclosure of its financial information o i
e . 8. Reviewing, with the management, the statement
to ensure that its financial statements are correct, o )
sufficient and credible: of uses/ application of funds raised through an
2. Recommending to th:e Board the appointment issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue,
remuneration and terms of appointment of the etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes
statutory auditor of the Company; other than those stated in the offer document/
3. Reviewing and monitoring the statutory auditor's prospect.us/.notlce and the .rep.ort Sme'.tFEd_by
independence and performance, and the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization
effectiveness of audit process; ' of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making
4. Approving payments to statutory auditors for any appropriate reFomrTwendatlons t(? the Bpard to
otherservicesrendered by the statutory auditors; take‘up.steps in this mattgr. This also |nclu.des
5. Reviewing, with the management, the annual monitoring the use/application of the funds raised
financial statements and auditor's report thereon through the proposed initial public offer by the
before submission to the Board for approval, with Company; o
particular reference to: 9. Approval or any subsequent modifications of
@) Matters required to be included in the transactions of the Company with related parties
Director's Responsibility Statement to be provided that the audit committee may take
included in the Board's report in terms of omnibus approval for related party transactions
clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of proposed to be en.tc.ered into by the Cgmpany
the CompaniesAct; subjectto such conditions as may be prescribed;
(b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and 10. §crut|n|2|ng of inter-corporate loans and
practices and reasons for the same; mvestments, _
© Major accounting entries involving 11. Valuing of undertakings or assets of the Company,
estimates based on the exercise of wherev.er|t|sn.ecessary;. ) .
judgment by management; 12. Evaluating of internal financial controls and risk
(d)  Significant adjustments made in the managementsy§t§ms; ) )
financial statements arising out of audit 13. Establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and
findings; employees to report their genuine concerns or
(e)  Compliance with listing and other legal grleyancgs; ]
requirements relating to financial 14. Reviewing, with the man'agement,.the
statements: performance of statutory and internal auditors,
(f) Disclosure of any related party transactions; and adequacy of the internal control systems;
and
(8) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function

if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussing with internal auditors on any significant
findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations
by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the Board;

Discussing with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of
concern;

Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared
dividends)and creditors;

Reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower
mechanism;

Approving the appointment of the chief financial
officer or any other person heading the finance
function or discharging that function after assessing
the qualifications, experience and background, etc.
ofthe candidate;

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and
any other terms of reference as may be decided by
the Board and/or specified/provided under the
Companies Act or the Listing Regulations or by any
otherregulatory authority; and

Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances
from/investment by the holding company in the
subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the
asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower
including existing loans / advances / investments
existing as on the date of coming into force of this
provisioni.e., April 1,2019, and henceforth.

Statutory Reports

Powers of the Audit Committee:
The powers of the Audit Committee shallinclude the
following:

1.

To investigate any activity within its terms of
reference;

To seekinformation from any employee;

To obtain outside legal or other professional advice;
and

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant
expertise, ifit considers necessary.

Reviewing Powers:

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the
following information:

1.

Management's discussion and analysis of the
financial condition and results of operations;
Statement of significant related party transactions
(as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by
the management;

Management letters / letters of internal control

weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

Internal audit reports relating to internal control

weaknesses;

The appointment, removal and terms of

remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be

subject to review by the audit committee; and

Statement of deviations:

(i) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including
report of monitoring agency, if applicable,
submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of the
Listing Regulations; and

(i) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes
other than those stated in the
document/prospectus/notice in terms of the
Listing Regulations.

Audit Committee Meetings, Attendance and Quorum:

During the year under review, the Committee met 4 times -
May 3, 2022, July 27, 2022, October 19, 2022 and January
24,2023.Therequired quorum of 2 Members (with at least
2 Independent Directors) was present at all the meetings.
The Company Secretary acted as Secretary to all the
Committee meetings. The detailed attendance and sitting
fees paid for the said meetings are given below:

Number of
. Number of % of total o
. meetings held . . Sitting Fees

Name of Director . meetings meetings A

during the year and paid (in %)

. : attended attended

during their tenure
Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee 4 4 100% 4,00,000/-
Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel 4 4 100% -
Mr. Maninder Singh Juneja 4 4 100% -
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Nomination And Remuneration Committee ('NRC’):

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
been constituted in terms of the provisions of Section
178 of the Act and Regulation 19 read with Part D of
Schedule Il of SEBI Listing Regulations. The committee
is chaired by Non-Executive Independent Director. The

Composition:

Statutory Reports

Committee comprises of 3 Directors as its members, all
of them being Non-Executive Directors, two of which
are Non- Executive Independent Directors. The
composition of the Committee is in adherence to the
provisions of Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. The
Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the
Committee.

The members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on March'23 were:

Name of Director Category Designation
Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel Independent Director Chairperson
Mr. Anuj Srivastava Independent Director Member
Mr. Narendra Ostawal Nominee Director Member

Terms of reference:

The terms of reference of this Committee are in line
with the regulatory requirements mandated in the
Companies Act and Part D of Schedule Il of the Listing
Regulations:

1. Formulating the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommending to
the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of
the directors and key managerial personnel;

2. Evaluation of balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board and on the basis of such
evaluation, preparation of description of the roles
and capabilities required of an independent
director;

3. For the purpose of identifying suitable
candidates:

a. availing the services of any external agency, if
required;

b. considering candidates from a wide range of
backgrounds, with due regard to the diversity;
and

c. consideration of the time commitment by the
candidates.

4. Formulating of criteria for evaluation of the
performance of the independent directors and
the Board;

Devising a policy on Board diversity;
6. ldentifying persons who qualify to become

directors or who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid
down, recommending to the Board their
appointment and removal, and carrying out
evaluations of every director's performance;

7. Determining whether to extend or continue the
term of appointment of the independent director,
on the basis of the report of performance
evaluation ofindependentdirectors;

8. Analyzing, monitoring and reviewing various
human resource and compensation matters;

9. Determining the company's policy on specific
remuneration packages for executive directors
including pension rights and any compensation
payment, and determining remuneration
packages of such directors;

10. Determining compensation levels payable to the
senior management personnel and other staff (as
deemed necessary), which shall be market-
related, usually consisting of a fixed and variable
component;

11. Reviewing and approving compensation strategy
from time to time in the context of the then
current Indian market in accordance with
applicable laws;

12. Performing such functions as are required to be
performed by the compensation committee
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014, asamended;
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13. Framing suitable policies and systems to ensure
that there is no violation, by an employee of any
applicablelawsin India or overseas, including:

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015, asamended; and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade
Practices relating to the Securities Market)
Regulations, 2003.

14. Performing such other activities as may be
delegated by the Board and/or specified/provided
under the Companies Act or the Listing

Number of

. meetings held
Name of Director

during the year and
during their tenure

Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel 1
Mr. Anuj Srivastava 1
Mr. Narendra Ostawal 1

Performance Evaluation

In terms of the requirements of the Companies Act and
the Listing Regulations, an annual performance
evaluation of the Board is undertaken where the Board
formally assesses its own performance with the aim to
improve the effectiveness of the Board and its
Committees and Individual Performances of the
Directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has
established a manner for performance evaluation of
directors based on parameters such as role and
contribution by a director, experience and expertise,
ability to constructively challenge the perspective of
others, integrity, confidentiality, independence of
behaviour and judgement. The Company completed
the Board Evaluation during the year, which included
the evaluation of the Board as a whole, its committees,
and individual performance evaluation of Directors,
Independent Directors and Chairperson. The
aforementioned manner of performance evaluation is
as per the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations. The above manner is based on the
Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the SEBI
Circular no. SEBI/HO/ CFD/ CMD/CIR/P/2017/004 dated
January05,2017.

Statutory Reports

Regulations, or by any other regulatory authority;

15. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in
whatever form, payable to senior management;
and

16. Performing such other functions as may be
required for the performance of any of the above
duties.

NRC Meetings, Attendance and Quorum:

During the year under review, the Committee met once
on May 3, 2022. The required quorum was present at
the meeting. The detailed attendance and sitting fees
paid for the said meetings are given below:

Number of % of total "
. . Sitting Fees
meetings meetings .
paid (in %)
attended attended
1 100% -
1 100% 1,00,000/-
1 100% -

The performance evaluation of the Independent
Directors was carried out by the entire Board excluding
the Directors being evaluated. The performance
evaluation of the Board as a whole, the Chairman and
the Non-independent Directors was carried out by the
Independent Directors at their separate meeting held
onMarch 15, 2023.

The performance evaluation criteria for Independent
Directors included the criteria formulated by the NRC
that inter alia includes- (i) Qualifications (ii) Experience
(iii) Knowledge and Competency (iv) Availability and
Attendance (v) Independenceinviews andJudgement.

The Board expressed its satisfaction on the manner,
implementation and compliance of the performance
evaluation carried out by the Company.

Nomination and Compensation Policy

The Company had adopted the Nomination and
Compensation Policy in accordance with the RBI
'Guidelines on Compensation of Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management in NBFCs'
(“Guidelines”) vide notification dated April 29, 2022.
This policy, inter alia, provides (a) Set criteria for
determination of qualification, positive attributes and
independence of adirector required for appointment;
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(b) Identification and evaluation criteria for the
directors, key managerial personnel and senior
management personnel of the Company; and

(c) Ensure that remuneration to Directors, KMP and
SMP involves a balance between fixed and incentive
pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the company
andits goals.

The remuneration paid to the Directors and Senior
Managerial Personnel is in conformity with the
Nomination and Compensation Policy of the Company.
The Policy can be accessed at the website of the
Company https://homefirstindia.com/files-
/NominationandCompesnationPolicy.pdf

Composition:

Statutory Reports

Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR’) Committee:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has
been constituted by the Board of Directors with
powers, inter alia, to make donations/contributions to
any Charitable and/or CSR projects or programs to be
implemented directly or through an executing agency
or other Not for Profit Agency with minimum three
years proven track record or other reputed Non-
Governmental Organisation, of at least two percent of
the Company's average net profits calculated as per
Section 198 of Companies Act, 2013 during the three
immediately preceding financial years in pursuance of
its CSR Policy for the Company's CSRinitiatives.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was formed in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013.The Chairperson of the Committee is an Independent Director.

The members of the CSR Committee as on March'23 were:

Name of Director

Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel
Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee
Mr. Manoj Viswanathan

Terms of reference:

1. To formulate and recommend to the Board of
Directors, the CSR Policy, indicating the CSR
activities to be undertaken, as prescribed under
applicable law;

2. Torecommend the amount of expenditure to be
incurred on the CSR activities, which is to be at
least 2% of the average profit of the Company in
the three immediately preceding financial years;
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Category
Independent Director
Independent Director

Managing Director & CEO

Designation
Chairperson
Member
Member

3. Tomonitor the CSR Policy and its implementation
by the Company fromtimetotime; and

4. To perform such other functions or
responsibilities and exercise such other powers
as may be conferred upon the CSR Committee in
terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder.
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CSR Meetings, Attendance and Quorum:

During the year under review, the Committee met twice i.e., April 25, 2022 and July 22, 2022. The required quorum
was present at the meetings. The details of participation of members and the sitting fees paid is as follows:

Number of Sitting Fees
. Number of % of total L
. meetings held . . paid (in %)
Name of Director . meetings meetings
during the year and
. : attended attended
during their tenure
Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel 2 2 100% -
Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee 2 1 50% 1,00,000/-
Mr. Manoj Viswanathan 2 2 100% -

The composition of the CSR Committee, the CSR Policy and projects approved by the Board are available on the
website of the Company and can be accessed at Impact Reporting Section.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee ('SRC’):

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been constituted to specifically look into the various aspects of interest
of shareholders, debenture holders and other security holders, in terms of the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and
Regulation 20 read with Part D of the Schedule Il of SEBI Listing Regulations. At present the Committee comprises of 3
(three) Directors. Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee is the Chairperson of the Committee. Mr. Shreyans Bachhawat, Company
Secretary of the Company also acts as Secretary to the Committee.

Composition:
The members of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on March'23 were:

Name of Director Category Designation
Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee Independent Director Chairperson
Mr. Manoj Viswanathan Managing Director & CEO Member
Mr. Maninder Singh Juneja Nominee Director Member

Terms of reference:

1.

Consider and resolve grievances of security
holders (includes shareholders, debenture
holders or any other security holder) of the
Company, including complaints related to
transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual report,
non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings, etc.;

of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely
receipt of dividend warrants/annual
reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of
the Company;

Formulation of procedures in line with the
statutory guidelines to ensure speedy disposal of
various requests received from shareholders
fromtimetotime;

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of To approve, register, refuse to register transfer or
voting rights by shareholders; transmission of shares and other securities;

3. Review of adherence to the service standards To sub-divide, consolidate and or replace any
adopted by the Company in respect of various share or other securities certificate(s) of the
services being rendered by the Registrar and Company;

Share Transfer Agent; Allotmentand listing of shares;
4. Review of the various measures and initiatives Approval of transfer or transmission of shares,
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debentures or any other securities;
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10. To authorize affixation of common seal of the
Company;

11. To issue duplicate share or other security(ies)
certificate(s) in lieu of the original
share/security(ies) certificate(s) of the Company;

12. To approve the transmission of shares or other
securities arising as a result of death of the
sole/anyjointshareholder;

13. To dematerialize or rematerialize the issued
shares;

14. Ensure proper and timely attendance and
redressal ofinvestor queries and grievances;

15. Carrying out any other functions contained in the
CompaniesAct, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations

Number of
meetings held
during the year and
during their tenure

Name of Director

Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee 2
Mr. Maninder Singh Juneja 2
Mr. Manoj Viswanathan 2

The primary function of the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee is to consider and resolve various aspect of
interest of the security holders of the Company. The
equity shares and debentures issued by the Company

Statutory Reports

and/or equity listing agreements (if applicable), as and
when amended from time to time; and

To further delegate all or any of the power to any other
employee(s), officer(s), representative(s), consultant(s),
professional(s), or agent(s).

SRC Meeting, Attendance and Quorum:

During the year under review, the Committee met
twice on April 18, 2022 and October 12, 2022 with all
the members in attendance to discuss the various
aspects of interests of the stakeholders. The details of
participation of members and the sitting fees paid is
as follows

Number of % of total .

. . Sitting Fees
meetings meetings paid (in )
attended attended

2 100% 2,00,000/-
100% -
100% -

are in dematerialized form. Kfin Technologies Limited
has been appointed by the Company as the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. The services
rendered by the RTA meets the service standards as
adopted by the Company.

During the period under review, no complaints were received by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

Nature of Complaint Complaints received Complaints not solved Pending
Sr. No during the year to the satisfaction of  complaints as on
shareholders March23
Non-receipt of Annual
1. Report 0 0 0
Non-receipt of
2. Dividend warrant 0 0 0
Non-receipt of
3. securities after transfer 0 0 0
Complaint received
4. through SEBI 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0
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Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Management Committee has been
constituted in accordance with Regulation 21 read with
Part D Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
the Master Direction- NBFC - HFC (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021.

Composition:

Statutory Reports

The Committee's role and responsibility have been
defined by the Board of Directors, and it has been
delegated the role of monitoring and reviewing the
risk management plan, as well as other functions,
which specificallyincludes cyber security.

The members of the Risk Management Committee as on March'23 were:

Name of Member

Mr. Maninder Singh Juneja
Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee
Mr. Narendra Ostawal

Mr. Manoj Viswanathan
Ms. Nutan Gaba Patwari
Mr. Ajay Khetan

Mr. Ashishkumar Darji

Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Committee inter-alia
includes:

1. To formulate a detailed risk management policy
which shallinclude:

a) A framework for identification of internal and
external risks specifically faced by the listed entity, in
particular including financial, operational, sectoral,
sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks),
information, cyber security risks or any other risk as
may be determined by the Committee.

b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and
processes forinternal control of identified risks.

) Business continuity plan.

2.To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes
and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate
risks associated with the business of the Company;

3. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk
management policy, including evaluating the
adequacy of risk management systems;
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Category
Nominee Director
Independent Director
Nominee Director
MD & CEO
Chief Financial Officer
Chief Business Officer
Chief Risk Officer

Designation
Chairman
Member
Member

Member
Member
Member
Member

4.To periodically review the risk management policy, at
least once in two years, including by considering the
changing industry dynamics and evolving
complexity;

5. To keep the board of directors informed about the
nature and content of its discussions, recomme-
ndations and actions to be taken and;

6.The appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be
subject to review by the Risk Management
Committee.

RMC Meetings, Attendance and Quorum:

During the year under review, the Risk Management
Committee met four times - June 27, 2022, September
28,2022, November 23,2022 and January 19, 2023. The
gap between any meetings did not exceed one
hundred and eighty days on a continuous basis. The
required quorum was present at all the above
meetings. The details of participation of members and
thessitting fees paid is as follows:
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Name of Member

Mr.
Ms.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Ms.
Mr.

Information Technology (“IT”) Strategy Committee:

Number of meetings
held during the year

and during their
tenure

Maninder Singh Juneja 4
Sucharita Mukherjee
Narendra Ostawal
Manoj Viswanathan
Ajay Khetan
Nutan Gaba Patwari

FNE N T T S SN

AshishKumar Darji

Number of
meetings
attended

A WA W WA W

Statutory Reports

% of total
meetings
attended

Sitting Fees
paid (in%)

75% -
100% 4,00,000/-
75% -
75% -
100% -
75% -
100% -

The IT Strategy Committee has been constituted in accordance with the Master Direction- Information Technology
Framework for the NBFC Sector issued by the Reserve Bank of India dated June 8, 2017. The Committee shall work
in partnership with other Board committees and Senior Management to provide inputs to them. It shall also carry
out review and amend the IT strategies in line with the corporate strategies, Board Policy reviews, cyber security

arrangements and any other matter related to IT Governance.

Composition:

The members of the IT Strategy Committee as on March'23 were:

Na
Mr
Mr
Ms
Mr
Mr
Ms
Mr
Mr

me of Member

. Anuj Srivastava

. Manoj Viswanathan

. Nutan Gaba Patwari

. Ajay Khetan

. Gaurav Mohta

. Vilasini Subramaniam
. Dharmvir Singh™

. Devendra Mani

Category Designation
Independent Director Chairman
Managing Director & CEO Member
Chief Financial Officer Member
Chief Business Officer Member
Chief Marketing Officer Member
Head- Strategic Alliance Member
Chief Technology Officer Member
Head-Operations Member

"Consequent upon resignation, Mr. Dharmvir Singh ceased to be a member of the Committee with effect from
October 13, 2022.

Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Committee are as

follo

Inte

WS:

To ensure that management has an effective IT
strategic planning process and is aligned with
business strategy;

To ensure that investments in Information
Technology represent a balance of risks and
benefits for sustaining organization's growth and
within the acceptable budget;

To monitor IT resources required to achieve
strategic goals and provide high-level direction for
sourcingand use of ITresources;

To oversee implementation of processes and
practices and ensuring that maximum value is
delivered to business;

To approve IT strategy and policy documents;

To define and ensure effective implementation of
standards of IT Governance, Business Continuity
and Data Governance;
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7. To ensure there is appropriate framework of
information security risk assessment within the
organization;

8. To ensure effective due diligence, oversight and
management of outsourcing and accountability
for all outsourcing decisions;

9. To ensure that a comprehensive risk assessment
of HomekFirst's IT system is carried out on yearly
basis;

Number of meetings

held during the year

Name of Member . .
and during their

tenure

Mr. Anuj Srivastava 2

Mr. Manoj Viswanathan

Ms. Nutan Gaba Patwari

Mr. Ajay Khetan

Mr. Gaurav Mohta

Ms. Vilasini Subramaniam

Mr. Devendra Mani

Mr. Dharmvir Singh*

= N NN N NN

Number of

Statutory Reports

IT Strategy Meetings, Attendance and Quorum:

During the year under review the committee met 2
times on September 7, 2022 and on March 2, 2023.
The meetings were held in a way that not more than
six months elapsed between them. The required
quorum was present in all the meetings. The details
of participation of members and sitting fees paidis as
follows:

% of total

) ) Sitting Fees
meetings meetings paid (in3)
attended attended

2 100 % 2,00,000/-
2 100% -
1 50 % -
2 100% -
2 100 % -
1 50% -
2 100% -
1 100% -

*Mr. Dharmvir Singh ceased to be the member of the Committee with effect from October 13, 2022.

Remuneration of Directors

The remuneration paid to the Directors of the
Company is in accordance with the applicable
provision of the Companies Act, the SEBI Listing
Regulations and in line with the compensation policy of
the Company. The details of remuneration of Directors
are provided in Form MGT-7 (annual return) which is
hosted on the website of the Company and can be
accessed at Annual Returnin Form MGT 7 FY 2022-23.

a. Pecuniary relationship and/or transactions of
the Non-Executive Directors with the listed entity

During the year under review, there were no pecuniary
relationships or transactions of the Non-Executive
Directors with the Company, apart from remuneration
paid by way of commission and sitting fees to the
Independent Directors.
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The remuneration for non-executive directors consists
of sitting fees and commission. The criteria for
payment of the annual commission to non-executive
directors is based on the performance of the Company
as well as that of the individual non-executive director.
The commission payable to non-executive directors
was recommended by NRC and approved by the Board
and is within the overall limits as approved by the
shareholders of the Company. However, the Nominee
Directors were not paid remuneration in FY23. No
shares or convertible instruments are held by the Non-
Executive Directors.
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The details of remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors is as hereunder:

Fee for attending

Name of the Director
Meetings (in )

Independent Directors
Mr. Deepak Satwalekar
Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel *

Mr. Anuj Srivastava

4,00,000/-

5,00,000/-
Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee 15,00,000/-
Other Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Maninder Singh Juneja -

Mr. Divya Sehgal -

Mr. Narendra Ostawal -

Total 24,00,000/-

Board /Committee

Commission Total
(in?) Other (in?)
24,20,000/- - 28,20,000/-
12,00,000/- - 17,00,000/-
13,00,000/- - 28,00,000/-
49,20,000/- - 73,20,000/-

*Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel vide her letter dated January 17, 2022 had expressed her intention to not draw remuneration in

any form for FY23.

Remuneration of Managing Director & CEO ('"MD &
CEO")

The components of the MD & CEO's compensation
package include salary, a performance-linked
incentive, and other benefits. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee makes the decision, whichis

then accepted by the Board and stays within the
general parameters set by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting. Mr. Viswanathan is not
qualified for any severance payments and his notice
period is 3 months from the date of resignation.

Details of remuneration paid to Mr. Manoj Viswanathan, MD & CEO, for FY22:

Sr.No. Particulars of Remuneration

1. Gross salary

Total Amount (in%)

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of

the Income -tax Act,
1961

118,80,000/-

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income - tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income -tax

Act, 1961
Stock Option
3. Sweat Equity
4. Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify
5. Others, please specify
Performance Linked Incentive (for FY22)

Total

Integrated Annual Report

80,00,000/-

198,80,000/-
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b. Criteria for making payments to Non-Executive
Directors

Non-executive directors of the Company play a crucial
role in the independent functioning of the Board. They
bring in a wider perspective in the deliberations and
decision-making of the Board which adds value to the
Company. They also play a crucial role in the
independent functioning of the Board. They also
oversee the corporate governance framework of the
Company. The criteria of making payments to
non-executive directors are placed on the Company's
website and can be accessed at Nomination and
Compensation Policy.

Dividend Distribution Policy

The Company has in place the Dividend Distribution
Policy, duly approved by the Board of Directors. The
same is available on the website of the Company and
can be accessed at Dividend Distribution Policy.

Internal Guidelines on Corporate Governance

Your Company has a duly formulated Internal
Guidelines on Corporate Governance in accordance
with HFCs - Corporate Governance (NHB) Directions,
2016 and RBI Directions for Housing Finance Company,
2021, which inter-alia, defines the legal, contractual
and social responsibilities of the Company towards its
various stakeholders and lays down the Corporate
Governance practices of the Company. The said policy
is available on the website of the Company at Internal
Guidelines on Corporate Governance.

Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and the
Senior Management Personnel

Pursuant to Regulation 17(5) of Listing Regulations, the
Company has adopted Code of Conduct applicable to
the Board of Directors and the Senior Management
Personnel ('Code'). The Code provides guidance to the
Directors and Senior Management Personnel to
conduct their business affairs ethically and in full
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.
In accordance with Schedule V (D) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations. The Company has also received

Statutory Reports

declaration from MD & CEO confirming that all the
Directors and the Senior Management Personnel of the
Company have complied to the Code of Conduct for the
financial year ended March'23 as attached with this
Report. The said code is hosted on the website at Code
of Conduct for Directors and Senior Managerial
Personnel.

Related Party Transactions Policy

The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of
and dealing with Related Party Transactions pursuant
to the provisions of the Companies Act and Regulation
23 of the Listing Regulations, which specify the manner
of entering into Related Party Transactions. Details of
related party transactions entered by the Company in
the ordinary course of its business are included in the
notes forming part of the financial statements. The
Company did not enter into any material related party
transaction during the financial year ended March 31,
2023. During the year under review, all RPTs were
placed before the Audit Committee for its approval
(including omnibus approval), as required under
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
23 of the Listing Regulations. No materially significant
related party transactions were entered into during the
FY23 that may have potential conflict with interests of
the listed entity atlarge.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions has been
hosted on the website of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Listing Regulations and the
RBI master directions for housing finance companies
and can be accessed at the web-link at Related Party
Transaction Policy.

Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism and
Whistle Blower Policy

The Vigil Mechanism as envisaged in the Companies Act
and the Rules thereunder and the Listing Regulations is
implemented through the Whistle Blower Policy. This
policy provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of persons who use such mechanism and
provides direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases.
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It enables reporting illegal or unethical behaviour,
actual or suspected fraud(s) or violation of the
Company's Codes of Conduct or Corporate
Governance Policies or any improper activity. None of
the personnel have been denied access to the Audit
Committee.

The policy is placed on the website of the Company and
can be accessed at Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower

Policy.

Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading
and Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information

In compliance of the SEBI PIT Regulations, as amended
fromtime to time, the Company has formulated a Code
of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in the
shares of the Company, which inter alia, prohibits
trading in shares of the Company by insiders while in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information
in relation to the Company and in order to ensure
uniform dissemination of unpublished price sensitive
information. The Board of Directors had adopted a
'Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information' which is
available on the website of the Company and can be
accessed at Code of practices and procedures of fair
disclosure of UPSI.

Statutory Reports

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy, and
information required to be disclosed under Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

Your Company has adopted zero tolerance for sexual
harassment at the workplace and has formulated a
policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of
sexual harassment at the workplace in line with the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 and the rules framed thereunder. The Company
has complied with the formation of the Internal
Complaints Committee as prescribed under the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

Pursuant to the said Act, the details of the total
reported and closed cases pertaining to incidents
under the above framework/ law are as follows:
Number of cases filed during the year: Nil
Number of cases disposed during the year: Nil
Numbers of cases pending as on March 31, 2023: Nil

Penalties

There were no instances of non- compliances, penalty
levied or strictures imposed on the Company by the
Stock Exchanges, or SEBI or any statutory authority, on
any matter related to capital markets, during the last
threeyears.
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Details of Annual General Meetings:
The details of the location and time of the last three Annual General Meetings is given below:

For the financial year  Date & Time Venue Details of Special Resolution passed
2021-22 June 10, 2022 at  Through Video e Approve the increase in borrowing powers in
2:00 PM Conferencing excess of the Paid-up Share Capital, Free
("vC")/ Other Reserves and Securities Premium of the
Audio-Visual Company pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the
Means CompaniesAct, 2013.
e Approve creation of charges on the assets of
the Company under Section 180(1)(a) of the
Companies Act, 2013 to secure the
borrowings made/to be made under section
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.
2020-21 August 5, 2021  Through Video e Ratification of the ESOP 2012 Scheme
at 11:00 A.M. Conferencing pursuant to SEBI (Share Based Employee
(“vC")/ Other Benefit) Regulations 2014.
Audio-Visual e Ratification of the ESOP Il Scheme pursuant to
Means SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefit)
Regulations 2014.
e Consideration and approval of Article 18.1 to
18.12 of the Articles of Association of the
Company.
2019-20 June 20, 2020 511, Acme Plaza, e To authorize Board for issuance of Non-

Andheri Kurla
Road, Andheri (E),
Mumbai 400059

at 11:00 A.M. Convertible Debentures and/or any other
hybrid instruments of the Company on

private placementbasis.

Postal Ballot: No Postal Ballot was conducted during FY23 and no special resolution is proposed to be passed through
postal ballot underthe provisions of the Act, on or before the ensuing AGM.

results, various policies framed/approved by the
Board, presentations made to the media, analysts and
institutional investors, schedule and transcripts of
earnings call with investors, official news releases,
matters concerning the shareholders and details of the
contact persons, etc.

Means of Communication:

Your company publishes financial reports on a
quarterly basis in accordance with the applicable SEBI
Listing regulations, which are duly examined by the
Audit Committee prior to submission to the Board and
submission to the stock exchanges. Financial Express
and Mumbai Lakshdeep are the newspapers wherein
company's financial results are published. The
managing director, chief financial officer and investor
relations officer attend conference calls with investors
and analysts on a quarterly basis and interact with
them atregularintervals.

During FY23, the Company sent documents, such as
notice of the annual general meeting, audited financial
statements, directors' report, auditors' report, etc. in
electronic form to the registered email addresses of
the members. All financial and other vital official news
releases and documents under the SEBI Listing

The Company's website_ www.homefirstindia.com,
under the section of 'investor relations' contains all
important public information including financial

Integrated Annual Report

Regulations are also communicated to the concerned
stock exchanges, besides being placed on the
Company's website.
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General Shareholder Information:

Corporate Information:

Incorporation Date

Registered Office Address

Corporate Identification Number (CIN)

Date, time and venue of the Annual General Meeting

Financial year

Dividend Payment Date

Name and Address of Stock Exchange

Stock Code

Payment of Listing Fees

ISIN

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

In Case securities are suspended from Trading

Integrated Annual Report
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February 3, 2010

511, Acme Plaza, Andheri Kurla Road,
Andheri (East), Mumbai 400 059

L65990MH2010PLC240703

Date: June 8, 2023; Time: 11:00 A.M.,
Indian Standard Time (“IST")

April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023

Dividend to be paid within 30 days from the date of
approval in the Annual General Meeting

The equity shares of the Company are listed on
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE)
and BSE Limited (BSE).

Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) issued by
the Company are listed on the Wholesale Debt
Market (WDM) segment of the BSE.

NSE: Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai 400 051.

BSE: Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001.

NSE: HOMEFIRST
BSE: 543259

The Company has paid the annual listing fees for the
relevant periods to NSE and BSE where its equity
sharesare listed.

INE48TNO1025

KFin Technologies Limited

(formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Selenium Tower-B Plot 31 & 32, Gachibowli, Financial
District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad -
500032 Telangana, India, Tel: +91406716 2222

Not Applicable
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Share Transfer System

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

Outstanding global depository receipts or American
depository receipts or warrants or any convertible
instruments, conversion date and likely impact on
liquidity

Plant Locations

Address for correspondence

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and
commodity hedging activities
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The Company's shares are traded under compulsory
dematerialized mode and are freely tradable. The
Board of Directors have delegated the power to attend
allthe formalities relating to transfer of securitiesto the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. An
annual certificate of compliance with the share/debt
transfer formalities as required under Regulation 40(9)
and 61(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations is obtained
from the Company Secretary in Practice and a copy of
the certificate is filed with the Stock Exchanges within
the prescribedtime.

As on March'23, 100 % of the total equity capital was
held in dematerialized form with National Securities
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services
(India) Limited. The Company's shares are regularly
traded on BSE and NSE.

Not applicable since the Company has not issued any
Global Depository Receipts or American Depository
Receipts or Warrants or Convertible bonds.

Not Applicable

KFin Technologies Limited

(formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Selenium Tower-B Plot 31 & 32, Gachibowli, Financial
District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad -
500032 Telangana, India

Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Home First Finance Company India Limited
511, Acme Plaza, AndheriKurla Road,
Mumbai 400-059.

Email- corporate@homefirstindia.com

This is not applicable since the Company does not have
any derivatives or liabilities denominated in foreign
currency.
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Stock Price Data:

The reported high and low closing prices of equity shares (in ¥) of the Company traded on NSE and BSE during the
period under review are set out in the following table:

Month BSE NSE
High Low High Low
April 2022 838.75 693.15 819.60 690.55
May 2022 834.95 678.00 837.30 677.05
June 2022 804.25 700.00 803.80 702.90
July 2022 858.05 730.05 859.00 726.05
August 2022 1,004.40 790.00 1,004.55 789.90
September 2022 971.80 831.50 972.45 831.00
October 2022 890.05 695.35 894.00 695.15
November 2022 751.40 652.25 751.45 652.00
December 2022 776.15 687.70 776.60 688.05
January 2023 806.40 717.60 808.00 717.95
February 2023 779.20 721.45 780.25 722.25
March 2023 760.00 654.85 760.00 654.60

[Source: This information is compiled from the data available on the websites of NSE and BSE]

Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex and NSE Nifty:

HomeFirst Vs Nifty

20000 1000
800
15000
600
10000
400
5000
200
0 0

Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22  Jul-22  Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23

Nifty

A A

HomekFirst
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Distribution of Shareholding as on March'23:

Sr. No.

1.

E

© | N o w

Category (Shares)
1-5000
5001 - 10000
10001 - 20000
20001 - 30000
30001 - 40000
40001 - 50000
50001 - 100000
100001 and above

TOTAL

Shareholding Pattern as on March'23:

Sr. No.
1.

E

©® N o w
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Description
Promoters
Foreign Promoters
Mutual Funds
Alternative Investment Fund
Quialified Institutional Buyer
Foreign Portfolio - Corp
Foreign Portfolio - Corp

Directors

Sensex HomeFirst
No. of Holders % Holders

74366 99.64
97 0.13
37 0.05
21 0.03
15 0.02
14 0.02
26 0.03
61 0.08

74,637 100.00

No. of Holders

1
1
13
13

68

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

No. of Shares
6081887
672364
530096
524602
531019
621519
1791087
77264193
8,80,16,767

Total Shares
17705532
11742592
5106736
1924882
369645
12885082
925427
803383

600

400

200

Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23

% To Equity
6.91
0.76
0.60
0.60
0.60
0.71
2.03
87.78

100.00

% Equity
20.12
13.34
5.80
2.19
0.42
14.64
1.05
0.91
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Sr. No.

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.

Description
Key Management Personnel
Employees
Resident Individuals
Non-Resident Indian Non Repatriable
Non-Resident Indians
Foreign Corporate Bodies
Bodies Corporates
Resident Individuals
Clearing Members
Trusts
HUF

Total

No. of Holders
2
71
69525
589

1165

384
11
22

5
1848

73,731

Total Shares
39737
555428
7430549
222243
388746
25191802
2454297
9309
27342
3371
230664
8,80,16,767

Statutory Reports

% Equity
0.05
0.63
8.44
0.25
0.44
28.62
2.79
0.01
0.03
0.00
0.26

100.00

Credit Ratings:

The Company's financial discipline and prudence is reflected in the strong credit ratings assigned by Credit Rating
Agencies as under:

Instrument Rating Agency Rating Outlook Amount inX Crs
ICRA AA- Stable 3,500
Term Loan India Ratings AA- Stable 2,300
CARE AA- Stable 44.23
ICRA Al+ - 100
Commercial Paper
India Ratings Al+ - 100
ICRA AA- Stable 131
Non-Convertible Debentures - -
India Ratings AA- Stable 400

During the year, considering the steady growth, strong profitability and robust balance sheet, rating agencies
upgraded the credit rating of the Company. Both ICRA and CARE upgraded the rating from A+ to AA- (stable)
in June 2022.
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Details of utilization of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutional
placement

During the year under review, your Company has not
raised any funds through preferential allotment or
qualified institutional placement as specified in
Regulation 32 (7A) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Certification from Practicing Company Secretary
(PCS)

A certificate issued by Aashish K Bhatt, (ICSI
Membership No. ACS 19639), Designated Partner of
Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP,
Practicing Company Secretaries, pursuant to
Regulation 34(3) read with Clause 10 (i) of Paragraph C
of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, certifying that none
of the Directors on the Board of the Company as on
March'23, has been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as Directors of the
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Reserve Bank of
India, or any such Statutory Authority. The same forms
part of this Annual Report as an annexure to the
Directors'Report.

Accounting Standards

The Company has followed Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairsinthe preparation of its financial statements.

Certification on Corporate Governance

As required under the SEBI Listing Regulations,
certificate issued by Mr. Aashish K. Bhatt (Membership
No. ACS 19639), Designated Partner of Bhatt &
Associates Company Secretaries LLP, certifying that
the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated by SEBI Listing
Regulations. The said certificate forms part of the
Annual Reportasan Annexure to the Directors Report.
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Due dates for transfer of unclaimed dividend to
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

In terms of Section 125 of the Act, unclaimed dividends
are required to be transferred to the Investors
Education and Protection Fund. There was no dividend
declared in the last Seven (7) years prior to the year
under review and hence, there was no requirement of
transferring the same to the Investors Education and
Protection Fund.

Directors and Officers (D&O) Liability Insurance

As per the provisions of the Act and in compliance with
Regulation 25(10) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the
Company has taken a D&O Liability Insurance policy on
behalf of all Directors including Independent Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company for
indemnifying any of them against any liability in respect
of any negligence, default, misfeasance, breach of duty
or breach of trust for which they may be guilty in
relationto the Company.

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Certification

As required under Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of
Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the MD &
CEO and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
have made a certification to the Board of Directors, in
the prescribed format for the year under review. The
same has been reviewed and taken on record by the
Board of Directors.

Details of non-acceptance of any recommendation
of any committee of the board which is
mandatorily required

During the year under review, there were no such
recommendations made by any Committee of the
Board that were mandatorily required and not
accepted by the Board.
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Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory

auditorisapart

The total fees for all services paid by Company, on a consolidated basis, to M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells (Firm
Registration No.: 117365W), Statutory Auditors of the Company and other firms in the network entity of which the
Statutory Auditors are a part, as included in the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on March 31,

2023, are asfollows:

Particulars

Amount (Zin million)

Fees for audit and related services paid to M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells & 4.00
Affiliates firms and to entities of the network of which the statutory auditor is a part.

Other fees paid to M/s . Deloitte Haskins & Sells & Affiliates firms and to entities 1.74

of the network of which the statutory auditor is a part.

Total

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to
firms/companies in which directors are interested
by name and amount

There are no loans and advances in the nature of loans
to firms/companiesinwhich directors are interested.

Compliance with mandatory requirements and
adoption of the non-mandatory requirements of
Corporate Governance

During the period under review, your Company has
complied with all the mandatory requirements of SEBI
Listing Regulations. In terms of Corporate Governance,
the Company has complied with the applicable
requirements stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27
read with Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing
Regulations").

The Company has also adopted certain voluntary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Deepak Satwalekar
Chairman & Independent Director
DIN: 00009627
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5.74

compliance requirements as outlined in the
Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015
and other applicable acts, rules, regulations &
guidelines. As per the discretionary requirements
specified in Schedule I, Part E of the Listing
Regulations, the Company has appointed separate
persons to the post of Chairperson and Managing
Director & Chief Executive Officer and the internal
auditor directly reports to the audit committee.

Statutory and Regulatory Compliance

The Company has followed all applicable directions,
guidelines and circulars issued by Reserve Bank of
India from time to time. The Company also has been
following directions / guidelines / circulars issued by
Income Tax Act, 1961, Securities and Exchange Board
of India and Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to
time, as applicable to the company. There was no non-
compliance of any requirement of corporate
governance report of sub-paras (2) to (10) of Schedule V
of SEBI Listing Regulations.

Manoj Viswanathan
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 01741612
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Declaration on Compliance with the Company's Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior
Management Personnel

I, Manoj Viswanathan, Managing Director & CEO, hereby confirm and declare that in terms of Regulation 26 (3)
read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, all the Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel for the FY23.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Manoj Viswanathan
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 01741612

Date: May 2, 2023
Place: Mumbai
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members of

Home First Finance Company India Limited,
511, Acme Plaza, Andheri Kurla Road,
Andheri(East), Mumbai-400059.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance by Home First Finance
Company India Limited ('the Company') for the year
ended March 31,2023, as per the relevant provisions of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015")
as referred to in Regulation 15(2) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, 2015 for the period from April 1, 2022 to
March 31,2023.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
is the responsibility of the Company's management
and our examination was limited to procedures and
implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 2, 2023

ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of
the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, we certify
that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing
Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

This Certificate is issued solely for the purposes of
complying with the aforesaid Regulations and may not
be suitable forany other purpose.

For Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP

Aashish K. Bhatt
Designated Partner
Membership No.: 19639
UDIN: A019639E000234810
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Sub clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Home First Finance Company India Limited,
511, Acme Plaza, Andheri Kurla Road,
Andheri(East), Mumbai-400059.

We have examined the relevant registers, records,
forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of Home First Finance Company India
Limited having CIN: L65990MH2010PLC240703 and
having registered office at 511, Acme Plaza Andheri
Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400059
(hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced
before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing
this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3)

Sr. No. Name of Director

—_

Mr. Deepak Satwalekar
Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel

Mr. Anuj Srivastava

Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee
Mr. Maninder Singh Juneja
Mr. Divya Sehgal

Mr. Narendra Ostawal

© N o vk wN

Mr. Manoj Viswanathan

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity
of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these based on our
verification. This Certificate is neither an assurance as

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 2, 2023

read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal i.e.
www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and
explanations furnished to us by the Company & its
officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on
the Board of the Company as stated below for the
Financial Year ending on March 31, 2023 have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as directors of companies by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any other Statutory Authority.

DIN Date of appointment
00009627 23.10.2019
02277155 01.11.2021
09369327 01.11.2021
02569078 01.02.2022
02680016 26.05.2017
01775308 10.06.2017
06530414 15.10.2020
01741612 28.06.2010

to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP

Aashish K. Bhatt
Designated Partner
Membership No.: 19639
UDIN: A019639E000234788
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Home First Finance Company India Limited.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate governance practices by
Home First Finance Company India Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts
/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in
our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023,
complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March
31,2023, accordingto the provisions of:

i The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
('SCRA"Y and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder - Not
Applicable;

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
rules and regulations made thereunder to the

Integrated Annual Report

a)

d)

e)

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings are not applicable;

The following regulations and guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act,1992 ('SEBI Act'): -

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021 and erstwhile the SEBI (Share
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021 and erstwhile the SEBI (Issue
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations 2008;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with client- Not Applicable;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 -
NotApplicable; and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-

back of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not
Applicable;
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Further we report that, based on the compliance
mechanism established by the Company, which has
been verified on test check basis, we are of the opinion
that the Company has complied with the provisions of
the master directions issued by Reserve Bank of India,
National Housing Bank Act, 1987, Circulars, Master
circulars, Notifications and Guidelines as prescribed for
Housing Finance Companies.

We have examined compliance with the applicable
clauses ofthe following:

i Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
the Company Secretaries of India; and

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing Regulations').

During the financial year under review, the Company
has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned
above.

We furtherreportthat:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive Director,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.
The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice, agenda and detailed notes have been
givento all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings at
least seven days in advance and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting. The
decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings
are carried out and recorded in the minutes of the

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 2, 2023

Statutory Reports

Board of Directors and Committee of the Board
accordingly.

We have relied on the representation made by the
Company and its Officers for adequate systems and
processes in the company that commensurate with its
size and operations of the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period under
review, the Company has undertaken events/ actions
having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to
aboveviz:

(i) Board approval for payment of profit related
commission to Independent Directors for FY22;

(i) Approval for increase in remuneration of
Managing Director & CEO for FY23;

(iiiy Allotment of Equity shares pursuant to exercise of
options of ESOP Il Scheme and ESOP 2012
Scheme;

(iv) Adoptionofvarious policies;

(v) Issuance and allotment of non-convertible
debentures on private placement basis;

(vi) The Company has obtained Member's approval
for the following special businesses:

(i) Retirement of Director;

(ii)increase in borrowing powers in excess of the
Paid-up Share Capital, Free Reserves and
Securities Premium of the Company pursuant to
Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013;

(iii) Approval creation of charges on the assets of
the Company under Section 180(1)(a) of the
Companies Act, 2013 to secure the borrowings
made/to be made under section 180(1)(c) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013;

For Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP

Aashish K. Bhatt
Designated Partner
Membership No.: 19639
UDIN: A019639E000234513

This Report is to be read with our letter annexed as Appendix A, which forms integral part of this report.
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To,

APPENDIX A

The Members,

Home First Finance Company India Limited.

Ourreportofevendateistoberead alongwith this letter.

1.

The responsibility of maintaining Secretarial record is of the management and based on our audit, we have
expressed our opinion ontheserecords.

2. We are of the opinion that the audit practices and process adopted to obtain assurance about the correctness
of the secretarial records were reasonable for verification on test check basis.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

4, The management is responsible for compliances with corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards etc. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis and wherever
required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations etc.

5. The Secretarial Auditreportis neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP

Place: Mumbai Aashish K. Bhatt

Date: May 2, 2023 Designated Partner

Membership No.: 19639
UDIN: A019639E000234513
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REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY FOR FY23

1. Abrief outline on CSR policy of the Company:

Home First Finance Company India Limited
(hereinafter referred to as 'HomeFirst') believes in
integrating its business model with the social welfare of
people and society in which it operates. The Company
strives to become an asset in the communities where it
operates, through constant and collaborative
interactions with external stakeholders.

We respect the interests of and are responsive towards
all our stakeholders. Our Corporate Social
Responsibility policy provides for constitution of a CSR
Committee, an implementation strategy which
includes identification of CSR projects, setting
measurable targets, organizational mechanism and
responsibilities, time schedule, execution and
monitoring.

This Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility
encompasses our philosophy for giving back to the
society as a corporate citizen and lays down the
guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially
useful programmes for the welfare and sustainable
development of the community atlarge.

CSR Policy relates to the activities to be undertaken by
the company as specified in Schedule VIl of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the expenditure thereon,
excluding activities undertaken in pursuance of normal
course of business of the company.

2. Composition and Meetings of CSR Committee:

The members of the CSR Committee as at March'23 were:

Name of Director

Designation /
Nature of Directorship

Our CSRThrust Areas:

Your company has identified CSR thrust areas for
undertaking CSR activities in India. Your Company gives
preference to the areas around which the Company
operates and the areas with identified needs for CSR
spending. The brief description of the CSR thrust areas
isasunder:

a. Health: Eradicating hunger, poverty, malnutrition,
promoting health care including preventive healthcare,
sanitation (including construction of toilets) and
availability of safe drinking water.

b. Education and livelihood: Promoting education,
including special education and employment
enhancing vocational skills especially among children,
women, elderly, and the differently abled and
livelihood enhancement projects.

c. Environment: Ensuring environmental susta-
inability, ecological balance, protection of flora and
fauna, animal welfare, agroforestry, conservation of
natural resources.

Number of meetings ~ Number of meetings of
of CSR Committee held CSR Committee attended
during the year during the year

Ms. Geeta Dutta Goel Independent Director 2 2
Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee Independent Director 2 1
Mr. Manoj Viswanathan Managing Director & CEO 2 2
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3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, (e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year

CSR Policy and CSR projects approved are
disclosed on the website of the company:

The Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and
CSR Projects approved are available on the website
of the Company at the following links:

1. Composition of CSR Committee

2.CSRPolicy

3. CSR Projects on website

Executive Summary along with web-link(s) of
Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the
report): Not Applicable.

(a) Average net profit of the Company as per sub
section (5) Section 135:%15,578.88 Lakhs

(b)Two percent of the average net profit of the
Company as per section (5) Section 135: The
Company is required to spend ¥311.58 Lakhs
towards CSR.

[(b)+(c)-(d)].-¥311.58 Lakhs

6. (@) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing

Projectand other than Ongoing Project):
¥307.25Lakhs

(b) Amountspentin Administrative Overheads:

28.95 Lakhs

() Amount spent on Impact Assessment,if

applicable: NIL

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year

[(@)*+(b)+(c)]: ¥316.20 Lakhs

(e) CSRamountspentor unspent for the Financial

Year:NIL

(f)  Excessamountfor set-off, ifany: NIL

Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility
amount for the preceding three Financial Years:
Not Applicable:

Whether any capital assets have been created or
acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amountspentinthe Financial Year:No

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to
spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
subsection (5) of section 135: Not Applicable

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years.-NIL

(d)Amountrequired to be set off for the financial
year, ifany- NIL

For and behalf of Board of Directors

Geeta Dutta Goel

Independent Director
Chairperson of CSR Committee
DIN: 02277155

Manoj Viswanathan
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 01741612
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Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under section 197(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Sr. No. Particulars

1. The ratio of the
remuneration of each
Director to the median
remuneration of the
employees of the
Company as on March
31, 2023.

The percentage

2. increase / (decrease) in
remuneration of each
Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief
Executive Officer,
Company Secretary or
Manager, if any, in
FY23.

Integrated Annual Report

Mr.
Mr.
Ms.
. Anuj Srivastava
Ms.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Mr

Mr.
Mr.
Ms.
Mr.
Ms.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Ms.
Mr.

Name
Manoj Viswanathan
Deepak Satwalekar
Geeta Dutta Goel

Sucharita Mukherjee
Narendra Ostawal
Divya Sehgal
Maninder Singh Juneja

Name

Manoj Viswanathan
Deepak Satwalekar
Geeta Dutta Goel
Anuj Srivastava
Sucharita Mukherjee
Narendra Ostawal
Vishal Vijay Gupta
Divya Sehgal
Maninder Singh Juneja
Nutan Gaba Patwari
Shreyans Bachhawat

Details

* (Annualise increment % is given above)

Ratio
43 :1

oo oo b o

Percentage
(Increase/Decrease)
10% effective Apr22

0.7%
41.7%
229.4%

14% effective Apr'22
22% effective Apr22

Ms. Sucharita Mukherjee and Mr. Anuj Srivastava had been paid
remuneration in FY22 on pro-rata basis from the date of their appointment.
However, they have been paid remuneration in FY23 for the full year
therefore there is a significant percentage increase in their remuneration.
Sitting fees paid to the Independent Directors is part of the remuneration.

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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Sr. No.

Particulars

The percentage
increase in the median
remuneration of
employees in  the
financial year.

The number of
permanent employees
on the rolls of company.
Average percentile
increases already
made in the salaries of
employees other than
the managerial
personnel in the last
financial year and its
comparison with the
percentile increase in
the managerial
remuneration and
justification thereof
and point out if there
are any exceptional

circumstances for
increase in the

managerial remuneration.

Affirmation that the
remuneration is as per
the remuneration
policy of the Company.

Details

12% PA effective Apr'22.
*(Annualised increment % is given above)

993 as on March 31, 2023.

Average percentile increases made in the salaries of employees other than
the managerial personnel in the last financial year = 11% PA effective Apr'22
(Annualised).

Average percentile increases made in the salaries of managerial personnel
in the last financial year = 15% PA effective Apr'22 (Annualised).

The Company affirms that the remuneration paid is as per the nomination
and compensation policy of the Company.

The expression “median” means the numerical value separating the higher half of a population from the lower
half and the median of afinite list of numbers may be found by arranging all the observations from lowest value to
highestvalue and picking the middle one;

Ifthereis an even number of observations, the median shall be the average of the two middle values.
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Annexure VII
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING FORMAT
SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES
I Details of the listed entity
1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity: L65990MH2010PLC240703
2. Name of the Listed Entity: Home First Finance Company India Limited
3. Year of incorporation: 2010
4. Registered office address: 511, Acme Plaza, Andheri Kurla Road, Mumbai - 400059
5. Corporate address: same as above
6. E-mail: corporate@homefirstindia.com
7. Telephone: +91 22 6694 0386
8. Website: www.homefirstindia.com
0. . . . .
Financial year for which reporting
is being done: Start Date End Date
Current Financial Year 1 April 2022 31t March 2023
Previous Financial Year 1=t April 2021 315t March 2022
Prior to Previous Financial year 1°t April 2020 315t March 2021
10. Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares are listed: Equity shares are listed on BSE Limited

(BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

11. Paid-up Capital: ¥ 176,033,534

12. Name and contact details (telephone, email address) of the person who may be contacted in case of
any queries onthe BRSRreport:,

Name Mr. Shreyans Bachhawat, Company Secretary
Contact +91 22 6694 0386
Email id corporate@homefirstindia.com
13. Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this report made on a standalone basis (i.e., only for

the entity) or on a consolidated basis (i.e. for the entity and all the entities which form a part of its
consolidated financial statements, taken together): Disclosures made in this report are on a
standalone basis and pertain only to Home First Finance Company India Limited.

1. Products/Services

14. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover):
S. No Description of Main Description of Business % of Turnover of
: Activity Activity the Entity
1. Financial Services The Company's business is providing 100%

home loans for the purchase or
construction of residential properties
and for the extension and repair of
existing housing units. In addition to
home loans, Company also offers
customers other mortgage loans
including loans against property.
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15. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the turnover):
S. No Product/Service NIC Code % of Total Turnover
contributed
1. Home Loans and other Mortgage 64910 100%
Loans:

The Company provides home loans for
the purchase or construction of
residential properties and for the
extension and repair of existing housing
units. In addition to home loans, the
Company also offers customers loans for
purchasing commercial properties and
other mortgage loans including loans
against property

1. Operations

16. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated:

Location Number of Plants Number of Offices
National Not Applicable* 111%%*
International -

*The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (NBFC-HFC) and
hence does not undertake any manufacturing activity.

** Head Office location includes the corporate office and comprises of 12 different sub-offices in the
same building. If we count these sub-offices separately then the total number of offices for HomeFirst
is123.

17. Markets served by the entity

a) Number of locations
Locations Number
National (No. of States) 12 states and 1 union territory
International (No. of Countries) NIL

b) What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?
NIL

Q) A brief on types of customers
We serve salaried customers in low and middle-income groups which account for 69.5% of our Gross
Loan Assets, and self-employed customers account for 30.3% of our Gross Loan Assets, as of March 31,
2023. Our salaried customers are typically employed by small firms or work in junior positions in
companies, while our self-employed customers are generally small business owners. the monthly
incomes of our customers for majority of our customers range between ¥ 20,000 to ¥ 50,000 per
month.
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18. Details as at the end of Financial Year:
a) Employees and workers (including differently abled):
S. No. Particulars Total Male Female
(A) No. (B) % (B/A) No.(C) % (C/A)
EMPLOYEES
1. Permanent (D) 993 752 75.73% 241 24.27%
2. Other than Permanent (E) - - - -
3. Total Employees (D + E) 993 752 75.73% 241  24.27%
WORKERS
4, Permanent (F) - - - -
5. Other than Permanent (G) - - - -
6. Total Workers (F + G) - - - -
b) Differently abled Employees and workers:
S. No. Particulars Total Male Female
(A) No. (B) % (B/A) No.(C) % (C/A)
DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES
1. Permanent (D) - - - - -
2. Other than Permanent (E) - - - - -
3. Total Employees (D + E) - - - - -
DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS
4. Permanent (F) - - - - -
5. Other than Permanent (G) - - - - -
6. Total Workers (F + G) - - - - -
19. Participation/ Inclusion/ Representation of women:
No. and percentage of Females
Total (A) No. (B) % (B / A)
Board of Directors 8 25.00%
Key Management 3 33.33%
Personnel
20. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers:
FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021
(Turnover rate) (Turnover rate) (Turnover rate)
Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total
Permanent 38.69% 43.04% 39.80% 37.83% 33.41% 36.54% 18.51% 15.80% 17.64%
Employees
Permanent - - - - - - - - -
Workers
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Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)
(a) Names of holding/ Subsidiary/ Associate Companies/ Joint ventures
S. No. Name of holding/  Indicate whether % of shares held  Does the entity
Subsidiary/ holding/ by listed entity indicated at
Associate Subsidiary/ ColumnA,
Companies/ Joint Associate participate in the
ventures (A) Companies/ Joint Business
venture Responsibility
initiatives of the
listed entity?
(Yes/No)
No Holding, Subsidiary or Associate Companies (including joint ventures)
CSR Details
(i) Whether CSR is applicable as per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: (Yes/No): Yes
(ii) Turnover (in %) 790.99 Crs
(iii) Net worth (in %) 1817.34 Crs
Transparency and Disclosure Compliances
Complaints / Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines on
Responsible Business Conduct:
Stakeholder  Grievance FY 2023 FY 2022
group from  Redressal Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
whom Mechanism Numberof = Number of Remarks Numberof Numberof Remarks
complaint is inPlace  complaints  complaints complaints complaints
received (Yes/No) filed pending filed pending
during the resolution during the resolution
(If yes, year at the year at the
then close of close of
provide the year the year
web - link
for
grievance
redress
policy)
Communities Yes 0 0 0 0
Investors Yes 0 0 0 0
(other than
shareholders)
Shareholders Yes 0 0 0 0
Customers Yes 397 0 288 0
Value Chain Yes 0 0 0 0
Partners
Others
(please
specify)

Link for Customer Grievance Redressal Policy: https://homefirstindia.com/policy/complaints-grievances/

24.  Overview of the entity’s material response business conduct issues

Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to
environmental and social matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, rationale
for identifying the same, approach to adapt or mitigate the risk along with its financial implications,
as per the following format:
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Indicate . .Fin:fmcial
- whether Rationale for In case of risk, |m||:llcat|ons of t.he
S. Ma_terla_l 1ssue risk or identifying the approach to risk or opportunity
No. identified . . . . (Indicate positive or
opportunity  risk/opportunity adapt or mitigate .
(R/O) _ negative
implications)

1 Funding Risk Inappropriate As a part of Funding such high-risk
properties property/ property properties may lead to
which are development assessment financial losses to
inappropriate or location may process, HomeFirst. Reasons
are developed at either lead to HomeFirst has  being, such properties
inappropriate loss of life clearly called may lead to
location may and/or out criteria for - loss of life
lead to severe deterioration selecting (i.e.,
environmental, in quality of properties Borrower,
social, health lifein nearby that can be other
and safety habitats. financed. surrounding
issues. These criteria habitats) and

HomeFirst is cover various /or
primarily in aspects - environmental
the business related to issues and/or

SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES

of mortgage environment, - Regulatory
loans. In the social, health actions (i.e.,
event of and safety. Legal
default by This is Proceedings,
borrower, the regularly Demolitions
most suitable communicated of structure,
recovery to Property financial
mechanism is Assessment penalties on
sale of primary team. owners,
collateral Additionally, confiscation of
(Property). Any we receive property etc.)
kind of reports from which may negatively
incorrect empaneled impact borrower's
assessment valuesto get an repayment ability and
and non independent intertion. This may
compliance of opinion on ultimately lead to
reguldory suitability of defaults in repayment
laws impacts location and of the loan.
recovery other
prospects. regulatory

aspects.

This section is aimed at helping business demonstrate the structures, policies and processes put in place

towards adopting the NGRBC Principles and Core Elements.

Disclosure
Questions
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Policy and management processes

1. a. Whether your entity's policy/policies cover each
principle and its core elements of the NGRBCs.
(Yes/No)

*See the list of policies below which incorporates theprinciples

b. Has the policy been approved by the
Board? (Yes/No)
c. Web Link of the Policies, if available
2. Whether the entity has translated the policy into
procedures. (Yes / No)

3. Do the enlisted policies extend to your value chain
partners? (Yes/No)

4. Name of the national and international
codes/certifications/labels/ standards (e.g. Forest
Stewardship Council, Fairtrade, Rainforest
Alliance, Trustee) standards (e.g. SA 8000, OHSAS,
ISO, BIS) adopted by your entity and mapped to
each principle

5. Specificcommitments, goals and targets set by the
entity with defined timelines, ifany.

6. Performance of the entity against the specific
commitments, goals and targets along-with
reasonsin case the same are not met.

Integrated Annual Report
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https://homefirstindia.com/investor-relations/

Yes. HomeFirst has translated the policy into
procedures across the activities undertaken
by the company.

Yes. The Company expects its stakeholders to
adhere to the same in all their dealings.

Not Applicable

Company is evaluating to start financing of
green home financing and make it a
meaningful part of overall portfolio.
HomeFirst has partnered with IFC to take the
Green Home initiative to the next level. We
are trying to build a portfolio of green
buildings in the affordable, self-build
segment. IFC has extended a line of credit to
HomeFirst worth ¥ 280 Crs to be utilized
towards AFH retail buyers and developing the
green portfolio.

Also, we continue to build on the identified 12
focus areas in our ESG framework as
mentioned below.

Operational Eco - Efficiency

Climate Resilience

Employee Training & Development
Employment & Labor Practices

Data Protection and Privacy

Health & Safety

Customer Satisfaction

Community Relations

. Corporate Governance

10. Risk Management

11. Code of Conduct & Business Ethics

12. Sustainable Finance

OLONoOUAWN =

Progressonthefocusareas

e Digitally agreements signing (46% of total
in FY23)

e E-Stamping(~60% of total in FY23)

e E-NACH mandates (~65%in FY23)
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e We have Equal Opportunity Policy, Parental
Leave Policy and a formal talent pipeline
developmentstrategy.

e During the period FY23, 14,240 manhours
of training vs 5288 in FY22 to employees
through various courses and trainings.

e Onwomen representation, about~24% are
women, with 52% women at head office
and 22% womenin senior management.

e Overall, 90% loans have woman as
borrower. Primary applicantin 16% of AUM
+ atleast 1 woman co-borrower in 74% of
AUM.

e EWS and LIG customers account for more
than 68% of AUM.

e We have prepayment facility provided on
the Customer App to “nudge” customers
towards prudent finance management.

e 93% of active customers are registered on
HomeFirst Customer Portal App. Android
Ratingis 4.2 (12Apr'23).

e Helped 38,521 customers to claim PMAY
subsidy. Received ¥ 966.7 Crs till date as
PMAY subsidy which was credited to
customers account.

e 7 of 8 Directors are non-executive, 4 of 8
Independent Directors and 2 of 8 Woman
Directors.

Governance, leadership and oversight

7. Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highlighting ESG related
challenges, targets and achievements (listed entity has flexibility regarding the placement of this
disclosure) - Refer to Overview by MD & CEO in Sustainability Report Chapter on page no. 35

8. Details of the highest authority responsible for ~ Mr.ManojViswanathan
implementation and oversight of the Business  Managing Director & CEO
Responsibility policy (ies). DIN: 01741612

9. Does the entity have a specified Committee of the  Yes.

Board/ Director responsible for decision making

on sustainability related issues? (Yes / No). If yes,  The Managing Director & CEO and senior

provide details. management of the Company monitor
various aspects of social, environmental,
governance and economic responsibilities of
the Company on a continuous basis. An
execution team headed by MD & CEO is also
overlooking the ESG & sustainability related
aspectsidentified by the company.

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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As on the date of publishing the report, we
have enhanced the scope of CSR Committee
by including ESG related aspects. The
Committee is thereafter renamed as CSR
and ESG Committee which is supervised by
the Board.

The Company's business responsibility
performance is reviewed by the Board of
Directors on an annual basis. Company also
reports ESG related updates regularly in its
quarterly investor presentation which is
againreviewed by the Board of Directors.

10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

Subject for Review

Performance against
above policies and
follow up action

Compliance with
statutory
requirements of
relevance to the
principles,
and, rectification of
any non-compliances

Indicate whether review was
Frequency

(Annually/ Half yearly/ Quarterly/
Any other - please specify)

undertaken by Director /
Committee of the Board/ Any
other Committee
P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P
12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

The Company periodically reviews all policies and necessary changes are made
tothe policies and processes as per the need.

The Companyisin compliance with the regulations to the extent applicable

11. Has the entity carried out independent P P P P P P P P P

Integrated Annual Report

assessment/ evaluation of the working of 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

its policies by an external agency?
(Yes/No). If yes, provide name of the
agency.

Various processes, operations and compliances of the
Company are subjected to review by different agencies
like internal auditor, statutory auditor, regulator, credit
rating agencies as applicable. The policies are reviewed
periodically (atleast annually) and amended as per
need with the approval of the Board.

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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12. Ifanswertoquestion(1)aboveis“No"i.e.notall Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be stated:

Questions 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

The entity does not consider the Principles material to its
business (Yes/No)

The entity is not at a stage where it is in a position to
formulate and implement the policies on specified principles
(Yes/No)

The entity does not have the financial or/human and
technical resources available for the task (Yes/No)

Itis planned to be donein the next financial year (Yes/No)

Any other reason (please specify)

*The policies below cover the above principles and its core elements of NGRBCS:

e  KYCand Anti-Money Laundering Measures Policy

e Credit Policy

e Vigil Mechanism and Whistle blower policy

e Corporate Social responsibility policy

e Policy on Prevention of Sexual harassment in the workplace

e HRPolicy

e  Code of conduct for regulating, monitoring and reporting of trading by insiders
e Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and the Senior Management Personnel
e ESG policy

e Equal Opportunity Policy

e Grievance redressal policy

e Learning Policy

e Health and Safety Policy

e Diversity and Inclusion Policy

e Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy

e Technology Equipment Handling And Disposal Policy

e  Fair advertising policy

e Code of Conduct

e Fair Practice Code

e Fitand Proper Criteria for Directors

e Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information
e Environment Management Policy

e Human Rights Policy

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the Principles and Core
Elements with key processes and decisions. The information sought is categorized as “Essential” and
“Leadership”. While the essential indicators are expected to be disclosed by every entity that is mandated to
file this report, the leadership indicators may be voluntarily disclosed by entities which aspire to progress to a

higher level in their quest to be socially, environmentally and ethically responsible.

PRINCIPLE 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves withintegrity, andina manner that

isEthical, Transparentand Accountable

Essential Indicators

Statutory Reports

1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during the

financial year:

Segment

Board of Directors

Key Management
Personnel

Employees other than
BoD and KMPs

Workers

2. Details of fines / penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement amount paid in
proceedings (by the entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial
institutions, in the financial year, in the following format (Note: the entity shall make disclosures on
the basis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Total number of
training and
awareness
programmes held

2

NA

Topics/Principles
covered under the
training and its
impact

The Board members were
apprised of various develo-
pments on the ESG front
and educated basis topics
such as Green Housing,
GHG emissions, Green
initiatives under-taken
during the year. The ESG-
BRSR training covered the 9
principles as per BRSR.
Further the training also
covered ESG reporting
standards such as GRI,
Integrated Reporting
Framework, UN SDGs as
well as Greenhouse Gases.
Further trainings were
provided on POSH, Cyber-
security, Code of Conduct,
Health & Safety

NA

Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on the entity's website):

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

%age of persons in
respective category
covered by the
awareness
programmes

100%

100%

97%

NA
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Monetary

Name of the

regulatory/ Has an appeal

PN-GR-BC enforcement Amount (in %) Brief of the been preferred?
rinciple agencies/ Case
> (Yes/No)
judicial
institutions
Penalty/Fine
Settlement Nil
Compounding
fee
Non Monetary
Name of the
regulatory/ Has an appeal
NGRBC enforcement . Brief of the been
Principle agencies/ Amount (in3) Case preferred?
judicial (Yes/No)
institutions
Imprisonment Nl
Punishment !
3.

Of the instance disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases
where monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed.

Name of the regulatory/ enforcement

Case Details agencies/ judicial institutions

NA NA
4. Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if
available, provide a web-link to the policy.
- The company has Anti-Bribery and Anti-corruption policy. The policy is applicable to all directors,
officers, employees (whether permanent, fixed-term or temporary), agents, representatives and
other associated persons of the Company in order to promote strong and transparent operational
system to ensure utmost accountability in all affairs of the Company. Further, we have Anti-bribery
rules in the Employee Code of Conduct and all the employees are required to undergo a training for
code of conduct while getting inducted.
Link: https://homefirstindia.com/files/Anti-Bribery%20and%20Anti-Corruption%20Policy.pdf
5. Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any
law enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/corruption.
FY 2023 FY 2022
Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
Directors
KMPs Nil Nil
Employees
Workers
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6.

Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

FY 2023 FY 2022
Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
Number Remarks Number Remarks

Number of

complaints
received in
relation to issues
of Conflict of
Interest of the
Directors

Number of
complaints
received in
relation to issues
of Conflict of
Interest of the
KMPs

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil Nil Nil

. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines / penalties / action

taken by regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption and
conflicts of interest.
- NotApplicable

Leadership Indicators

. Awareness programmes conducted for value chain partners on any of the Principles during the

Financial year: None

% age of value chain partners

Total number of awareness  Topics / principles covered covered (by value of business

programmes held under the training done with such partners) under
the awareness programmes

. Does the entity have processes in place to avoid/ manage conflict of interests involving members of

the Board? (Yes/No) Provide details of the entity have in place to avoid/manage conflicts of interests

involving members of the Board.

- Yes. The company has a Policy with respect to dealing with related parties and the same is disclosed
in the Annual report. Further the Policy is hosted on the website of the company. Further, none of
the Nominee directors/ Interested directors participate in the discussion involving transaction with
related party nor vote on the resolution.
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PRINCIPLE 2: Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to improve
the environmental and social- impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments
made by the entity, respectively.

Details of
Current Financial Year Previous Financial improvements in
X in Crs) Year (T in Crs) environmental and
social impacts
R&D - -
Capex 0.35 0.17

Technology and

Software Fees 14.30 10.00

We are atechnologically driven affordable housing finance company. Our processes are largely digital. The
expenses incurred on technology and software licenses, helps us create a system which is equipped to
process a loan with quick turnaround time. We believe these expenses are an investment to stay relevant,
competitive and efficient in today's digital world. The technology expenses help us to improve customer
experiences, manage, and analyze large amounts of data.

2. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No) If yes, what
percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

- NotApplicable

3.  Describethe processesin place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at

the end of life, for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste (c) Hazardous waste and (d) other
waste.
- Since the company is in the business of providing housing finance. Hence, unlike manufacturing
companies, the scope is limited for using inputs which are made of recycled material. In the previous
fiscal year, the Company had adopted and an e-waste policy in the previous fiscal and had signed an
agreementwith a certified e-waste handler for disposal of e-waste.

4.  Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity's activities (Yes / No). If
yes, whether the waste collection planis in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan
submitted to Pollution Control Boards? If not, provide steps taken to address the same.

- Notapplicable

Leadership Indicators

1. Has the entity conducted Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) for any of its products (for
manufacturing industry) or for its services (for service industry)? If yes, provide details in the following

format?
Boundary for Whether Result
which the Life conducted esu’ts ted
Name of % of total Cycle by .comm.unc:ca ec
NIC Code Product/ Turnover Perspective independent lanulNlc It;mam
Service contributed Assessment external ( espro(\)l)i deyeS,
was agency .
conducted (Yes/No) the web-link.
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64910 Housing 100% FY 2022- 23 No The entire life cycle
Finance assessment of
Activities company's
business

operations is
presented in the
Public Offer
Document of the
company.
Web-link RHP
https://www.sebi.g
ov.in/filings/public-
issues/jan-
2021/home-first-
finance-company-
india-
limited_48802.html

Credit Approval and Disbursement

We have set up arobust creditapproval process comprising the following stages:

Initial Screening and Pre-Sanction Check

Customer leads are logged into our system which are pursued and reviewed completely by our in-house team
of well-educated and trained relationship managers. Each lead is checked against KYC, credit bureau and other
third-party databases to establish customer credentials. We have an efficient paperless process to onboard
and verify customers as well as determine their eligibility. Our relationship managers conduct workplace and
residence verifications and submit the loan application on the central platform - this is then cross-checked by
our underwriting and operations team for a number of factors including completeness of application form,
KYC, eligibility, fraud check, credit bureau, income assessment, loan-to-value, value of collateral, bank
statements, debt burden and third party databases forincome and asset ownership.

Customer Credit Underwriting

We have a centralized underwriting process, assisted by a data-science backed customer-scoring model to
evaluate a customer's ability to repay the loan and maintain consistency in underwriting procedures across
branches and regions. Further, our integrated customer relationship management and loan management
system allows our underwriters to conduct the credit appraisal process in a quick and efficient manner. We
have also integrated our systems with third-party databases to obtain additional customer data points. This
helps us gather data to assess credit worthiness of the customers and conduct a fraud check in case of any
discrepancies.

Property Underwriting and Disbursement Process

Atthetime of sanctioning the loan, we assess the value of the collateral. Our teams initiate a legal and technical
assessment through third party vendors to verify the authenticity of the legal documents, the title to the
property and its market value. We have set up a legal and technical portal to simplify the process of evaluation
ofthe property. Our proprietary machine learning backed property price predictor coupled with geo-tagging of
properties further assists in reducing our turnaround times for approving loans and improving accuracy in
determiningloan to value ratio.

Loan Collection and Monitoring
We have set up a robust and tiered, collections management system with prescribed collection action at each
stage of severity of default. All our borrowers register for an automated debit facility, which reduces our cash
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module. We employ a structured collection process wherein we remind our customers of their payment
schedules through text messages and automated calls to maintain adequate balance in their account on the
due date. We also use models to predict probability of bounce, which helps us in obtaining early signals of
potential bounce and initiate action such as pre-emptive reminder calls. Our collection process is completely
managed by our branch teams (inhouse) and a significant portion of our employee incentives are dependent
on collections.

We initiate recovery action immediately after the customer defaults in their monthly payment and the severity
of our action increases as the number of days past due increase. At one day past due, our front-end field teams
call customers and initiate visits to understand reasons for default and recovery of the dues. At 30 days past
due, while our employees continue to engage with the customer, we send a default notice or loan recall notice
depending upon the severity of the case. At 60 days past due, we send a pre-SARFAESI notice and our
employees increase the visit frequency and reiterate the repercussions of the loan default to the customer.
Thereafter, at 90 days past due, we seek to resolve cases by initiating legal action through SARFAESI.

2. If there are any significant social or environmental concerns and/or risks arising from production or
disposal of your products / services, as identified in the Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) or
through any other means, briefly describe the same along-with action taken to mitigate the same

Name of the Description of the risk/

Product/Service concern Action Taken

Not Applicable

3.  Percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in production (for
manufacturing industry) or providing services (for service industry).

Indicate input material Recycled or re - used input material to total material
FY 2023 FY 2022
Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year

Not Applicable

4.  Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric tonnes) reused,
recycled, and safely disposed, as per the following format:

FY 2023 FY 2022
Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
Safely Safely
Re-used Recycled Disposed Re-used Recycled Disposed
Plastics
(including
packaging)
E-waste * *
Hazardous
waste

Other waste

* We have disposed of 120 units in F¥23 and 167 units in FY22.
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5. Reclaimed products and their packaging materials (as percentage of products sold) for each product
category

Reclaimed products and their packaging
Indicate product category materials as % of total products sold in
respective category
Not Applicable
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PRINCIPLE 3: Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees,
including those in their value chains

Essential Indicators

1. a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:

Total Number

Category
(A)

Male 752
Female 241
Total 993
Male NA
Female NA
Total NA

(B)

752
241
993

NA
NA
NA

% of employees covered by

Health Accident Maternity
Insurance Insurance Benefits

% Number % Number %

(B/A) (C) (C/A) (D) (D/A)

Permanent Workers

100 752 100 NA NA
100 241 100 241 100
100 993 100 241 100

Other than Permanent Workers
NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA  NA NA NA

b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:

Category Total

(A)
Male NA
Female NA
Total NA
Male NA
Female NA
Total NA

Integrated Annual Report

% of Workers covered by

Health Accident Maternity
Insurance Insurance Benefits
Number % Number % Number %

(B)

NA
NA
NA

NA

NA
NA

(B/A) (C) (c/A) (D) (D/A)

Permanent Workers

NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA

Other than Permanent Workers
NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

Paternity
Benefits

Number

(E)

752
NA
752

NA
NA
NA

%
(E/A)

100
NA
100

NA
NA
NA

Paternity
Benefits

Number

(E)

NA
NA
NA

NA

NA
NA

%

(E/A)

NA
NA
NA

NA

NA
NA

Day Care
Facilities

Number
(F)

NA
NA
NA

NA
NA
NA

%
(F/A)

NA
NA
NA

NA
NA
NA

Day Care
Facilities

Number

(F)

NA
NA
NA

NA

NA
NA

%

(F/A)

NA
NA
NA

NA

NA
NA
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2. Details of retirement benefits, for Current Financial Year and Previous Financial Year.

FY 2023

Current Financial Year

FY 2022

Previous Financial Year

No. of No. of gre‘gucted No. ‘I’f \Il\lvg'rl:rs Degucted
. workers . employees an
Benefits employees covered deposited covered as covered deposited
covered as with asa .
as a % of a % of with the
a % of total the % of .
total . total I authority
employees workers authority I tota (Y/N/N.A)
(Y/N/N.A) E€MPIOY€es  yorkers A
PF 993 100 Y 851 100 Y
Gratuity As per Gratuity Act, it is paid post 5 years of service with the company.
ESI NA NA NA NA NA NA
Others -
please
specify

The option to invest in NPS was introduced in the previous financial year and received a great response in
the current financial year with 14 employees availing of the same (compared to 8 employees in the previous

fiscal).

3.  Accessibility of workplaces

Are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per
the requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If not, whether any steps are
being taken by the entity in this regard.

- Homefirstdid not have any disabled employees onits roll as at the end of last fiscal year. Currently
all the offices of the company are either leased or under leave and license agreement. The
Company does not have any owned premises and there is a common entrance for the building.
Company follows the access provided by the complex where the offices are leased for all its
employeesincluding differently abled employees.

4.  Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities

Act, 20167 If so, provide aweb-link to the policy.

- Yes. The company has equal opportunity policy. We are committed to a policy of treating all its
employees and job applicants equally. Our Equal Opportunity Employer Policy expresses the
company's commitment to promote equality and conduct its business according to principles of
social justice, respect and freedom of expression.

Link: https://homefirstindia.com/files/Equal%200pportunity%20Policy.pdf
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5. Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental leave

Gender Return to work rate

Male 100%
Female 100%
Total 100%

Retention rate Return to work rate Retention rate

33% NA NA
64% NA NA
59% NA NA

Retention Rate: Out of 3 males who applied for paternity leave in FY22, 1 resigned in FY22 and 1
resigned in FY23 and 1 has resumed work. Out of 14 females who applied for maternity leave in FY22, 2
resignedin FY22, 3resignedin FY23 and rest have resumed work.

6. Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of
employees and worker? Ifyes, give details of the mechanismin brief.

Permanent Workers

Other than Permanent Workers
Permanent Employees

Other than Permanent Employees

Yes/No
(If Yes, then give details of the mechanism
in brief)
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Yes.
Any employee can access the HR team to raise a complaint
and the same is then taken up by the HR team who travel to
the location (in case of conflict) or reach out on phone to
resolve with the complaint/ grievance/issue.

Employees can raise complaint on the LEENA Al portal. The
company follows an open-door policy and is a lean
organization. Employees have access to the management/
business heads/HRto raise their concerns.

In addition, we have a whistle-blower policy which provides a
formal platformto share grievances on various matters.

7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognised by the listed entity:
- The Company does not have any employees/workers associations.

FY 2023 FY 2022
Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
No. of No. of
Total employees / Total employees /
Category employees? workers in % employees workers in %
/workersin  respective (B/A) / workers respective (D/C)
in category, who in category, who
respective are part of respective are part of
category (A)  association(s) category (C)  association(s)
or Union (B) or Union (D)
Total NA
Permanent
Employees
- Male NA
- Female NA
Total NA
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Permanent
Workers

- Male NA

- Female NA

8.

Category Total
(A)

Male 752
Female 241
Total 993
Male NA
Female NA
Total NA

Details of training given to employees and workers:

FY 2023
Current Financial Year
On Health on Skill
and Safety Upgradation
measures
No. % No. %
(B) (B/A) (@) (C/A)
Employees
402 53 339 45
166 69 173 72
567 57 510 51
Workers
NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA

Total
(D)

618
233
851

NA
NA
NA

FY 2022
Previous Financia
On Health
and Safety
measures

No. %
(E) (E/D)

NA
NA
NA

NA
NA
NA

Statutory Reports

| Year

On Skill
Upgradation

No. %
(F) (F/D)
247 40
60 26
307 36
NA NA
NA NA
NA NA

In addition to trainings conducted on health and safety, we undertake steps to create awareness
regarding observing certain rules while on road and while at office. We also conducted fire safety drill to
educate the employees on how to use the fire extinguisher and act during emergency. Further, we also
guide the employees at the time of induction to observe safety at all times. We also have Health and

Safety Policyin place.

9.
FY 2023
Category Current Financial Year
Total (A) No. (B) % (B/A)
Employees
Male 752 752 100
Female 241 241 100
Total 993 993 100
Workers
Male NA NA NA
Female NA NA NA
Total NA NA NA
10. Health and safety management system:

a.

entity? (Yes/ No). Ifyes, the coverage such system?
- The company has Health and Safety Policy which ensures that employees are provided a safe,
hygienicand congenial workplace to all its employees.
- All the employees of the Company are covered under Group Personal Accident Insurance Policy
and Group Health Insurance Policy.
- Thecompanyunderstands theimportance of employee mental health and wellbeing. To promote
employee wellbeing, we provide 1-to-1 counselling to employees.
- Further, during the year, we also conducted financial wellness programs. We have a tie-up with
MyGalfto provide physical wellness sessions to employees.
- Additionally, trainings are conducted to build awareness about occupational health and safety.

Integrated Annual Report

FY 2022

Previous Financia
Total (C) No. (D)
618 618

233 233

851 851

NA NA

NA NA

NA NA
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Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and workers:

| Year
% (D/C)

100
100
100

NA
NA
NA

Whether an occupational health and safety management system has been implemented by the
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What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and assess risks on a routine and
non-routine basis by the entity?

HomeFirst is a housing finance company and hence primarily in the services industry. Hence, the
work-related hazards are relatively lower compared to other industries.

Whether you have processes for workers to report the work-related hazards and to remove
themselves from such risks. (Y/N)

The Company is in the business of providing housing finance loans. Hence, work-related hazards
are not envisaged. Incase of any hazard or emergency incident, the employee can reach out to the
HR team/Business head/Department head and report the incident. Additionally, the employee
may seek assistance for health insurance. To ensure healthy and safe working environment is the
objective of the Health and Safety Policy.

Do the employees/ worker of the entity have access to non-occupational medical and healthcare
services? (Yes/ No)

Yes. All the employees of the Company are covered under Group Personal Accident Insurance
Policy and Group Health Insurance Policy.

11.  Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:

safety FY 2023 FY 2022
. Category Current Financial Previous Financial
Incident/Number
Year Year
Lost Time Injury Employees NIL NIL
Frequency Rate
(LTIFR) (per one
- Workers NA NA
million-person hours
worked)
Total-recordable Employees NIL NIL
work related injuries
Workers NA NA
Employees NIL NIL
No of fatalities
Workers NA NA
High consequence
L Employees NIL NIL
work-related injury or
ill-health (excluding
Workers NA NA

fatalities)

12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place.

HomeFirst is committed to employee safety and wellbeing. During the pandemic, treatment
expenses during home quarantine for employees and their family members was covered by the
company. HomeFirst recognizes the importance of emotional wellbeing. In order to promote the
same, we provide 1-to-1 counselling to employees. Further, during the year, we also conducted
financial wellness programs. We have tie-ups with different vendors to provide physical wellness
sessions to employees. During the year, fire safety and evacuation drill was conducted to educate
the employees on conduct to be observed during such emergency and how to use the fire
extinguisher. Such drills are conducted with an objective to maintain safety standards at
workplace. Homefirst has partnered with healthi to provide annual health check-up program. This
coversservices such as blood tests, general check-up as well as free consultation.
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13. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY 2023 FY 2022
Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
Pending Pendin
. . g
Filed resolution at Filed resolution at
. h .
durlzgrt €  the end of Remarks duringthe the end of Remarks
y year year year
Working NIL NIL - NIL NIL -
Conditions
Health & NIL NIL - NIL NIL -
Safety

14. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by
entity or statutory authorities or third parties)
Health & safety practices NIL
Working Conditions NIL

15.  Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents (if any)
and onsignificant risks/ concerns arising from assessments of health & safety practices and working
conditions.

- Health and safety trainings were conducted during the year to educate the employees about
workplace safety.

Leadership Indicators

1. Does the entity extend any life insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of (A)
Employees (Y/N)(B) Workers (Y/N).

- Yes. The Company has Group Personal Accident Insurance Policy and Group Health Insurance Policy
for the employees. In case of death of an employee who had ESOPs, the unvested ESOPs; immediately
vestwith the nominee of such an employee.

2. Provide the measures undertaken by the entity to ensure that statutory dues have been deducted and
deposited by the value chain partners.

- Value chains comprise of service providers, banks, and developers. We ensure that we receive TDS or
GST certificate or that the TDS / GST that is deposited / credited is duly reflected in 26AS / 2A
respectively.

3. Provide the number of employees / workers having suffered high consequence work- related injury / ll-
health / fatalities (as reported in Q11 of Essential Indicators above), who have been rehabilitated and
placedin suitable employment or whose family members have been placed in suitable employment:
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No. of employees/workers that are

Total no. of affected employees/ rehabilitated and placed in suitable
workers employment or whose family members

have been placed in suitable employment

FY 2023 Current FY 2022 Previous FY 2023 Current FY 2022 Previous

Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year
Employees NIL NIL NIL NIL
Workers NA NA NA NA

4, Does the entity provide transition assistance programs to facilitate continued employability and the
management of career endings resulting from retirement or termination of employment? (Yes/ No)
- Since we have a young and diverse employee base with median age of 26.5 years and we have just 3
employeeswho are aged 50 or more, we currently do not have any such transition assistance programs.

5. Details on assessment of value chain partners:

% of value chain partners (by value of business done with
such partners) that are assessed

Health and safety practices NIL
Working Conditions NIL

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks/concerns arising
from assessments of health and safety practices and working conditions of value chain partners.

- Nocorrective actions were required to be taken to address such concerns.
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PRINCIPLE 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders

Essential Indicators

1.  Describethe processesforidentifying key stakeholder groups of the entity

- Ourcompany hasidentified institutions, individuals or a group of individuals furthering the mission
of the company as key stakeholder groups of the entity. We have identified and included but not
limited to employees, shareholders including prospective investors, customers, channel partners
including connectors, regulators, lenders, research analysts, communities and NGOs, other service
providers amongstothers.

2. Liststakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement with each
stakeholder group.

Stakeholder Group Whether Channels of Frequency of  Purpose and scope
identified as communication engagement  of engagement key
Vulnerable & (Email, SMS, (Annualy/ Half/ topics and
Marginalised Newspaper, Quarterly/ concerns raised

Group Pamphlets, Other- please during such
(Yes/No) Advertisement, specify) engagement
Community
Meetings, Notice
Board, Website,
Other)
Customers Yes, if they *Customer Ongoing Stay in touch
qualify satisfaction with the
based on surveys and customer
specified feedback throughout the
criteria such as life cycle of the
*Interaction at loan and
Branches address any
issues that the
Customer customer may
CarePhone have-to
Number provide quality
customer
*Digital service
Channels -
Customer App,
SMS, WhatsApp,
Social media
platform,
chatbot, Video
Call
*Pamphlets
*House
Visits/Work
Visits
Employees *Email Ongoing *Training and
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communications

*Physical/virtual
meetings
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development
sessions

*Wellness and
counselling
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Shareholders/
Investors

Regulators, lenders
and credit rating
agencies

Research Analysts

Communities & NGOs

Integrated Annual Report

No

No

No

No

*Appraisal
Process

*Online Surveys

*Employee
Engagement
Initiatives

*Quarterly reports,
annual reports and
press releases

*Investor meets and
Annual General
Meetings (AGMs),
including virtual
investor meets and
virtual AGMs in the
era of COVID-19
pandemic

«Email, SMS,
newspaper
advertisement,
notice board,
website, intimation
to stock exchanges,
quarterly financials
and investor
meetings/conferenc
es.

Ongoing

Email, one-on-one
meetings, concalls,
video conference,
mandatory filings
with regulators

Ongoing

Email, one-on-one
meetings, concalls,
video conference

Ongoing

*Project
Assessment
reviews

Ongoing

JJoint
assessment of
projects

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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sessions

*Employee
Welfare
Schemes

*To stay abreast
of
developments
in theCompany

*Compliance

*Economic
performance

*Governance
and Ethical
practices

Discussions
with regard to
various
regulations and
amendments,
inspections,
approvals

Keep abreast of
developments
of the Company

Implementation
of CSR
Initiatives and
status of the
initiatives
undertaken

205



Statutory Reports

Directors' Report

«Community

welfare

programs
Channel partners & No Regular Ongoing Partnership
Key Partner includings meetings/ mails/
vendor partners phone calls

Leadership Indicators

1. Provide the processes for consultation between stakeholders and the Board on economic,
environmental, and social topics or if consultation is delegated, how is feedback from such
consultations provided to the Board.

- During the year, quarterly update on Company's ESG initiatives and action plan and achievements
against the plan proposed was presented to the Board. The feedback of the Board on the initiatives
proposed is shared with the ESG Execution team. After processing the Board's feedback, the Company
presents the status update to its stakeholders in its quarterly results update presentation.
Additionally, during the quarterly Board Meetings, an update on developments on the ESG front is
discussed. The same is presented in the quarterly investor presentation and uploaded on the
Company's website as well as the Stock Exchanges for wider access by various stakeholders.

2. Whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the identification and management of
environmental, and social topics (Yes / No). If so, provide details of instances as to how the inputs
received from stakeholders on these topics were incorporated into policies and activities of the entity.

- The Company engages with various investors/shareholders/rating agencies/customers/vendors to
understand the changing ESG scenario and the expectations from the company and benchmark
Company's achievements with the best practices. The feedback received is then incorporated. During
the year, we were rated by MorningStar Sustainalytics - they provided the company with feedback and
scope forimprovement. Further, we have tied up with IFC for their advisory services on Green Housing.
We also undertook Perception survey to understand the investor sentiments regarding the ESG
initiatives undertaken by the Company. All these steps enable us to get better inputs on managing the
businessinabetter manner.

3. Provide details of instances of engagement with, and actions taken to, address the concerns of
vulnerable/ marginalized stakeholder groups.
- The Company in the business of providing housing loans to customers belonging to economically
weaker sections of the society. Further, the company provides the facility of pre-payment to the
Customers on the Customer App at no extra cost. The Company has also helped 38,521 customers to
claim ¥ 966.7 Crs subsidy through PMAY Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme. Additionally, several CSR
initiatives were undertaken during the year to address concerns of the vulnerable/marginalized
stakeholder group. Further details on Corporate Social Responsibility on page no. 68
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PRINCIPLE 5 : Businesses should respect and promote human rights

Essential Indicators

1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of the

entity, inthe following format:

- No specific trainings have been undertaken on human rights issue/policies in the years FY22 and
FY23. However, the company is in advanced stages to develop a module for training the employees

on humanrightsissues.

FY 2023 Current Financial Year
No.

of employees/

workers
covered (B)

Category Total (A) % (B/A)

Employees

Permanent
Other than
permanent
Total

Employees

Workers

Permanent
Other than
permanent

Total
Workers

FY 2022 Previous Financial Year

No.
of employees/

workers
covered (D)

Total (C) % (D/C)

2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:

FY 2023 Current Financial Year

Equal to More than
Total Minimum Minimum
Category A) Wage Wage
% %
No. (B) (B/A) No.(C) (C/A)
Employees

Permanent 993 - - 993 100

Male 752 - - 752 100

Female 241 - - 241 100

Other than NA NA NA NA NA
Permanent

Male NA NA NA NA NA

Female NA NA NA NA NA

Workers

Permanent NA NA NA NA NA

Male NA NA NA NA NA

Female NA NA NA NA NA

Other than NA NA NA NA NA
Permanent

Integrated Annual Report
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FY 2022 Previous Financial Year

Equal to More than
Total Minimum Minimum
(D) Wage Wage
% %
No. (E) (E/D) No.(F) (F/D)
851 - - 851 100
618 - - 618 100
233 - - 233 100
NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA
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Male NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Female NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

3. Details of remuneration/salary/wages, in the following format:

Male Female
Median remuneration/ Median remuneration/
Number salary/of respective Number salary/of respective
category (%) category (%)

Board of 2 22,60,000 1 28,00,000
Directors (BoD)
Key Managerial 2 1,15,86,480 1 1,67,97,992
Personnel*
Employees 750 5,26,904 240 5,01,088
other than BoD
and KMP
Workers NA NA NA NA

* Manoj Viswanathan (MD & CEO) is categorized as Key Managerial Personnel for the purpose of this table.

4. Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee) responsible for addressing human rights impacts or
issues caused or contributed to by the business? (Yes/No)

- Chief Human Resources Officer overseas the human resource function and is responsible for
addressingthe same.

5. Describetheinternal mechanismsin place to redress grievances related to humanrightsissues.
- The mechanism adopted for raising employee complaints can be used for raising human right
complaints as well. Home First believes that an empowered workforce is the best way to receive
feedback and identify improvement areas. The following grievance mechanism provides all employees,
vendors, suppliers and customers a secure and 24x7 access to raise grievances and to report
confidentially without fear of retaliation:
-Whistleblower Policy
- Policy on Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassmentat Workplace
-Human Resources Team
- Grievances Redressal Policy
Additionally, through media or for a such as emailers, team and individual meetings with business and
HR leaders, we continuously engage with employees to create awareness, understand and address
grievances.

6. Number of complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY 2023 Current Financial Year FY 2022 Previous Financial Year
Filed Pending Filed Pending
durin resolution at duri resolution at
& the end of Remarks uring the end of Remarks
the year the year
year year
Sexual Harassment NIL NIL No 1 NIL There was
complaints one
received complaint
during the raised during
year the year
which is duly
resolved.
Discrimination at NIL NIL No NIL NIL No
Workplace complaints complaints
Child Labour NIL NIL received NIL NIL received
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Forced Labour/ NIL NIL during the NIL NIL during the
Involuntary Labour year year
Wages NIL NIL NIL NIL

Other than human NIL NIL NIL NIL

rights related issues

Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment

- The Company has a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassmentin the Workplace. The enquiry process
ensures that the inquiry will be conducted confidentially. Further, the policy recognizes retribution or
retaliation in the context of reporting acts of sexual harassment as a serious violation. The report and
investigation of allegations of retaliation will follow the procedures set forth in this Policy and will be
treated as an additional complaint and investigated similarly. Any person found to have retaliated
against an individual for reporting harassment, or for participating in an investigation of allegations of
such conduct, may expect the Company toimpose severe disciplinary action.

The Company also has and Equal Opportunity policy. We are committed to a policy of treating all its
employees and job applicants equally and is intolerant towards discrimination and/or harassment
based on gender, race, religion, age. Our Equal Opportunity Employer Policy expresses the company's
commitment to promote equality and conduct its business according to principles of social justice,

The Company also has a Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy. The purpose of the Whistle
Blower policy is to report any unethical practice observed without the risk of victimization,
discrimination or disadvantage. No unfair treatment will be meted out to a Whistle Blower by virtue of
his/her having reported a protected disclosure under this Policy. The Company condemns any kind of
discrimination, harassment victimization or any other unfair employment practice being adopted

7.
cases.
respectand freedom of expression.
againstthe Whistle Blower.

8.

Do humanrights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts? (Yes/No)
- Yes, inbusiness agreements and contracts where relevant.

9. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed
(by entity or statutory authorities or third
parties)

Sexual Harassment
Discrimination at workplace
Child Labour

Forced/ involuntary labour
Wages

Others - please specify

10. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks/ concerns arising

fromthe assessments at Question 9 above.

-Notapplicable

Leadership Indicators

1. Details of a business process being modified / introduced as a result of addressing human rights

grievances/complaints

- There has been no case of human rights grievances and complaints; hence no changes to business

process

2. Details ofthe scope and coverage of any Human rights due-diligence conducted.

- Nospecifichumanrights due diligence is conducted
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3. Isthe premise/office of the entity accessible to differently abled visitors, as per the requirements of the
Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 20167

- Currently all the offices of the company are either leased or under leave and license agreement. The
Company does not have any owned premises and there is a common entrance for the building.
Company follows the access provided by the complex where the offices are leased for all its employees
including differently abled employees.

4. Detailsonassessmentofvalue chain partners

% of your value chain partners (by value of
business done with such partners) that were
assessed (by entity or statutory authorities
or third parties)

Sexual Harassment
Discrimination at workplace

NIL.
Child Labour No specific assessments have been carried out to
Forced/ involuntary labour this effect by the Company.
Wages

Others - please specify

5. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns
arising from the assessments at Question 4 above.

- No corrective actions pertaining to the above question were required by the Company during the
currentyear.
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PRINCIPLE 6: Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment

Essential Indicators

1.

Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the following format:

We have set up systems to understand our GHG Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions. We have tracked our

electricity consumption for the currentfiscal.

Parameter FY 2023 Current Financial Year FY 2022 Previous Financial Year
kWh T) kWh T
Total electricity 618795.76 kWh 2.23 Terajoules Not tracked Not tracked
consumption (A)
Total fuel consumption (B) Not tracked Not tracked Not tracked Not tracked
Energy consumption
through other sources(C)
Total energy 618795.76 kWh  2.23 Terajoules Not tracked Not tracked
consumption (A+B+C)
Energy intensity per rupee 0.003
of turnover (Total energy 782.31 KWh/Z Terajoules/ Not tracked Not tracked
consumption/ turnover in  crores of turnover crores of
rupees) turnover
Energy intensity (optional)
. 623.16kWh/ 0.002
~the relevant metric may employee Tyemployee Not tracked Not tracked

be selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an
externalagency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

Yes. The Company has partnered with a leading environment and research institution, Centre for
Environmental Research & Education (CERE) to help measure and monitor HomeFirst Finance's carbon
footprint. CERE provides technical and domain expertise and assists the Corporation in determining its
carbon emissions pertaining to its own operations. The Company has measured its carbon footprint
across all offices. The carbon footprint is in accordance with the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting
subscript and accounts subscript the following greenhouse gas emissions: carbon dioxide subscript,
methane (CH,), nitrous oxide (N,0) and hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs, HCFCs).

Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the
Performance, Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, disclose
whether targets set under the PAT scheme have been achieved. In case targets have not been achieved,
provide the remedial action taken, ifany.

- Notapplicable

3. Providedetails of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:

Integrated Annual Report

- Notapplicable

FY 2023
(Current Financial Year)
Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)

(i) Surface water

FY 2022
(Previous Financial Year)

Parameter

(ii) Groundwater
(iii) Third party water

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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(iv) Seawater/ desalinated
water

(v) Others

Total volume of water
withdrawal (in kilolitres) (i +
ii+iii+iv+v)

Total volume of water
consumption (in kilolitres)

Water intensity per rupee of
turnover (Water consumedy/turnover)

Water intensity
(optional)-the relevant metric
may be selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an

Statutory Reports

externalagency? (Y/N)Ifyes, name of the external agency

Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its

coverage and implementation.

- Notapplicable

5. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the following format:

- Notapplicable

Parameter Unit

NOx

FY 2023 FY 2022
(Current Financial Year) (Previous Financial Year)

SOx

Particulate matter
(PM)

Persistent organic
pollutants (POP)

Volatile organic
compounds (VOC)

Hazardous air
pollutants (HAP)

Others - please specify

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an

external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

6. Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the

following format:

Integrated Annual Report
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Parameter Unit FY 2023 FY 2022
(Current Financial Year) (Previous Financial Year)

Total Scope 1

emissions (Break-

up of the GHG into Metric tonnes of CO,

O, CH, N,O, equivalent

HFCs, PFCs,

SF,, NF,, if available)

15.02

Total Scope 2

emissions (Break-

up of the GHG into Metric tonnes of CO,
CO,, CH,, N,O, equivalent
HFCs, PFCs,

SF,, NF,, if available)

439.34

Total Scope 1 and

Scope 2 emissions 0.57 Metric tonnes
of CO, equivalent /

er rupee of
P P T crores of turnover

turnover

Total Scope 1 and

Scope 2 emission 0.46 Metric tonnes

intensity (optional) of CO,equivalent /
the relevant metric employee
may be selected by the

entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an
external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

Yes. The Company has partnered with Centre for Environmental Research & Education (CERE), a
leading research institution in the fields of sustainability and climate change, to help measure and
monitor company's carbon footprint.CERE provides technical and domain expertise and assists the
Company in determining its carbon emissions pertaining to its own operations.CERE has brought its
extensive expertise in the technical and domain aspects of GHG Inventorisation to support Company's
efforts to accurately determine the carbon footprint associated with its operations in India. HomeFirst
Finance has successfully assessed its carbon footprint across all its office locations.

7. Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then provide
details.

- HomeFirsthas partnered with IFC to take the Green Home initiative to the nextlevel. We are trying to
build a portfolio of green buildings in the affordable, self-build segment. IFC has extended a line of
credit to HomeFirst worth ¥280 Crs to be utilized towards AFH retail buyers and developing the green
portfolio. In collaboration with the advisory wing of IFC, we are creating a complete green housing
framework for the evaluation and certification process. As a part of the initial steps for the same, IFC
has been instrumental in training our teams. They are helping us conduct green audits across markets
to evaluate and finalize Green Certification parameters. Once the framework is complete, we can drive
further awareness and promotions around Green Housing. A green subsidy of 2.4% on home loan
amounts has also been proposed to nudge customers toward green-certified homes.
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- Wehave also undertaken Green initiatives under CSR. Continuing our contributions towards a green
and cleaner environment, this year HomeFirst provided 40,000+ fruit tree saplings to marginal
farmersto help themin developing an extra source of income. We have also provided 5 solar pumpsin
Palghar District along with drip irrigation facility to provide relief to farmers from the shortage of
water. In order to promote the use of green energy and ensure regular power supply we have also
installed solar panel at Senior Citizens Home.

- Additionally, the Company being a tech-driven affordable housing finance company, has digital
initiatives in place across the business operations. More details available in Intellectual Chapter on
pageno.77

8. Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format:
- Companyisinthe business of providing housing finance and is a service-oriented company.
- Ourfocusonwaste managementis limited in scope and pertains to office related waste.
- Ourprocessesare largely digital and paperless.

- Regarding e-waste, company has an e-waste policy and has signed an agreement with a certified e-
waste handler for disposal of e-waste.

FY 2023 FY 2022
(Current Financial Year) (Previous Financial Year)
Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)

Plastic waste (A)
E-waste (B) * *
Bio-medical waste (C)
Construction and demolition
waste (D)
Battery waste (E)
Radioactive waste (F)
Other Hazardous waste. Please
specify, if any. (G)
Other Non-hazardous waste
generated. Please specify, if any.
(H) (Break-up by composition i.e.
by materials relevant to the
sector)
Total A+B+C+D+E+F+G+
H)
For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or
other recovery operations (in metric tonnes)

Parameter

Category of waste
(i) Recycled
(i) Re-used
(iii) Other recovery operations
Total
For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method (in
metric tonnes)
Category of waste
(i) Incineration

(i) Landfilling
(iii) Other disposal operations
Total

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external
agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency

* We have disposed of 120 units of e-waste in FY23 and 161 units of e-waste in FY22.
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10.

Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe the
strategy adopted by your company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products
and processes and the practices adopted to manage such wastes.

- The Company is inolved in the business of providing housing finance.

- Majority of our processes are digital, paper wastage is minimal.

- Company does not have any usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals.

- The Company has an e- waste policy and signed an agreement with certified e- waste handler
for disposal of e-waste.

If the entity has operations/offices in/around ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks,
wildlife sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation
zones etc.) where environmental approvals / clearances are required, please specify details in the
following format:

-Notapplicable

Whether the conditions of
environmental approval / clearance
are being compiled with? (Y/N)

If no. the reasons thereof and
corrective action taken, if any

Location of Type of

S. No. . . .
operations/offices operations

11. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on

applicable laws, inthe current financial year:
- Notapplicable

. Whether conducted Results
Na?etar;d bfr'Ef EIA by independent communicated in
:rz}esc: Notification No. Date external agency public domain
(Yes / No) (Yes / No)

12. Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines in India; such as

the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act,
Environment protection act and rules thereunder (Y/N). If not, provide details of all such non-
compliances, in the following format:

- Asthe companyisinvolved in the business of providing housing finance, there is no major emission
of water and air pollution. As such, the company is not directly covered under the purview of the
above-mentioned Acts.

Specify the law/ Any fines / penalties /

. Provide action taken by
regulation/ . 4 . .
S. No. AU details of regulatory agencies Corrective action
guidelines . .
. the non- such as pollution taken, if any
which was not .
. . compliance control boards or by

complied with Courts
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Leadership Indicators

1. Provide break-up of the total energy consumed (in Joules or multiples) from renewable and non-

renewable sources, in the following format:
- Notapplicable

FY 2023

Parameter . .
(Current Financial Year)

From renewable sources

Total electricity consumption
(A)

Total fuel consumption (B)
Energy consumption through
other sources (C)

Total energy consumed from
renewable sources (A+B+C)
From non-renewable sources

Total electricity consumption
(D)

Total fuel consumption (E)
Energy consumption through
other sources (F)

Total energy consumed from
non-renewable sources
(D+E+F)

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an

external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.
2. Providethe following details related to water discharged:
- Notapplicable

FY 2023

Parameter . .
(Current Financial Year)

Statutory Reports

FY 2022
(Previous Financial Year)

FY 2022
(Previous Financial Year)

Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in kilolitres)

(i) To Surface water
-No treatment

-With treatment- please specify

level oftreatment
(ii) To Groundwater
-No treatment

-With treatment- please specify
level oftreatment

(iii) To Seawater

-No treatment

-With treatment- please specify
level oftreatment

(iv) Sent tothird-parties

-No treatment

-With treatment- please specify
level oftreatment

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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(v) Others
-No treatment
-With treatment- please specify
level of treatment
Total water discharged (in
kilolitres)
Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an
externalagency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.
3. Waterwithdrawal, consumption and discharge in areas of water stress (in kilolitres):
-Notapplicable
Foreachfacility/ plantlocated in areas of water stress, provide the following information:
(i) Nameofthearea:Notapplicable
(i) Nature of operations: Notapplicable
(iii) Waterwithdrawal, consumption and discharge in the following format: Not applicable

FY 2023 FY 2022

(Current Financial Year) (Previous Financial Year)
Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)

(i) Surface water

Parameter

(ii) Groundwater

(iii) Third party water

(iv) Seawater/ desalinated water

(v) Others

Total volume of water withdrawal
(in kilolitres) (i + ii + iii + iv + v)
Total volume of water
consumption (in kilolitres)

Water intensity per rupee of
turnover (Water consumed / turnover)

Water intensity
(optional)-the relevant metric
may be selected by the entity

Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in kilolitres)

(i) To Surface water
-No treatment

-With treatment - please
specify level of treatment

(ii) To Groundwater
-No treatment

-With treatment - please

specify level of treatment
(iii) To Seawater
-No treatment
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-With treatment - please
specify level of treatment

(iv) Sent to third-parties

-No treatment

-With treatment - please
specify level of treatment

(v) Others
-No treatment

-With treatment - please

specify level of treatment

Total water discharged (in

kilolitres)

Statutory Reports

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an
external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

4. Please provide details of total Scope 3 emissions &its intensity, in the following format:

- Given that the company is in the business of providing housing finance and is a service-oriented
company, our focus on environmental indicators is passive and we have not tracked Scope 3
emissions. However, during the current financial year, we have started tracking our Scope 1 and Scope

2 emissions.

Parameter

Total Scope 3
emissions (Break-up
of the GHGinto CO,,
CH,, N,O, HFCs, PFCs,
SF,, NF,, if available)
Total Scope 3

emissions per rupee
of turnover

Total Scope 3
emission intensity
(optional) - the
relevant metric may

FY 2023
(Current Financial Year)

Unit

Metric tonnes of CO,
equivalent

be selected by the entity

FY 2022
(Previous Financial Year)

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an
external agency? (Y/N) Ifyes, name of the external agency

With respect to the ecologically sensitive areas reported at Question 10 of Essential Indicators above,
provide details of significant direct & indirect impact of the entity on biodiversity in such areas along-
with prevention and remediation activities.

- Notapplicable

If the entity has undertaken any specific initiatives or used innovative technology or solutions to
improve resource efficiency, or reduce impact due to emissions / effluent discharge / waste
generated, please provide details of the same as well as outcome of such initiatives, as per the
following format

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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S. No

Integrated Annual Report

Initiative
undertaken

Capturing of
primary data in
softcopy and
paperless
onboarding of
customer

Remote payment
link is sent to
customers to make
payment - thus the
effort to collect cash
payments is
reduced

Digital loan
agreements

Customer App

Details of the initiative (Web-link, if
any, may be provided along - with

summary)

We have an efficient paperless
process to onboard and verify
customers as well as
determine their eligibility. Our
relationship managers

conduct workplace and residence

verifications and

submit the loan application on the

central platform -

this is then cross-checked by
our underwriting. No KYC
document hardcopies are
collected by the RM. The KYCs
are digitally captured and
stored on the cloud.

The Relationship Manager can
collect payments from
customers remotely from
anywhere using RM Pro App.
The RM has to send the
payment link using the app to
the customer. The payment
can be tracked on the App.

Our customers can E-sign the
loan agreements and do not
have to come to the branch
office physically to sign the
document.

Customer App is a feature rich
app that can be used for
raising queries, downloading
statement of account, making
part payments, refer a
prospective customer, locate
the nearest branch, etc.

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

Statutory Reports

Outcome of the
initiative

Paperless process

- saving paper

and thereby more
eco-friendly.Plus

since the data is
stored on the

cloud and can be
accessed real-time

by central office -

the “paper files”

are not required

to be circulated.

Again saving time

and energy of all
involved.

Reduced number of
cash collections - saving
time and efforts of the
relationship manager
and providing
convenience to the
customer as well. This
also reduces fuel
consumption and
prevents health impact
on our employees.

This feature provides
convenience to the
customer to execute
the agreement at
his/her home. Further,
E-signing saves paper
and storage space. This
also reduces fuel
consumption and
prevents health impact
on our employees.

Customers don't
have to visit the
branch to avail
these services
saving time, fuel
and effort.
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5 Green Homes We are trying to build a The homes can be
Initiatives tie-up portfolio of green buildings in green-certified. This
with IFC the affordable, self-build measure will in
segment. In collaboration with turn help reduce
the advisory wing of IFC, we green-house gas
are creating a complete green emissions.

housing framework for the
evaluation and certification

process.
6 Green CSR - Solar We have also provided 5 solar Using renewable source
Pumps and Solar pumps in Palghar District along with ~ of energy will help in
Panels installed drip irrigation facility to provide reducing emissions in
relief to farmers from the shortage the long run.

of water. In order to promote the
use of green energy and ensure
regular power supply we have also
installed solar panel at Shree
Manav Sewa Sangh Senior Citizens
Home.

7. Does the entity have a business continuity and disaster management plan? Give details in 100 words/
web link.

- Yes.

HomeFirst has Board approved policies on Business Continuity Plan and Disaster Recovery Plan. The
policy document provides guidance for ensuring business continuity about people, process and
technology.

Policy covers measures like business impact analysis, recovery strategies, business continuity /
disaster recovery plans, governance program covering a testing plan, training and awareness
program, communication and crisis management programme. These measures propagate effective
business continuity management.

8. Disclose any significant adverse impact to the environment, arising from the value chain of the entity.
What mitigation or adaptation measures have been taken by the entity in this regard.

- Given that the company is in the business of providing housing finance, there has been no adverse
impactto the environment.

9. Percentage of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed
for environmental impacts.

- None
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PRINCIPLE 7: Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in
a manner that is responsible and transparent

Essential Indicators

1. a.Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations.
-We have membership with 1 trade and industry chamber/association

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the total members
of such body) the entity isa member of/ affiliated to

S. No Name of the trade and industry Reach of trade and industry
chambers/ associations chambers/ associations
(State/National)
1 ASSOCHAM (The Associated Chambers of National
Commerce and Industry of India)

2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti- competitive
conduct by the entity, based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities

- Notapplicable

Name of Authority Brief of the case Corrective action taken

Leadership Indicators

1. Details of public policy positions advocated by the entity:
- Thecompany does nottake partinlobbying and hasn't propagated any public policy positions.

Frequency of

Whether Review by
Method information Board
S. No. P:dbl'c Pc:lu;y resorted for available in (Anm;:lrllyllHalf Web !-Imbkll if
vocate such advocacy public domain? yearly avatiable
(Yes/No) Quarterly/
Others~
please specify)

Integrated Annual Report | Home First Finance Company India Ltd. 221



Statutory Reports

Directors' Report

PRINCIPLE 8: Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development

Essential Indicators

1. Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable
laws, inthe current financial year.

- Notapplicable.

Name Whether Resul
and SIA conducted esults
brief b Date of . communicated Relevant
detai Notification o by independent ) . ‘
etails N notification in public domain Web link
of o. external agency (Yes/No)
project (Yes/No)

2. Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) is being
undertaken by your entity, in the following format:

- Notapplicable

No. of Amounts
pl:ljj?cet ?cf,r Project % of PAFs paid to
S. No. which R&R State District  Affected covered PAFsin
is ongoing Families by R&R  theFY
(PAFs) (in INR)

3. Describethe mechanismstoreceive and redress grievances of the community.

- The company has mechanisms in place to receive and redress grievances of the community. As a
service organization, customer service and customer satisfaction are of prime concern to Home First.
We have a Customer Grievance Redressal policy. The objective of the policy is to have a clearly defined
and easily accessible mechanism for dealing with and settlement of customer complaints and
grievances through proper service delivery and review mechanism and to ensure prompt redressal
and review of customer grievances.

- Theinvestors/shareholders can mail to following address or alternatively call on the given landline
number:

Home First Finance Company India Limited
Mr. Shreyans Bachhawat,

Company Secretary
511, Acme Plaza, Andheri Kurla Road,

Andheri East, Mumbai 400 059
Email: corporate@homefirstindia.com

Tel No: 022 6694 0386

- Anyemployee can access the HR team to raise a complaint and the same is then taken up by the HR
teamwho travel to the location (in case of conflict) or reach out on phone to resolve with the complaint
/ grievance/issue.

- Alternatively, the employees can raise complaint on the LEENA Al portal. The company follows an
open-door policy and is a lean organization. Employees have access to the management/ business
heads/HRto raise their concerns.
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- Forany complaint or grievance, you can contact as per the stages below
a.lLevel-1

You can contact the nearest physical branch OR alternatively can call at 180030008425 OR write to us
at loanfirst@homefirstindia.com for any queries/complaints. Our Branch Manager or Customer
Service Team would resolve it within 7 working days from the date of receipt of the complaint.

b. Level-2

In case we have not met your expectations at Level 1, you can escalate it to the Central Customer
Service Team at the following email Id and we would ensure your issue/concern is resolved within 15
working days from the date of escalation or your issue.

Emailid - query@homefirstindia.com.

c.Level-3
In unlikely scenario where you are not satisfied with resolution provided to you at Level-2, you can
escalate the complaint to our Grievance Redressal Officer who would ensure that your issue is

resolved to your satisfaction within 30 working days of receipt of the complaint in the Corporate
Office. You can connect us atthe below mentioned address and email id,:

Mr. Gaurav Mohta (Grievance Redressal Officer)
Home First Finance Company India Limited

511, Acme Plaza, AndheriKurla Road, Andheri (East)
Mumbai-400 059

Phone: 8880549911

Email: complaints@homefirstindia.com
Alternative Remedy

In case you are still unsatisfied with the resolution provided at Level-3 by our Grievance Redressal
Team, pls feel free to approach the National Housing Bank (NHB) via the following modes:

Online mode: https://grids.nhbonline.org.in

Offline mode: Alternatively write to the National Housing Bank in a prescribed format available at
https://nhb.org.in/en/complaint-cell-against-hfcs and post the same to:

Complaint Redressal Cell

National Housing Bank

Department of Regulation and Supervision

4th Floor, Core 5A, India Habitat Centre, Lodhi Road

New Delhi- 110003

The complaints can also be mailed at crcell@nhb.org.in

- CSRGRIEVANCES: The Company ensures full transparency in its CSR activities and ethical standards
for CSR activities are followed. However, in case any stakeholder has any input, queries, grievance or
complaint against any CSR Initiative or any implementing agency they can write to the Company at
csr@homefirstindia.com or contactus at+918880549911.
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4. Percentage ofinput material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:
- Notapplicable
FY 2023 FY 2022
Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
Directly sourced from MSMEs/
small producers
Sourced directly from within the
distric¢ and neighbouring
districts

Leadership Indicators
1. Provide details of actions taken to mitigate any negative social impacts identified in the Social Impact
Assessments (Reference: Question 1 of Essential Indicators above):
- Notapplicable

Details of negative social impact identified Corrective action taken

2. Provide the following information on CSR projects undertaken by your entity in designated
aspirational districts as identified by government bodies: NIL

S. No. State Aspirational District Amount Spent (in )

3. (a) Do you have a preferential procurement policy where you give preference to purchase from
suppliers comprising marginalized /vulnerable groups? (Yes/No)

(b) Fromwhich marginalized /vulnerable groups do you procure?
(c) What percentage of total procurement (by value) does it constitute?

- Although the Company does not have a specific procurement policy, all of our branches are
encouraged to procure locally their stationary, supplies and housekeeping requirements. Each of the
branches are given an expense card to ensure they pay electronically and support the local
community with quick payouts. Further, through our connector channel, the company has tie-ups
with small, local playersin the construction eco-system for generating leads.

4. Details of the benefits derived and shared from the intellectual properties owned or acquired by your
entity (inthe currentfinancial year), based on traditional knowledge:

- Notavailable
Intellectual
Property based Owned/ Acquired Benefit shared Basis °.f
S. No. on traditional (Yes/No) (Yes/No) calculating
knowledge benefit share

5. Details of corrective actions taken or underway, based on any adverse order in intellectual property
related disputes wherein usage of traditional knowledge is involved.

- Notapplicable
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Name of authority

Brief of the Case

6. Details of beneficiaries of CSR Projects:

S. No.

10

1"
12

Integrated Annual Report

CSR Project

Project Sashakt- Catering to 1500+ families of
migrant factory workers at Narol, Ahmedabad
Sashakt Skilling Centre

School Development Projects:

Establishing Sashakt Science Labs across 6 schools
Preventive Health care- Organize healthcheck up
camps and construction of Toilets across 4 schools
Sustainability- Installation of Solar Panels and
installation of LED lights across 3 schools

Mahila Shram Shakti Kendra

Social Security

Health and Nutrition

Legal Aid and Education

Skill Training

Gender Sensitization

Sponsor treatment of 50 children towards
elimination of clubfoot disability

Sponsor treatment of 60 children towards
elimination of Cleft lip

Workplace Safety

Simply Social- Employee Driven CSR

Capacity Building at Hospital managed by manav
Seva Kalyan Trust

Distribution of 40000 fruits trees tomarginal
farmers

Installation of Solar Pumps for marginal farmers

Installation of Solar Panel at Jeevandhara
Vrushashram, managed by Manav Seva Kalyan
Trust

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.

Corrective action taken

No. of persons
benefitted from
CSR Projects

7416

654
5400

15151
1834
10886
1278
632
521
50

60
645
139

NA

NA

NA

beneficiaries
from vulnerable

marginalized
groups

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

NA

100%

100%
NA
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PRINCIPLE 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in responsible
manner

Essential Indicators

1. Describethe mechanismsin placetoreceive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback.

- Asaservice organization, customer service and customer satisfaction are of prime concernto Home
First. We have a Customer Grievance Redressal policy. The objective of the policy is to have a clearly
defined and easily accessible mechanism for dealing with and settlement of customer complaints and
grievances through proper service delivery and review mechanism and to ensure prompt redressal
and review of customer grievances.

All queries and complaints received at branches and through other communication channels are
recorded in our CRM and the details of redressal of the same including turnaround times are placed
before the Audit Committee every quarter forits review

Escalation matrix:

The company has a three-level escalation matrix for handling customer grievances:
a. Level-1

You can contact the nearest physical branch OR alternatively can call at 180030008425 OR write to us
at loanfirst@homefirstindia.com for any queries/complaints. Our Branch Manager or Customer
Service Team would resolve itwithin 7 working days from the date of receipt of the complaint.

b.Level-2

In case we have not met your expectations at Level 1, you can escalate it to the Central Customer
Service Team at the following email Id and we would ensure your issue/concern is resolved within 15
working days from the date of escalation or your issue.

Emailid - query@homefirstindia.com.

c.Level-3

In unlikely scenario where you are not satisfied with resolution provided to you at Level-2, you can
escalate the complaint to our Grievance Redressal Officer who would ensure that your issue is
resolved to your satisfaction within 30 working days of receipt of the complaint in the Corporate
Office. You can connectus atthe below mentioned address and emailid,:

Mr. Gaurav Mohta (Grievance Redressal Officer)

Home First Finance Company India Limited

511, Acme Plaza, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East)

Mumbai-400059

Phone: 8880549911

Email: complaints@homefirstindia.com

Alternative Remedy:

In case you are still unsatisfied with the resolution provided at Level-3 by our Grievance Redressal
Team, pls feel free to approach the National Housing Bank (NHB) via the following modes:

Online mode: https://grids.nhbonline.org.in

Offline mode: Alternatively write to the National Housing Bank in a prescribed format available at
https://nhb.org.in/en/complaint-cell-against-hfcs and post the same to:

Complaint Redressal Cell

National Housing Bank

Department of Regulation and Supervision

4th Floor, Core 5A, India Habitat Centre, Lodhi Road

New Delhi-110003

The complaints can also be mailed at crcell@nhb.org.in
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information about:

Environmental and social parameters relevant to the product

Safe and responsible usage
Recycling and/or safe disposal

FY 2023
(Current Financial Year)

Pending
resolution
at the end

of year

Received
during the
year

Data Privacy
Advertising
Cyber-
security
Delivery of
essential
services Nil
Restrictive
trade
practices
Unfair
Trade
Practices
Other

Nil

Directors' Report

Remarks

Statutory Reports

2. Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry

As a percentage to total
turnover
- All our loan products
and Most Important
Terms and Conditions
(MITCs) are completely
transparent and
disclose all product
related details.

3. Numberof consumer complaintsin respect of the following:

FY 2022
(Previous Financial
Year)
Pending Remarks
resolution
at the end

of year

Received
during the
year

Nil Nil

Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:

- Notapplicable

Voluntary recalls
Forced recalls

5. Doesthe entity have a framework/ policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? (Yes/No) If

available, provide a web-link of the policy.

Number

Reasons for recall

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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- Yes. The company has board approved Information Technology Policy, Information Security Policy,
Cyber Security Policy- these are available to internal stakeholders. These policy covers cyber security
and risks related to data privacy. The Company also has Privacy Policy hosted on the website. Link :
https://homefirstindia.com/privacy/

The Company also has an IT Strategy Committee headed by an Independent Director and coordinated
by a senior officer for reviewing and management of the IT Strategic plans, Role Management of IT
Team, Monitoring of Value delivery of IT resources, Project management of various ongoing projects,
overall performance management of applications and utilization of IT Assets, IT Risk management on
anongoing basis. Aformal review of IT Strategy Committee takes place atleast once in six months.

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to advertising, and
delivery of essential services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of instances
of productrecalls; penalty/ action taken by regulatory authorities on safety of products / services.

- Nopenalties have been levied nor any regulatory actions have been taken for above related matter.

Leadership Indicators
1. Channels / platforms where information on products and services of the entity can be accessed
(provide web link, if available).

- We have all product details on our website as well as on our Customer Portal App. Website link:
https://homefirstindia.com/

Further, we have marketing collaterals for communication, social media handles. We also had come
up with Homefirst gyaan series for product knowledge.

2. Steps taken to inform and educate consumers about safe and responsible usage of products and/or
services.

- We maintain high levels of transparency in our interactions with customers and this has helped us
increase customer satisfaction and loyalty as reflected in our net promoter scores. We conduct
mandatory counselling sessions at our branches to educate customers on the key terms of their loan
agreements and to familiarize them with the entire loan disbursement and repayment process. The
counselling happens during allinteractions with customers.

Considering the kind of customers we have; we prefer educating them during telephonic/in-person
interaction in their preferred language and we reiterate the same using push notifications / SMS's etc.
The Most Important Terms and Conditions (MITCs) form part of the loan agreement and it provides
extensive information to the customers about our products.

We have created video tutorials in regional languages to help customers use online payment
methods. Following links can be referred.

English: https://bit.ly/3qrTSD3

Tamil: https://youtu.be/tYgKulTyr3s
Telugu: https://youtu.be/kWiG16ZAjfw
Kannada: https://youtu.be/dm3Et25RYCU
Marathi: https://youtu.be/zNSnOGEcFyY
Guijarati: https://youtu.be/lokY2eAGPnI

3. Mechanisms in place to inform consumers of any risk of disruption/discontinuation of essential
services.

- SMS Intimation is sent to the customers to inform them about any disruption/discontinuation of
essential services. Our Customer App and Website also ensured that the customer service continues
withoutany hiccup.
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4. Does the entity display product information on the product over and above what is mandated as per
local laws? (Yes/No/Not Applicable) If yes, provide details in brief. Did your entity carry out any survey
with regard to consumer satisfaction relating to the major products / services of the entity, significant
locations of operation of the entity or the entity as a whole? (Yes/No)

- Yes.HomekFirstis customer focused and believesin being transparentin all our transactions.

Our loan agreement has Most Important Terms and Conditions (MITC), they are also displayed in
branches as well as hosted on our website. All customers have to read and sign the loan agreement at
the time of loan sanction. We also display the processing fees and other charges in our branches as
well as on our website. Further, we provide the easy pre-payment facilities for our customers through
their mobile app.

We are a customer centric organization and believe in taking customer feedback for continuous
improvement in our services. We also disclose the net promoter scores in our quarterly investor
presentation.

5. Providethefollowinginformation relating to data breaches:
a. Number ofinstances of data breaches along-with impact
b. Percentage of data breachesinvolving personally identifiable information of customers

- Therewerenoinstances of databreach duringtheyear.
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Auditors' Report

Auditors’ Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF HOME FIRST FINANCE
COMPANY INDIALIMITED

Reporton the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of Home First Finance Company India
Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheetas at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit, total
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans

Management estimates impairment provision
using Expected Credit loss model for the loan
exposure as per the Board approved policy which is
in line with Ind AS and the Regulations.
Measurement of loan impairment involves
application of significant judgement by the
management. The most significant judgements
are:

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
auditopinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgment, was of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. The matter
was addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on the matter. We have determined the matter
described below to be the key audit matter to be
communicatedinour report.

Auditor's Response

Our audit approach included testing the design, operating
effectiveness of internal controls and substantive audit
procedures in respect of impairment of loans. In particular,
our proceduresinclude:
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Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans
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Timely identification and classification of the
impaired loans, including classification of assets to
stage 1,2, or 3using criteria in accordance with Ind AS
109 which alsoinclude considering the impact of RBI's
regulatory circulars,

The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is
assessed on a collective basis,

Determination of probability of defaults (PD) and loss
given defaults (LGD) based on the default history of
loans, subsequent recoveries made and other
relevantfactorsand

Assessment of qualitative factors having an impact on
the creditrisk.

These are disclosures made in financial statements for
ECL especially in relation to judgements and estimates by
the Management in determination of the ECL. Refer note
1.3and note 4.1 to the financial statements.

Auditors’ Report

Auditor's Response

We examined Board Policy approving
methodologies for computation of ECL that
address policies, procedures and controls for
assessing and measuring credit risk on all lending
exposures, commensurate with the size,
complexity and risk profile specific to the
borrowers.

We evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of controls across the processes
relevant to ECL, including the judgements and
estimates.

We tested the completeness of loans and advances
included in the Expected Credit Loss calculations as
of March 31, 2023 by reconciling it with the
balances as per loan balance register and loan
commitmentreportasonthatdate.

We tested assets in stage 1,2 and 3 on sample basis
to verify thatthey were allocated to the appropriate
stage.

Tested samples to ascertain the completeness and
accuracy of the input data used for determining the
PD and LGD rates and agreed the data with
underlying books of accounts and records.

For samples of exposure, we tested the
appropriateness of determining EAD, PD and LGD.

For exposure determined to be individually
impaired, we tested samples of loans and advances
and examined management's estimate of future
cash flows, assessed their reasonableness and
checked the resultant provision calculations.

We performed an overall assessment of the ECL
provision levels at each stage including
management's assessment and provision on
account of Company's portfolio, risk profile, credit
risk management practices.

We assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of
disclosures in compliance with the Ind AS 107 in
relation to ECL especially in relation to judgements
used in estimation of ECL provision.

Home First Finance Company India Ltd.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements
and Auditors' Report Thereon

e The Company's Board of Directors is responsible
for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis and
Directors' Report (the "Reports”) but does not
include financial statements and our auditors'
report thereon. The reports are expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditors'
report.

e  Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

e When we read the Other Information, if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to those charged with governance as
required under SA 720 - ‘The Auditor's respon-
sibilities Relating to Other Information'.

Responsibilities of Management and Those
Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
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and presentation of the financial statement that give a
true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due tofraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
doso.

The Company's Board of Directors are also responsible
for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due tofraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal financial
control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whetherthe Companyhas adequate
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internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of manage-
ment's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a
goingconcern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events
inamanner thatachieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
thatwe identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matter. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the publicinterest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Require-
ments

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on
ourauditwereportthat:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company
so farasitappears from our examination of those
books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreementwith the relevant books of account.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 oftheAct.

e) On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
oftheAct.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company's internal financial controls with
reference tofinancial statements.
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g)  Withrespecttothe other matterstobeincludedin received by the Company from any person(s)
the Auditor's Report in accordance with the or entity(ies), including foreign entities
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
information and according to the explanations that the Company shall, directly or indirectly,
given to us, the remuneration has been paid by lend or invest in other persons or entities
the Company to its directors during the year is in identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
the Act. Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,

h)  With respectto the other mattersto beincluded in security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
giventous:

i. The Company does not have any pending
litigations as at year-end which would impact
its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts as at
the year-end for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (@) The Management has represented that,
to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements , no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. Refer note 50 to the financial
statements.

(b) The Management has represented, that,
to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to financial statements,
no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been

Beneficiaries. Refer note 50 to the financial
statements.

(c) Based onthe audit procedures performed
that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
mis-statement.

v. As stated in note 16 to the financial state-
ments, the Board of Directors of the Company
has proposed final dividend for the year which
is subject to the approval of the members at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The
dividend proposed is in accordance with
section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books
of account using accounting software which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f.
April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting
under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023.

As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report)
Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central
Governmentin terms of Section 143(11) of the Act,
we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117365W)

G. K. Subramaniam
(Partner)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 2, 2023

(Membership No. 109839)
(UDIN: 23109839BGXPXP8941)
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Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'
REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with
reference to financial statements under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of HOME FIRST
FINANCE COMPANY INDIA LIMITED (the “Company”)
as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).
These responsibilities include the design, implem-
entation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the SAs, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial
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statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls with reference tofinancial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with
reference to financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference
tofinancial statementsis a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. ACompany's
internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of
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management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of
changesin conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 2, 2023

Auditors’ Report

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and
accordingto the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria
for internal financial control with reference to financial
statements established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117365W)

G. K. Subramaniam

(Partner)

(Membership No. 109839)
(UDIN: 23109839BGXPXP8941)
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under '‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
report of even date)

0]

(i)

Integrated Annual Report

According to the information and explanations
given to us, in respect of Property, Plant and
Equipment &Intangible Assets.

a)

The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment. The
Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a program of verification
of Property, Plant and Equipment, so as to
cover all the items once every three years
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, certain Property, Plant and
Equipment were due for verification during
the year and were physically verified by the
Management during the year. According to
the information and explanations given to
us, no material discrepancies were noticed
onsuch verification.

The Company does not have any immovable
properties and hence reporting under
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not rev